Town Hall, Castle Circus,

ORBAY Torquay, Devon TQ1 3DR

Main Switchboard (01803) 201201

COUNCIL -~ g~
w Fax (01803) 207006 DX 59006

Wednesday, 15 February 2017

Meeting of the Council — Revised Agenda
Dear Member
| am pleased to invite you to attend a meeting of Torbay Council which will be held in
Rosetor Room, Riviera International Conference Centre, Chestnut Avenue, Torquay,
TQ2 5LZ on Thursday, 23 February 2017 commencing at 2.30 pm

The items to be discussed at this meeting are attached.

Yours sincerely,

ﬁ_\/mngo@(/\

Steve Parrock
Chief Executive

(All members are summoned to attend the meeting of the Council in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Government Act 1972 and Standing Orders A5.)

A prosperous and healthy Torbay

For information relating to this meeting or to request a copy in another format
or language please contact:
June Gurry, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR
01803 207012
Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk
www.torbay.gov.uk

(1)




(a)

(b)

Meeting of the Council
Revised Agenda

Opening of meeting
Apologies for absence

Minutes

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the
Council held on 2 February and the adjourned meeting held on 9
February 2017.

Declarations of interests

To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect of
items on this agenda

For reference: Having declared their non pecuniary interest
members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on the
matter in question. A completed disclosure of interests form should
be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting.

To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect
of items on this agenda

For reference: Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of the
item. However, the Member may remain in the meeting to make
representations, answer questions or give evidence if the public
have a right to do so, but having done so the Member must then
immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and must not
improperly seek to influence the outcome of the matter. A
completed disclosure of interests form should be returned to the
Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting.

(Please Note: If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on any
potential interests they may have, they should contact Governance
Support or Legal Services prior to the meeting.)

Communications

To receive any communications or announcements from the
Chairman, the Mayor, the Overview and Scrutiny Co-ordinator or
the Chief Executive.

Members' questions
To respond to the submitted questions asked under Standing Order
Al3.

Notice of motion
To consider the attached motion, notice of which has been given in
accordance with Standing Order A14 by the members indicated:

(2)

(Pages 5 - 38)

(Page 39)



(a)

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Notice of Motion - Clinical Health Services (Mayoral Decision)

Annual Strategic Agreement between Torbay Council, South
Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning Group and Torbay
and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust

To consider the submitted report on the above Policy Framework
document and any recommendations from the Overview and
Scrutiny Board.

Review of Torbay Council Investment Fund Strategy

To consider the submitted report on a review of the Council’s
Investment Fund Strategy (Policy Framework) and terms of
reference for the Investment Committee.

Torbay Council Annual Pay Policy Statement and Review of
Pensions Discretions

To consider the submitted report on the annual review of the
Council’'s Pay Policy Statement and Pensions Discretions.

Heart of the South West Devolution - Update and Appointment
of Joint Committee
To consider the submitted report on the above.

Decision to Opt in to the National Scheme for Auditor
Appointments with Public Sector Audit Appointment (PSAA) as
the 'Appointing Person’

To consider the submitted report on a proposal to appoint the
external auditor to the Council for the 2018/2019 accounts and
beyond.

Provisional Calendar of Meetings for 2017/2018
To consider the submitted report setting out the provisional calendar
of meetings for 2017/2018.

Adjournment
To consider adjourning the meeting until 5.30 p.m.

Revenue Budget 2017/2018
To consider the final recommendations of the Mayor on the
Revenue Budget Proposals for 2017/2018.

e Mayor’s response to objection to Revenue Budget proposals
(to follow)
Mayor’s Final Budget Proposals
Chief Finance Officer's Report
Proposed Budget Digest (including the proposals for service
change, income generation and savings)
Equality Impact Assessments
Proposed Fees and Charges

(see www.torbay.gov.uk/budget-201718 and
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/ieListDocuments.asp
x?Cld=163&MId=6618&Ver=4 — agenda for adjourned Council

®3)

(Page 40)

(Pages 41 - 89)

(Pages 90 - 104)

(Pages 105 - 127)

(Pages 128 - 138)

(Pages 139 - 144)

(Pages 145 - 148)

(To Follow)


http://www.torbay.gov.uk/budget-201718
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=163&MId=6618&Ver=4
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=163&MId=6618&Ver=4

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

meeting on 9 February 2017)

Capital Plan 2017/2018

To consider the final recommendations of the Mayor (set out in his
Record of Decision - to follow) on the Capital Plan Budget proposals
for 2017/2018 and the application of Capital Projects Scoring Matrix
to the reserve list of Capital Schemes.

(see
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/ieListDocuments.aspx
?Cld=163&MI1d=6618&Ver=4 — agenda for adjourned Council
meeting on 9 February 2017)

Mayor's Response to Objection to the Review of Reserves
To consider the record of decision setting out the Mayor’s formal
response to the Council’s objections to the Review of Reserves.

Council Tax 2017/2018
To consider the submitted report on the Council Tax for 2017/2018.

Jubilee Gardens - Mayoral Recommendations

To consider the submitted report setting out the recommendations
of the Mayor on a proposal to retain ownership of Jubilee Gardens
and place a covenant on the land protecting it from future
development.

Request for Loan to South Devon College to Support the
Development and Construction of a New Hi Tech Skills Centre
To consider the submitted report on the above.

(Note: this report contains an exempt appendix which has been
circulated separately.)

Review of Electoral Arrangements - Submission by Torbay
Council on Council Size
To consider the submitted report on the above.

Transformation Project - Generating Income through Housing
To consider the submitted report on the above.

(Note: this report contains an exempt appendix which has been
circulated separately.)

Note
An audio recording of this meeting will normally be available at
www.torbay.gov.uk within 48 hours.

(4)

(To Follow)

(To Follow)

(To Follow)

(Pages 149 - 171)

(To Follow)

(Pages 172 - 196)

(To Follow)


http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=163&MId=6618&Ver=4
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=163&MId=6618&Ver=4
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/

Agenda Iltem 3

ORBAY
UNCLL =y

Minutes of the Council
(Council decisions shown in bold text)

2 February 2017
-: Present :-

Chairman of the Council (Councillor Hill) (In the Chair)
Vice-Chairwoman of the Council (Councillor Brooks)

The Mayor of Torbay (Mayor Oliver)

Councillors Amil, Barnby, Bent, Bye, Carter, Cunningham, Darling (M), Darling (S),
Doggett, Ellery, Excell, Haddock, King, Kingscote, Lewis, Manning, Mills, Morey, Parrott,
Robson, Sanders, Stockman, Stocks, Stringer, Stubley, Sykes, Thomas (D), Thomas (J),

Tolchard and Tyerman

116 Opening of meeting
Members observed a minutes silence as a mark of respect in memory of Gerald
Skinner, a past Mayor of Torbay, who had recently passed away. The Chairman's
Chaplain then opened the meeting with a prayer.

117 Apologies for absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Morris, O’'Dwyer, Pentney
and Winfield.

118 Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 8 December 2016 were
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

119 Declarations of interests

In respect of item 20 on the agenda (Torbay Economic Development Company
Limited Business Plan 2017 to 2021), the Chairman advised, that whilst not a
personal interest, the Council’s Chief Executive was also the Chief Executive of the
TDA (Torbay Development Association), a wholly owned and controlled subsidiary
of Torbay Council.

Page 5



Council Thursday, 2 February 2017

120

121

122

The following non-pecuniary interests were declared:

Councillor Minute Nature of interest

Number
Councillor Thomas (J) 128 Trustee of the Shekinah Mission
Councillor Carter 132 Council appointed non executive

director of Torbay Economic
Development Company Ltd
Councillor Mills 132 Council appointed Board Member of
Torbay Economic Development
Company Ltd
Councillor Tyerman 132 Council appointed Director of Torbay
Economic Development Company Ltd

Mayor Oliver declared a pecuniary interest in respect of Minute 133.
Communications

The Chairman welcomed the Local Government Association whose representative
was attending the meeting and thanked the Association for its work and assistance
on the Council’s improvement journey.

Order of Business

In accordance with Standing Order A7.2 in relation to Council meetings, the order of
business was varied to enable:

a) Item 9a on the agenda (Notice of Motion — King George V Playing
Field) to be considered after Item 7 (Petition for Debate — Save our
King George V Playing Fields);

b) Item 16 on the agenda (Revenue Budget Monitoring 2016/17 —
Quarter 3) and Item 18 (Composition and Constitution of Executive
and Delegation of Executive Functions) to be considered prior to Item
19 (Exclusion of the Press and Public); and

C) Item 13 on the agenda (Community Infrastructure Levy), Item 14
(Mayor’s response to objection to Planning Contributions and
Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document), Item 15
(Capital Plan 2016/2017 — Quarter 3 Monitoring) and Item 17
Chairman/woman and Vice-Chairman/woman Select) to be
considered at the end of today’s meeting.

Petition for Debate - Save our King George V Playing Fields and Notice of
Motion - King George V Playing Field

In accordance with Standing Order A12, the Council received a petition requesting

the Council to approve the dedication of the King George V Playing Fields
(approximately 1,154 signatures).

Page 6



Council Thursday, 2 February 2017

At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr Ward addressed the Council.

The Chairman advised that, under the Council’s Petition Scheme, as the petition
had reached the 1,000 signature threshold it was subject to debate by the Council.

The Monitoring Officer outlined the options open to the Council.

The Chairman informed members that the Council had also received a Notice of
Motion on the same matter which requested the Council to take the action sought
by the petitioners. The Notice of Motion would therefore be considered with this
item to commence the debate on the petition.

During the debate, the Monitoring Officer provided clarity in respect of the definition
of the Council’s asset named King George V playing field, as shown on plan
EM2370 and attached at Appendix 1 to these minutes.

Councillor Darling (S) proposed and Councillor Stringer seconded the motion, as
set out below:

That this Council notes:

That, 80 years ago the King George the V playing fields off of Teignmouth
Road, Watcombe, Torquay should have been registered with the National
Memorial scheme for King George the V. Unfortunately, this was never
done.

That this Council be recommended:

On the basis that the Corporate Asset Management Plan means that the
dedication of the King George the V playing field is a decision for Full
Council, the movers of the motion ask Torbay’s Full Council to approve such
a dedication and instruct officers to register it.

An amendment by Councillor Excell and seconded by Councillor King was
circulated prior to the meeting. Councillor Darling (S) and Councillor Stringer
accepted the amendment, which was then incorporated in the original motion and
was agreed by the Council (unanimously) as set out below:

That this Council be recommended:

On the basis that the Corporate Asset Management Plan means that the
dedication of the King George the V playing field is a decision for Full
Council, the movers of the motion ask Torbay’s Full Council to approve
such a dedication and instruct officers to register it at the earliest
opportunity and within one year.

Page 7



Council

123

124

Thursday, 2 February 2017

Members' questions

Members received a paper detailing the questions and answers, as set out at
Appendix 2 to these Minutes, notice of which had been given in accordance with
Standing Order A13.

Written responses were circulated prior to the meeting. Supplementary questions
were then asked in respect of questions 1, 2, 3, 5, 7 and 12. Verbal responses
were provided at the meeting and a written response would be provided for the
supplementary question in respect of question 12 by the Executive Lead for
Planning, Transport and Housing.

Notice of Motion - Devolution Discussions

Members considered a motion in relation to the devolution deal for the Heart of the
Southwest and devolution discussions on sub-regional opportunities, notice of
which was given in accordance with Standing Order A14.

Councillor Thomas (D) proposed and Councillor Tyerman seconded a motion as set

out below:

That the Council be recommended:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

to confirm its commitment to the devolution deal for the Heart of the
Southwest and instruct the Chief Executive and Officers to continue
their support for the development of the productivity plan and the
establishment of governance for its delivery;

to instruct the Chief Executive (working with representatives from the
Devolution Working Party) to explore as a matter of urgency, sub
regional opportunities with Plymouth City Council, Exeter City Council
and any other authorities wishing to discuss devolution options which
would have a potential benefit to Torbay. These discussions will
enable the Council to ensure that all possibilities have been
considered in the event that the Heart of the South West deal is not
progressed, or is not as significant as originally envisaged; and

the Chief Executive is instructed to report progress on both (i) and (ii)
above, to the Devolution Working Party and Council as he deems
appropriate.

During the debate Mayor Oliver proposed and Councillor Mills seconded an
amendment to the motion as follows:

(ii)

that, subject to the Chief Executive firstly consulting with the private
sector members of the South West Local Enterprise Partnership
(LEP) to ascertain their views on developing alternative proposals (as
has been the case with other devolution bids), to instruct the Chief
Executive (working with representatives from the Devolution Working

Page 8



Council

125

Thursday, 2 February 2017

Party) to explore as a matter of urgency sub regional opportunities
with Plymouth City Council, Exeter City Council and any other
authorities wishing to discuss devolution options which would have a
potential benefit to Torbay. These discussions will enable the Council
to ensure that all possibilities have been considered in the event that
the Heart of the South West deal is not progressed, or is not as
significant as originally envisaged.

In accordance with Standing Order A19.4 a recorded vote was taken on the
amendment. The voting was taken by roll call as follows: For: Mayor Oliver,
Councillors Amil, Excell, Haddock, King, Manning, Mills, Parrott and Stubley
(9); Against: Councillors Barnby, Bent, Brooks, Bye, Carter, Cunningham,
Darling (M), Darling (S), Doggett, Ellery, Hill, Kingscote, Lewis, Morey,
Robson, Sanders, Stockman, Stocks, Stringer, Sykes, Thomas (D), Thomas
(J), Tolchard and Tyerman (24); and Absent:. Councillors Morris, O'Dwyer,
Pentney and Winfield (4). Therefore, the amendment was declared lost.

Councillor Thomas (D) and Councillor Tyerman’s original motion was then
considered by the Council which was agreed, as set out below:

That the Council be recommended:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

to confirm its commitment to the devolution deal for the Heart of
the Southwest and instruct the Chief Executive and Officers to
continue their support for the development of the productivity
plan and the establishment of governance for its delivery;

to instruct the Chief Executive (working with representatives
from the Devolution Working Party) to explore as a matter of
urgency sub regional opportunities with Plymouth City Council,
Exeter City Council and any other authorities wishing to discuss
devolution options which would have a potential benefit to
Torbay. These discussions will enable the Council to ensure that
all possibilities have been considered in the event that the Heart
of the South West deal is not progressed, or is not as significant
as originally envisaged; and

the Chief Executive is instructed to report progress on both (i)
and (ii) above, to the Devolution Working Party and Council as he
deems appropriate.

(Note: Mayor Oliver and Councillors Amil, Excell, Mills and Haddock required their
abstention from voting on the decision in Minute 124 to be recorded.)

Notice of Motion - Care Leavers Council Tax Exemption

Members considered a motion in relation to a proposal for care leavers to be
exempt from paying Council Tax, notice of which was given in accordance with
Standing Order A14.

Page 9



Council

Thursday, 2 February 2017

Councillor Doggett proposed and Councillor Stocks seconded the motion, as set out

below:

The Council notes that:

1.

4.

Last year a number of young people (aged 16 or over) left the care of
Torbay Local Authority and began the difficult transition out of care
and into adulthood;

A 2016 report by the Children’s Society found that when care leavers
move into independent accommodation they begin to manage their
own budget fully for the first time. The report showed that care
leavers can find this extremely challenging and, with no family to
support them and insufficient financial education, are falling into debt
and financial difficulty;

Research from the Centre of Social Justice found that over half (57%)
of young people leaving care have difficulty managing their money
and avoiding debt when leaving care; and

The Local Authority has a duty of care to care leavers.

The Council believes that:

1.

2.

To ensure that the transition from care to adult life is as smooth as
possible, and to mitigate the chances of care leavers falling into debt
as they begin to manage their own finances, they should be exempt
from paying Council Tax until they are aged 25.

Care leavers are a particularly vulnerable group for Council Tax debt.

This Council resolves:

(i)

(ii)

to request officers to explore exempting all care leavers from Council
tax up to the age of 25 as part of the development of the 2018/19
Council Tax Support Scheme; and

the Mayor write to the Minister of State for Children and Families,
Edward Timpson M.P, urging him to introduce a national exemption
for care leavers from Council Tax up to the age of 25.

An amendment by Councillor Thomas (D) and seconded by Councillor Barnby was
circulated prior to the meeting. Councillor Doggett and Councillor Stocks accepted
the amendment, which was then incorporated in the original motion and was agreed
by the Council (unanimously) as set out below:

This Council resolves:

To request officers to explore all aspects involved in exempting
all care leavers from Council tax up to the age of 25 as part of the

Page 10



Council Thursday, 2 February 2017

126

development of the 2018/19 Council Tax Support Scheme and
provide a report to Council in order for them to be fully aware of
the financial implications of such a scheme, The report should
include, but not be limited to:

1. the number of care leavers currently in the system that
would be affected together with a projection of numbers
over the next 5 years;

2. the impact of providing such support to care leavers from
other authorities who move into the area, together with
those Torbay care leavers who move out of the area;

3. the cost of implementation of such a scheme;

4. whether the Council can lawfully do this;

5. support currently offered to this group of individuals; and
6. what enhanced education could be provided regarding

money management and financial difficulty before care
leavers have to face this issue.

Local Government Association Corporate Peer Challenge Follow Up Visit and
Finance Review, plus CIPFA Financial Resilience Review - Progress Report
and Revised Action Plan

The Council received an update on the progress made since the Local Government
Association (LGA) Corporate Peer Challenge action plan had been approved on 7
April 2016 (as set out in the submitted report). The submitted report also set out a
revised and prioritised action plan which encompassed further reports received
from the LGA (follow up visit and finance review) plus the CIPFA Financial
Resilience Review feedback.

Councillor Mills proposed and Councillor Cunningham seconded a motion, which
was agreed (unanimously) by the Council as set out below:

() that the LGA Corporate Peer Challenge Follow up day Summary
Report and Efficiency Plan Review (as set out at Appendices 1
and 2 to the submitted report), the LGA Finance Review of
Torbay Council (as set out at Appendix 3 to the submitted report)
and CIPFA Financial Resilience Review (as set out at Appendix 4
to the submitted report), be noted,;

(i) that the progress made on the original Local Government
Association (LGA) Corporate Peer Challenge Feedback Action
Plan (as set out at Appendix 5 to the submitted report) be noted;
and

Page 11



Council Thursday, 2 February 2017

127

(iii)  that the revised and re-prioritised LGA Corporate Peer
Challenge/Finance Review and CIPFA Financial Resilience
Review action plan as set out at Appendix 6 to the submitted
report be approved.

Call In of Mayor's Decision on Potential Helipad and Light Rail System for
Torbay

At its meeting held on 14 December 2016, the Overview and Scrutiny Board
considered the Notice of Call-in of the Mayor’s decision in respect of a potential
helipad and light rail system for Torbay. The Board resolved that, having listened to
the advice of the Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer, the Mayor’s decision
was contrary to the Policy Framework as it did not believe that the Mayor’s decision
made best use of the Council’s reducing resources. In accordance with Standing
Order D10.3 the matter was referred to the Council for consideration.

The Council considered the submitted report on the findings of the Overview and
Scrutiny Board and further information regarding the Mayor’s decision, along with
the advice of the Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer.

Members firstly considered whether or not the Mayor’s decision was contrary to the
Policy Framework.

Councillor Lewis proposed and Councillor Doggett seconded a motion, which was
agreed by the Council as set out below:

that the Mayor’s decision is contrary to the Policy Framework
(Corporate Plan) as it does not believe that it makes best effect of the
Council’s reducing resources.

In accordance with Standing Order D10.8, the Monitoring Officer advised that, as
the Council had determined that the Mayor's decision was contrary to the Policy
Framework, the decision was deemed as a recommendation to the Council. The
recommendation of the Mayor became the motion before Council as follows:

0] that the Assistant Director of Corporate and Business Services be
requested to consult the private sector and businesses in the aviation
sector for their views on the principle of establishing a helipad facility
for Torbay and that this should give the opportunity for the private
sector undertaking feasibility work and to put forward proposals;

(i) that an informal working group comprising the Mayor and business
leaders be established to investigate the economic benefits to Torbay
of having a helipad facility;

(i)  that further discussions be held between the Spatial Planning

Department and Devon Air Ambulance in respect of their needs for
adequate facilities; and

Page 12



Council

(iv)

Thursday, 2 February 2017

that due to the economic growth in Brixham in the fishing and tourism
industry there is a need to improve transport links in and out of
Brixham and the surrounding area to cope with this growth and the
Assistant Director of Corporate and Business Services be requested
to consult with the fishing industry, Brixham Town Council, rail user
groups and existing rail owners to establish, in principle, if the
formation of a light railway system will benefit the long term economic
prospects of Brixham and the surrounding area.

During the debate Councillor Tyerman proposed and Councillor Lewis seconded an
amendment to the motion as follows:

(i)

(ii)

that, given the level of financial cost necessary and the unlikely
prospects of finding suitable capital funding for delivery, the Head of
Paid Service be instructed not to allocate further work or resource
(both financial or officer intellectual time) to be undertaken on
consultation or feasibility of these areas; and

that the Mayor be requested to work with the private sector, without
using officer resources, to encourage them to undertake feasibility
work and take forward proposals once they are fully developed via a
planning application and through the normal planning process.

The amendment was put to the vote and declared carried.

At this juncture, a procedural motion (in accordance with Standing Order
Al16.11(a)(iv)) to move to the vote was proposed by Councillor Thomas (D) and

Page 13



Council Thursday, 2 February 2017

128

seconded by Councillor Darling (S) and was declared carried. Accordingly, the
amended (substantive) motion was put to the vote and was agreed by the Council
as follows:

(i) that, given the level of financial cost necessary and the unlikely
prospects of finding suitable capital funding for delivery, the
Head of Paid Service be instructed not to allocate further work or
resource (both financial or officer intellectual time) to be
undertaken on consultation or feasibility of these areas; and

(i)  that the Mayor be requested to work with the private sector,
without using officer resources, to encourage them to undertake
feasibility work and take forward proposals once they are fully
developed via a planning application and through the normal
planning process.

(Note: Mayor Oliver and Councillor Haddock required their vote against the
amendment on the decision in Minute 127 to be recorded.)

Call In of Mayor's Decision on Bylaws Homeless People and Begging and
Traffic Regulation Orders Preventing Motor Homes Parking in Residential
Areas

At its meeting held on 14 December 2016, the Overview and Scrutiny Board
considered the Notice of Call-in of the Mayor’s decision in respect of a consultation
exercise in respect of introducing bylaws to address rough sleeping and preventing
motor homes being used as permanent homes in resident areas/public highways.
The Board resolved that, having listened to the advice of the Monitoring Officer and
Chief Finance Officer, the Mayor’s decision was contrary to the Policy Framework
as it did not believe that the Mayor’s decision made best use of the Council’s
reducing resources. In accordance with Standing Order D10.3 the matter was
referred to the Council for consideration.

The Council considered the submitted report on the findings of the Overview and
Scrutiny Board and further information regarding the Mayor’s decision, along with
the advice of the Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer.

Members firstly considered whether or not the Mayor’s decision was contrary to the
Policy Framework.

Councillor Lewis proposed and Councillor Stocks seconded a motion, which was
agreed by the Council as set out below:

that the Mayor’s decision is contrary to the Policy Framework
(Corporate Plan) as it does not believe that it makes best effect of the
Council’s reducing resources.

(Note: Councillors Excell, King and Haddock required their vote against the
decision above to be recorded.)

Page 14



Council Thursday, 2 February 2017

In accordance with Standing Order D10.8, the Monitoring Officer advised that as
the Council had determined that the Mayor's decision was contrary to the Policy

Framework, the decision was deemed as a recommendation to the Council. The
recommendation of the Mayor became the motion before Council as follows:

that the Assistant Director of Community and Customer Services be
requested to commission a consultation exercise with the public, partners
and the voluntary sector to assess opinion with regards to what further action
the Council (and partners where appropriate) should take in response to the
issues of:

e introducing bylaws or Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPOs) to
address the problem of rough sleeping on the seafront and town centres;

e providing support to, and safeguarding, individuals with a genuine rough
sleeping / street homelessness need; and

¢ the use of motor homes as permanent accommaodation in residential
areas/public highways.

During the debate Councillor Thomas (D) proposed and Councillor Thomas (J)
seconded an amendment to the motion as follows:

() that, as the Council has no wish to criminalise homeless people
through the introduction of a bylaw, the Head of Paid Service be
instructed not to allocate officer resources to undertake any
consultation exercise on this matter;

(i) that, the Council recognises that the Bay currently suffers from two
problems, namely anti-social behaviour (including aggressive and
professional begging and anti-social behaviour in Town Centres) and
Homeless people, and that these are two separate issues require
different solutions to resolve them. Therefore, the Council requests
the Torbay Community Safety Partnership to work with public,
partners and the voluntary sector to find sustainable solutions to:-

Page 15



Council

Thursday, 2 February 2017

A) rough sleeping and,

B) aggressive and professional begging and anti-social behaviour in
Town Centres.

This work to produce a clear plan of:

e how the Council in partnership with others will deliver assertive
outreach with rough sleepers in line with the new funding
allocation given to Torbay for the next 2 years;

e where enforcement powers can be appropriately deployed to
address persistent anti-social behaviour and aggressive or
professional begging on the streets;

e how the council and partners can adopt best practice from the UK
and other European cities initiatives to end rough sleeping.

During the debate on the amendment, Councillor Thomas (D) and Councillor
Thomas (J) accepted additional wording in respect of consultation. The
amendment was put to the vote and declared carried (unanimously).

The amended (substantive) motion was then considered by members, which was
agreed (unanimously) by the Council as follows:

(i)

(i)

that, as the Council has no wish to criminalise homeless people
through the introduction of a bylaw, the Head of Paid Service be
instructed not to allocate officer resources to undertake any
consultation exercise on this matter;

that, the Council recognises that the Bay currently suffers from
two problems, namely anti-social behaviour (including
aggressive and professional begging and anti-social behaviour
in Town Centres) and Homeless people, and that these are two
separate issues require different solutions to resolve them.
Therefore, the Council requests the Torbay Community Safety
Partnership to work and consult with public, partners and the
voluntary sector to find sustainable solutions to:-

C) rough sleeping and,

D) aggressive and professional begging and anti-social
behaviour in Town Centres.

This work to produce a clear plan of:

e how the Council in partnership with others will deliver
assertive outreach with rough sleepers in line with the new
funding allocation given to Torbay for the next 2 years;

Page 16



Council Thursday, 2 February 2017

129

130

131

132

e where enforcement powers can be appropriately deployed to
address persistent anti-social behaviour and aggressive or
professional begging on the streets;

e how the council and partners can adopt best practice from
the UK and other European cities initiatives to end rough
sleeping.

Revenue Budget 2016/2017 - Quarter 3 Monitoring

The Council noted the forecast position for Revenue Budget for 2016/17 based on
guarter three information, as set out in the submitted report.

Composition and Constitution of Executive and Delegation of Executive
Functions

Members noted the submitted report which provided details of changes made by
the Mayor to his Executive.

Exclusion of the Press and Public

Councillor Manning proposed and Councillor Sykes seconded the motion, which
was agreed by the Council (unanimously), as set out below:

that the press and public be excluded from the meeting prior to
consideration of items 20 and 21 on the agenda on the grounds that
exempt information (as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) is likely to be
disclosed.

Prior to consideration of the items in Minutes 132 and 133 the press and public
were formally excluded from the meeting.

Torbay Economic Development Company Limited Business Plan 2017 to 2021

Members received the Torbay Economic Development Company Limited Business
Plan 2017 to 2021 as part of the Council's Policy Framework. The submitted report
set out the business plan (exempt document) and explained the operation of Torbay
Economic Development Company Limited (operating under the trading name of
TDA) as the Council’s wholly owned and controlled economic development
company.

Mayor Oliver proposed and Councillor Haddock seconded a motion which was
agreed by the Council as set out below:

(1) that the draft Torbay Economic Development Company Limited

Business Plan 2017 to 2021 set out at exempt Appendix 1 to the
submitted report be approved; and

Page 17



Council Thursday, 2 February 2017

133

(i)  that the Assistant Director of Corporate and Business Services
be given delegated authority to agree any changes to the
Business Plan arising from the Council’s approved budget.

(Note: Prior to consideration of Minute 132, Councillors Carter, Mills and Tyerman
declared their non-pecuniary interests.)

Call-in of Deputy Mayor's Decision on Lease of part of the 4th Floor of Tor Hill
House, Union Street, Torquay

At its meeting held on 25 January 2017, the Overview and Scrutiny Board
considered the Notice of Call-in of the Deputy Mayor’s decision to grant a 10 year
lease to a local media company for the south side of the 4th floor of Tor Hill House,
Torquay, following the vacation of Children’s Services from Tor Hill House. The
Board resolved that, having listened to the advice of the Monitoring Officer, the
Deputy Mayor’s decision was contrary to the Policy Framework as it did not believe
that the Deputy Mayor’s decision conformed with the Corporate Plan or Corporate
Asset Management Plan. In accordance with Standing Order D10.3 the matter was
referred to the Council for consideration.

The Council considered the submitted report on the findings of the Overview and
Scrutiny Board and further information regarding the Deputy Mayor’s decision,
along with the advice of the Monitoring Officer, Chief Finance Officer and the
Director of Children’s Services.

Members firstly considered whether or not the Deputy Mayor’s decision was
contrary to the Policy Framework.

Councillor Lewis proposed and Councillor Darling (S) seconded a motion, which
was agreed by the Council as set out below:

that the Deputy Mayor’s decision is contrary to the Policy Framework
as it does not conform with the Corporate Plan or the Corporate Asset
Management Plan.

In accordance with Standing Order D10.8, the Monitoring Officer advised that, as
the Council had determined that the Deputy Mayor's decision was contrary to the
Policy Framework, the decision was deemed as a recommendation to the Council.
The recommendation of the Deputy Mayor became the motion before Council as
follows:

0] that a local media company be granted a 10 year lease for the south
side of the 4th floor of Tor Hill House, Union Street, Torquay on
Heads of Terms as agreed by the Assistant Director of Corporate and
Business Services and following the vacation of Children’s Services
from Tor Hill House; and

(i) that Adult Services and Public Health be relocated from Tor Hill
House within six months of the new tenant occupying Tor Hill House.

Page 18



Council Thursday, 2 February 2017

134

135

During the debate Councillor Tyerman proposed and Councillor Morey seconded an
amendment to the motion as follows:

() that, a local media company be granted a lease for the south side of
the 4th floor of Tor Hill House, Union Street, Torquay and the
Executive Head of Business Services be given delegated authority to
determine the Heads of Terms of the lease ensuring that the terms
reflect the mitigating actions as set out in paragraph 5.3.1.2 of the
exempt submitted report.

The amendment was put to the vote and declared carried.

The amended (substantive) motion was then considered by members, which was
agreed by the Council as follows:

that, a local media company be granted a lease for the south side
of the 4th floor of Tor Hill House, Union Street, Torquay and the
Executive Head of Business Services be given delegated
authority to determine the Heads of Terms of the lease ensuring
that the terms reflect the mitigating actions as set out in
paragraph 5.3.1.2 of the exempt submitted report.

(Note: Councillor Amil, Excell, Haddock, King, Manning, Mills, Parrott and Stubley
required their vote against the amendment and substantive motion on the decision
in Minute 133 to be recorded.)

(Note: Prior to consideration of Minute 133, the Mayor declared his pecuniary
interest and withdrew for the remainder of the meeting.)

Duration of Meeting

In accordance with Standing Order A11.1, the Chairman invited members to vote
for the meeting to continue as the meeting had exceeded four hours duration. On
being put to the vote, it was resolved to continue the meeting.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

The Council considered the submitted report on a revised Community Infrastructure

Levy (CIL) Draft Charging Schedule following modifications made by the
Independent Examiner. Members noted the CIL was a levy on new floor space

Page 19



Council Thursday, 2 February 2017

136

created by development and was regulated by the Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 (as amended).

Councillor King proposed and Councillor Thomas (D) seconded a motion, which
was agreed by the Council as set out below:

M) that the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Revised Draft
Charging Schedule dated September 2016, with Examiner’s
Modifications be adopted by the Council as the basis for levying
CIL;

(i)  that the Council adopts the Examiner’s non-binding
recommendation of treating residential developments of 15 or
more dwellings in Zones 3 and 4 as being strategic (and thereby
zero rated for CIL but subject to a wider range of s106
Obligations);

(iii)  that the Council seeks CIL from chargeable developments that
are granted permission with the implementation date delegated
to the Executive Head of Business Services to ensure all
operational needs are in place;

(iv) that a new CIL administration and monitoring post is created
within Spatial Planning to ensure that CIL is charged and
administered in accordance with the Regulations;

(v)  that asurcharge be imposed on persons liable for CIL if they
commence development without submitting the required notices;
and

(vi) that the Validation list for planning applications be updated to
set out CIL requirements.

Mayor's Response to Objection to Planning Contributions and Affordable
Housing Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)

Further to the Council meeting held on 8 December 2016, members considered the
submitted report on the Mayor’s response to the objections raised by the Council on
the adoption of the Planning Contributions and Affordable Housing Supplementary
Planning Document.

Councillor King proposed and Councillor Mills seconded a motion as set out below:

0] that following consideration of representations made on the Draft
Planning Contributions and Affordable Housing Supplementary
Planning Document (SPD), the SPD be adopted, with minor
modifications, as a Supplementary Planning Document as set out in
Appendix 3 to the submitted report; and

Page 20



Council Thursday, 2 February 2017

(i) that the Executive Head of Business Services, in consultation with the
Executive Lead for Planning, Transport and Housing, be given
delegated powers to make minor amendments to the document to
ensure legibility and clarity.

During the debate Councillor Thomas (D) proposed and Councillor Robson
seconded an amendment to the motion as follows:

(i) that following consideration of representations made on the Draft
Planning Contributions and Affordable Housing Supplementary
Planning Document (SPD), the SPD be adopted, with minor
modifications, as a Supplementary Planning Document as set out in
Appendix 3 to the submitted report;and-except that the threshold for
provision of affordable housing in paragraph 3.4 of the SPD, and
accompanying text elsewhere, be amended to 3 instead of 11 to ensure
that the document adheres to the affordable housing thresholds set out
in Policy H2 of the Adopted Torbay Local Plan, i.e. 3 dwellings for
greenfield sites and that the Written Ministerial Statement of 28
November 2014 should be noted in the SPD as a material
consideration.

A recorded vote was taken on the amendment. The voting was taken by roll call as
follows: For: Councillors Barnby, Bent, Brooks, Bye, Carter, Cunningham, Darling
(M), Darling (S), Doggett, Ellery, Hill, Kingscote, Lewis, Morey, Robson, Sanders,
Stockman, Stocks, Stringer, Sykes, Thomas (D), Thomas (J), Tolchard and
Tyerman (24); Against: Councillors Amil, Excell, Manning and Mills (4); Abstain:
Councillors Haddock, King, Parrott and Stubley (4); and Absent: Mayor Oliver and
Councillors Morris, O’'Dwyer, Pentney and Winfield (5). Therefore, as more than
two-thirds of members present and voting had cast their vote in support of the
amendment, it was carried.

The amended (substantive) motion was then considered by members and as more
than two-thirds of members present and voting had cast their vote in support, it was
agreed by the Council as follows:

(i) that following consideration of representations made on the Draft
Planning Contributions and Affordable Housing Supplementary
Planning Document (SPD), the SPD be adopted, with minor
modifications, as a Supplementary Planning Document as set out
in Appendix 3 to the submitted report, except that the threshold
for provision of affordable housing in paragraph 3.4 of the SPD,
and accompanying text elsewhere, be amended to 3 instead of 11
to ensure that the document adheres to the affordable housing
thresholds set out in Policy H2 of the Adopted Torbay Local Plan,
i.e. 3dwellings for greenfield sites and that the Written Ministerial
Statement of 28 November 2014 should be noted in the SPD as a
material consideration; and

(i) that the Executive Head of Business Services, in consultation
with the Executive Lead for Planning, Transport and Housing, be

Page 21



Council Thursday, 2 February 2017

137

138

139

given delegated powers to make minor amendments to the
document to ensure legibility and clarity.

Capital Plan 2016/2017 - Quarter 3 Monitoring

The Council considered the submitted report setting out an overview of the
Council’s approved Capital Plan for quarter three. The report provided details of
capital expenditure and funding for the year. It was noted the Capital Plan budget
totalled £130 million for the 4 year programme, with £46.2 million scheduled to be
spent in 2016/17, including £4.6m on the South Devon Highway and potential
expenditure from the Investment Fund, with £0.7 million required from capital
receipts and capital contributions over the life of the Capital Plan.

Councillor Mills proposed and Councillor King seconded a motion, which was
agreed (unanimously) by the Council as set out below:

(1) that the latest position for the Council’s Capital expenditure and
funding for 2016/17 be noted.

(i)  that the allocation of the following Government grants be
approved:

Dept for Transport — Pothole Action Fund 2017/18 allocation of
£0.117m and National Productivity Investment Fund of £0.413m
(to Highways Structural Maintenance)

Dept for Education — Early Years Capital (to Children’s Services)

e White Rock Primary Nursery  £0.235m
e Ellacombe Academy Nursery £0.541m

Chairman/woman and Vice-Chairman/woman Select
In accordance with the Council’'s Standing Orders (A9.1), the Council was
requested to consider selecting the Chairman/woman-Elect and Vice-

Chairman/woman-Elect for the next Municipal Year 2017/2018.

Councillor Kingscote proposed and Councillor Darling (S) seconded a motion,
which was agreed (unanimously) by the Council as set out below:

0] that Councillor Brooks be selected as Chairwoman (Elect) for the
2017/2018 Municipal Year; and

(i)  that Councillor Doggett be selected as Vice-Chairman (Elect) for
the 2017/2018 Municipal Year.

Adjournment

The Chairman advised that in accordance with Standing Orders F2.13 and F3.12 in
relation to the Budget and Policy Framework the remaining items on the agenda

Page 22



Council Thursday, 2 February 2017

were referred to an adjourned meeting of Council to be held on 9 February 2017 to
enable full consideration to be given to the implications of the proposals set out in
the reports and documentation circulated on 2 February 2017.

Chairman

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



- /
\ w=@E)=E
/
oy S
m! " =
E <R NHAd
= &
: /
i . King George V Playing Field
> [
0o -
2\ € / —
0 205.6 /
e —— |
metres
Scale: 1:2,500
EM Plan No: EM2370 Asset No: T0970ZZ TE)RBAY
Date: 15th November 2013 LR Title No: DN519024 CEANCT. o
Title: King George V Playing Field Scale: 1:2500
Area: 50,389.9m?
TORBAY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY - ASSET MANAGEMEN'Page 25 B
© Crown copyright and database rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 100022695. e A




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



Minute Item 123

Meeting of the Council
Thursday, 2 February 2017

Questions Under Standing Order A13

A member may only submit three questions for consideration at each Council
Meeting. Each member will present their first question in turn, when all the first
questions have been dealt with the second and third questions may be asked in tumn.
The time for member's questions will be limited to a total of 30 minutes.

Question (1) by | understand the Council has been awarded a one off grant of £400,000 to help with
Councillor Thomas | our current homelessness issues, could the Executive Lead please advise:-

(J) to the i) what are the priorities for these monies and

Executive Lead for i) specific examples where this money is to be spent and

Planning, iii) the projected outcomes this should achieve.

L':::iﬁ;rt GO Would the Executive Lead also outline how this money is being prioritised against the

(Councillor King)

Torbay Homelessness Strategy 2015 to 2020.

Councillor King

The funding has been made available as a result of a grant application that
was made last year to DCLG.

The money spent by providing assertive outreach, extra safe beds and offering
accommodation solutions bases on assessment needs.

The projected outcomes will meet criteria set in the Torbay Homeless Strategy
2015 to 2020.

Question (2) by
Councillor Carter
to the Mayor and
Executive Lead for
Finance and
Regeneration
(Mayor Oliver)

In light of the recent fire at Crossways, could you advise me if there is a
deadline for serving a compulsory purchase order for Crossways and if so what
that date is?

Mayor Oliver

The Councit can progress the use of its powers of compulsory purchase on any
site in order to deliver development, redevelopment or improvement where it is
expedient and where there is a compelling case in the pubiic interest to do

so. The Council agreed to do just that in October last year. The Town

Centre Regeneration Board, led by Clir Haddock, will actively consider use of
the Council's powers in this respect, and will bring individual cases forward for
decision as appropriate. But Council should note that CPO is a power of last
resort and the Council must seek a negotiated acquisition before it can move to
compulsory purchase. A negotiated outcome is only possible where there is a
viable and deliverable business or development proposal.

Page 27



Question (3) by
Councillor
Sanders to the
Mayor and
Executive Lead for
Finance and
Regeneration
(Mayor Oliver)

What representations has he made to the Prisons Minister to act on the
number of prisons in the South West and in Devon whom he claims
recommend prisoners on release to come to Torbay?

Mayor Oliver Yes | have made written representations and these are appended.

Question (4) by Residents along Moor Lane Torquay and adjoining roads are concerned that
Councillor Darling | over many years there has been in increasing problem with anti social driving
(S) to the and parking along this road. How has the Council engaged with the three
Executive Lead for | schools to ensure that they play their part in reducing this problem.
Planning,

Transport and

Housing

(Councillor King)

Councillor King

Whilst the authority has previously written to all of the schools on Moor Lane
with regard to access issues in the surrounding area, we have never been
made aware of any issues that have resulted in a need to write to them with
regard to poor parking and driver behaviour. However, if the local ward
members feel there is a need for us to do so and can provide information on
the specific issues, we would be happy to write to them.

Question (5) by
Councillor Doggett
to the Councils
Representative on
the Devon and
Somerset Fire
Authority
(Councillor Ellery)

In light of the fire at the Royal Clarence Hotel Exeter, what lessons have been
leamnt by the Fire Authority that would assist in a similar fire in Torbay?

Councillor Ellery

After the tragedy of the Clarence Hotel Fire in Exeter, Clir David Thomas and
myself decided we would instigate a Business Fire Safety Seminar for small
and medium sized businesses in Torbay. | am delighted to announce that this
event will take place on February 13th in the Redcliffe Hotel Paignton with
three 2 hour sessions at 10am, noon, and 2pm. The Seminar is titled "l lost my
Heart to a Fire", there will be powerful personal accounts from business owners
including Clir Thomas who have lost their entire life's work to a fire in Torbay
and the effect on them both personally, economically, and financially. Devon &
Somerset Business Fire Safety officers will be answering questions and there
will be Commercial Fire Protection advisors giving advice on the best
equipment to use to keep your businesses safe from fire. The Community
Safety Team from Torbay Council will also be in attendance with a stand and
advice.

| formally invite any councillors and officers to attend one of the sessions,
especially if they operate a business, or are landlords in the bay.

Page 28




Question (6) by
Councillor Darling
(M) to the
Executive Lead for
Planning,
Transport and
Housing
(Councillor King)

| have been lead to believe that a property in Torre, Torquay has been
converted into a house of multiple occupation (HMO) without planning
permission. What enforcement action is being considered?

Councillor King

' The use of this property as a house of multiple occupation (HMO) appears to
 be lawful. The property was granted planning permission in 1998 for use as a
' student house of residence. No conditions were imposed restricting occupants

to being in full time education and therefore occupation of the property is not

| restricted to students only. The approved floor plans show 12 letting rooms with
| a kitchen on each of the ground and first floors. No enforcement action is
| proposed as there is no evidence of a breach of planning control.

Second Round

Question (7) by No action appears to be happening with regard to Oldway and surrounding
Councillor Carter | area, could you advise me of the plans for action with regard to Oldway, the
to the Mayor and tennis courts, the parking and the bowls club, and when action is likely to take
Executive Lead for | place.

Finance and

Regeneration
(Mayor Oliver)

Mayor Oliver

At a meeting of the full Council on the 22nd September 2016 it was agreed that |
an Oldway Mansion and Estate Working Party should be established. The
Terms of Reference are :-

1. to review any condition surveys for buildings on the site;

2. to review proposals for the use of buildings and grounds;

3. to ascertain community views in respect of these matters; and

4. to make recommendations about how future use of building should be taken
forward.

| understand that the Working Party has now met on three occasions. Minutes
of these meetings are available and the Working Party is Chaired by Councillor
Robson. | will also be asking the Strategic Land Task Group to consider the
future of the Mansion and surrounding estate.

Question (8) by
Councillor
Sanders to the
Mayor and
Executive Lead for
Finance and
Regeneration
(Mayor Oliver)

What was:

a) the total expenditure on new beach huts at Meadfoot;

b) the estimated income from the beach huts at Meadfoot over this financial
year; and

c) the actual income from the beach huts so far this financial year?

Page 29



Mayor Oliver

A total of £2,199,220 has been spent on the provision of the new Meadfoot
Beach huts. The estimated income for this financial year is £190,400 with the
actual income so far this financial year being £177,377.

Question (9) by Torbay Council is set to introduce a 20mph zone on Moor Lane Torquay.
Councillor Darling | However, a representative of Devon & Comwall police has advised residents
(S) to the that they are unlikely to have the resource to enforce the speed limit. Without
Executive Lead for | enforcement this appears to make this and other 20MPH zones outside
Planning, schools a paper tiger. How do you plan to ensure that the Police do enforce
Transport and these speed limits?

Housing

(Councillor King)

Councillor King

The authority cannot require the Police to enforce this or any other speed limits
within the bay area. The police prioritise their resources target enforcement as
and when appropriate. The Council continues to work with the local Police
Road Casualty Reduction Officer (RCRO) to shared intelligence. However, this
particular scheme has been engineered with a number of traffic calming
features (both physical e.g. build-outs and non-physical e.q. signs, lines and
roundels) to make it more difficult to drive at speed and is therefore considered
as largely self regulating.

Unfortunately we are aware that some drivers will make the conscious decision
to ignore the posted speed limit and put at risk other road users.

Question (10) by
Councillor Doggett
to the Executive
Lead for Planning,
Transport and
Housing
(Councillor King)

| understand that over £400,000 has been spent on developing the Edginswell
rail halt with littte chance of a successful scheme. Has this scheme hit the
buffers and wasted hundreds of thousands of tax payers money?

Councilior King

The Council have been successful in achieving £4m towards the delivery of a
Railway Station at Edginswell from the LEP Growth Deal Settlement. In order
to achieve all of the funding necessary to deliver the Railway Station the
Council have also submitted a bid to the DfT and Network Rail for New
Stations Fund. The outcome of the bid is expected to be announced in the
Spring. It was always expected that funding would be required from the New
Stations Fund, but this opportunity was delayed by Government. This is why
there has been a delay in the programme and it can be assured that the
scheme has not “hit the buifers”. The Council is looking at alternative funding
mechanisms for delivery in case the current bid is unsuccessful. The new
Railway Station will help to deliver hundreds of new homes, as well as new
jobs particularly in the Edginswell Growth Area but also other surrounding
sites. It will also help to ease the existing local parking problems and improve
accessibility for patients, visitors and staff to Torbay Hospital. It is therefore
strongly believed that the business case for the new Railway Station is robust.
A level of investment is always required to develop, option assess, and design
any capital scheme.

Page 30



Question (11) by
Councillor Darling
(M) to the
Executive Lead for
Planning,
Transport and
Housing
(Councillor King)

As Part of the 60 & 61 motion passed at Full Council on 11 May 2016 it was
agreed that “That the Council will develop a user group for bus users in Torbay
and will hold regular meetings with bus operators to assist in the future of
transport provision.” When does the Council plan to act upon this minute?

Councillor King

The Senior Traffic Engineer and Public Transport Officer, along with the
Executive Lead for Transport meet with Stagecoach every six months and with
the other operators, as and when required. Through the Community
Development Trust a bus-sub group has been established, which both myself
and Clir Doggett attend.

Discussions are ongoing as to whether to develop this into a Public Transport
user group, dealing with both bus and rail transport issues.

Third Round
Question (12) by What progress has he made over the past year ensuring the protection of
Councillor disabled parking bays in residential parking zones?

Sanders to the
Executive Lead for
Planning,
Transport and
Housing
(Councillor King)

Councillor King

Current policy is that advisory disabled bays are not positioned within the
boundaries of Controlled or Residents Parking Zones (CPZ). In such areas, all
areas of carriageway must be covered by enforceable parking restrictions,
which an advisory disabled bay is not. The presence of such a bay, breaks up
any existing parking restriction, therefore making them unenforceable.

However, we would be happy to implement an enforceable disabled bay, but
this would have to be at no cost to the authority, where the cost of
implementing the bay (i.e. preparation and advertising of the required Traffic
Regulation Order, erection of signs and placement of lines) would have to be
covered by the householder.

It should be noted that, as with the advisory disabled bays, these bays are not
normally reserved for a particular Blue Badge holder and unfortunately the
costs involved are considerably more than for advisory disabled bays.

(Councillor Excell)

Question (13) by Local residents feel that to reduce parking problems on and around Moor lane
Councillor Darling | schools should be encouraged to use the car park for Watcombe beach. Can
(S) to the the Council enter into negotiations with the schools with a view to introduce the
Executive Lead for | use of the car park for them?

Community

Services

Page 31



Councilior Excell

The fifty space car park at Watcombe Beach is free and therefore if used by
the school would not cause a loss of income for Parking Services. However,
Watcombe Beach Road is heavily shaded by trees, has no footway and there
is no safe crossing point of A379 Teignmouth Road for pedestrians. The car
park is also located just over 300m from the nearest school, some distance for
school staff to walk if they are carrying equipment.

| will endeavour to meet with all three schools to look at alterative parking or
travel arrangements for their teachers.

Question (14) by The Former B & Q building in Torre continues to be a blot on Torquay's
Councillor Darling | landscape. What options have the Council considered in the last 18 months to
(M) to the Mayor force action on this eyesore?

and Executive
Lead Finance and
Regeneration
(Mayor Oliver)

Mayor Oliver

Planning officers have been working pro actively with the owner to find a viable
new use for the building which at the same time would respect the appearance
and character of the Tormohun Conservation Area. This in itself is a challenge
and has taken some time to achieve. The owner has also submitted proposals
for the adjoining Martial Arts Academy and the Zion Road Chapel.
Cumulatively the three proposed developments would result in a significant
investment and regeneration opportunity for this part of Torre. All three
applications will be considered by the Development Management Committee
on 13th February. If planning consent is granted in February there is no
reason why the development will not be implemented.

The proposal for the former B and Q site involves refurbishment and extension
of the existing buildings to provide 19 residential units, ground fioor commercial
floor space, 10 car parking spaces and 3 garage spaces.

The proposal for the former Martial Arts Academy involves the refurbishment
and alteration of the existing building to provide 3 residential units.

The proposal for the former Zion Road Chapel involves the refurbishment and
extension of the former chapel building to provide 7 residential units and 7 car
parking spaces.

Page 32




11* January 2017

The Rt Hon Amber Rudd MP
The Home Secretary

House of Commons

London

SWI1A OAA

Dear Miss Rudd
Re: Homelessness and Anti-Sacial Behaviour in Torbay

We have been experiencing a growth in both these issues in our three towns and on our
seafronts. The growth has become very noticeable in the last few months and | have been
making enquiries into why we have this problem.

We have housing policies in place according to statute and we have a caring and supportive
role in managing such problems. | welcome the Prime Minister’s statement of measures to
transform mental health support and her desire to see policies in place to deal with this.

| have been speaking to our volunteers who give endless help and support and it is emerging
that Torbay is receiving increasing numbers of ex-offenders who are allegedly sent here by
prisons, by personal contacts and through voluntary organisations who canvass in other
parts of the UK.

It seems as though in policy terms there is a complete vacuum of support in both the Prison
and Probation Services.

Many of these ex-offenders come with no training, no clothing and under £50 cash in their
pockets. We have established from our volunteers that people are coming from Scotland,
Swansea, Newcastle, Bristol, Nottingham, Hampshire and Dorset and they may not have any
family connection whatsoever with Torbay

| appreciate that people are free to live where they wish but feel that there needs tobe a
more coherent and sustainable strategy to help offenders back into saciety, however it is
impossible to do it all with a substantially reduced budget and additional demands on
Children’s Services and Services for the Elderly in our Community. We have both moral and
legal duties to support our own people, to accommodate them, bring them back to heaith
and help them into employment.

Our Housing Benefit Revenue total is, | believe, in the region of £60million per annum. We

are a small Unitary Council and by the end of my term as Elected Mayor | will have seen my
Revenue Budget decreased by nearly £80mitlion per annum.

Page 33



Many of the ex-offenders are former members of our Armed Services and although they are
not always able to be identified we do our best to seek them out and offer our support.
According to some of the ex-offenders Torbay is known as a ‘bit of a soft touch’ so allegedly
it s for that reason they are sent from many parts of England and Scotland.

We have received a grant of £400k as a result of making a BID and for which we are
extremely grateful. However, should the trend continue with constant begging — some of
which is of a ‘professional’ nature and anti-social behaviour in our town centres and on our
seafronts it will, eventually, overwhelm us.

A further major problem will also arise, it will deter investment in our town centres which
we are currently seeking to revive,

l invite you to Torbay to meet the volunteers and the ex-offenders, including former
members of the Armed Services, also to meet the Business Community and Elected
Members.

I would be grateful to receive your thoughts and any advice you may feel would be helpful
concerning this difficult matter.

Kind Regards

Yours sincerely

Gordon Oliver
Elected Mayor of Torbay

Cc: The Prime Minister
Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for Prisons & Probation

Page 34



11* January 2017

Mr S Gyimah MP

Parliamentary Under Secretary of State of Prisons & Probation
The House of Commons

London W1A 0AA

Dear Mr Gyimah

Re Homelessness and Anti-Social Behaviour in Torbay

We have an increasing problem in Torbay the details of which | have outlined in my letter to
The Home Secretary.

I have attached a copy of that letter for your information.
Kind Regards
Yours sincerely

GORDON OLIVER
Elected Mayor of Torbay

Page 35



11" January 2017

The Rt Hon Amber Rudd MP
The Home Secretary

House of Commons

London

SWI1A 0AA

Dear Miss Rudd
Re: Homelessness and Anti-Social Behaviour in Torbay

We have been experiencing a growth in both these issues in our three towns and on our
seafronts. The growth has become very noticeable in the last few months and | have been
making enquiries into why we have this problem.

We have housing policies in place according to statute and we have a caring and supportive
role in managing such problems. | welcome the Prime Minister’s statement of measures to
transform mental health support and her desire to see policies in place to deal with this.

I have been speaking to our volunteers who give endless help and support and it is emerging
that Torbay is receiving increasing numbers of ex-offenders who are allegedly sent here by
prisons, by personal contacts and through voluntary organisations who canvass in other
parts of the UK.

It seems as though in policy terms there is a complete vacuum of support in both the Prison
and Probation Services.

Many of these ex-offenders come with no training, no clothing and under £50 cash in their
pockets. We have established from our volunteers that people are coming from Scotland,
Swansea, Newcastle, Bristol, Nottingham, Hampshire and Dorset and they may not have any
family connection whatsoever with Torbay

| appreciate that people are free to live where they wish but feel that there needs to be a
more coherent and sustainable strategy to help offenders back into society, however it is
impossible to do it all with a substantially reduced budget and additionat demands on
Children’s Services and Services for the Elderly in our Community. We have both moral and
legal duties to support our own people, to accommodate them, bring them back to health
and help them into employment.

Our Housing Benefit Revenue total is, | believe, in the region of £60million per annum. We

are a small Unitary Council and by the end of my term as Elected Mayor | will have seen my
Revenue Budget decreased by nearly £80million per annum.

Page 36



Many of the ex-offenders are former members of our Armed Services and although they are
not always able to be identified we do our best to seek them out and offer our support.
According to some of the ex-offenders Torbay is known as a ‘bit of a soft touch’ so allegedly
it is for that reason they are sent from many parts of England and Scotland.

We have received a grant of £400k as a result of making a BID and for which we are
extremely grateful. However, should the trend continue with constant begging — some of
which is of a ‘professional’ nature and anti-social behaviour in our town centres and on our
seafronts it will, eventuaily, overwhelm us.

A further major problem will also arise, it will deter investment in our town centres which
we are currently seeking to revive.

| invite you to Torbay to meet the volunteers and the ex-offenders, including former
members of the Armed Services, also to meet the Business Community and Elected
Members.

| would be grateful to receive your thoughts and any advice you may feel would be helpful
concerning this difficult matter.

Kind Regards

Yours sincerely

Gordon QOliver
Elected Mayor of Torbay

Cc: The Prime Minister
Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for Prisons & Probation

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



Agenda Iltem 6

Meeting of the Council
Thursday, 23 February 2017

Questions Under Standing Order A13

A member may only submit three questions for consideration at each Council
Meeting. Each member will present their first question in turn, when all the first
guestions have been dealt with the second and third questions may be asked in turn.
The time for member’s questions will be limited to a total of 30 minutes.

Question (1) by
Councillor Darling
(S) to the Mayor
and Executive
Lead for Finance
and Regeneration
(Mayor Oliver)

In recent press reports it has been stated that you plan to re employ an agent
in the USA who has cost the Council £120,000 to champion investment in
Torbay from the USA, at a further cost of £40,000, whilst there is no evidence
of any direct investments in Torbay due to their work. Can you confirm or
deny this?

Second Round

Question (2) by
Councillor Darling
(S) to the Mayor
and Executive
Lead for Finance
and Regeneration
(Mayor Oliver)

What cost was there in officer time or other financial cost to the Council or
TDA to investigate a third harbour for Torquay?

Third Round

Question (3) by
Councillor Darling
(S) to the Mayor
and Executive
Lead for Finance
and Regeneration
(Mayor Oliver)

What cost was there in officer time or other financial cost to the Council or
TDA to investigate a container hub at Goodrington?

Page 39




Agenda ltem 7a

Notice of Motion — Council 23 February 2017 (Mayoral Decision)
Clinical Health Services

This Council objects to the removal of clinical health services delivered in
Paignton and to any proposal that downgrades Torbay’s District General
Hospital, and calls on the Mayor to contact the leaders of neighbouring local
authorities whose residents will be affected by such changes to unite against
them, and to use his community leadership role to raise with the Government
the views of opponents to these changes from residents, patients and staff from
across South Devon.

Proposed by: Councillor Sanders

Seconded by: Councillor Darling (S)

Page 40



Agenda Iltem 8

ORBA

COUNCIL ~

Meeting: Council Date: 23 February 2017

Wards Affected: All

Report Title: Annual Strategic Agreement between Torbay Council, South Devon
and Torbay Clinical Commissioning Group and Torbay and South
Devon NHS Foundation Trust

Is the decision a key decision? Yes

When does the decision need to be implemented? As soon as possible

Executive Lead Contact Details: Councillor Parrott, Executive Lead for Children’s

and Adults Services, 01803 293217,
julien.parrott@torbay.gov.uk

Supporting Officer Contact Details: Caroline Taylor, Director of Adult Services, 01803
208949, caroline.taylor@torbay.gov.uk

1. Proposal and Introduction

1.1  Thisis the Annual Strategic Agreement (ASA) which sets out the way in which
Torbay Council and South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning Group (the
CCG) will commission services from Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation
Trust (the Trust). The ASA covers the period 01 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

1.2  The report also sets out a proposal to establish an Adult Services and Public Health
Monitoring Group whose role will be to provide oversight of the changes in both
adult services and public health as a result of local, regional and national
pressures.

1.3 A significant development is the notice of withdrawal from the Risk Share
Agreement that has been served in December 2016 by Torbay and South Devon
NHS Foundation Trust. This is covered in the Supporting Information (4).

2. Reason for Proposal

2.1 The Annual Strategic Agreement sets out the strategic direction which is designed
to maximise choice and independence for those requiring adult social care and
support. It sets out the objectives which the Council and the CCG require the Trust
to meet and forms the basis on which performance can be monitoring and
managed.

forward thinking, people orientated, adaptable - always with integrity.

Page 41


mailto:julien.parrott@torbay.gov.uk
mailto:caroline.taylor@torbay.gov.uk

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.1

3.2

The establishment of the Monitoring Group will ensure that there is an opportunity
for members to gain an understanding of the issues around adult social care and
public health, to review and discuss performance and financial monitoring data and
to have oversight of the development of future Agreements given that the ICO has
given notice to withdraw from the Risk Share Agreement.

Due to the expiry of the Risk Share Agreement on the 31 December 2017, the
approval of the recommendation in respect of the ASA is applicable for the nine (9)
months of the financial year beginning 01 April 2017. Negotiations will take place
during this period and alternative arrangements will be presented to the council for
further approval as appropriate.

The further developments in respect of performance and savings schemes which
are presently within the NHS planning cycle, will be presented to council for
approval in July 2017

A draft of the Operational Plan is submitted as an Exempt Appendix for context. It is
currently in the process of ratification through the NHS governance framework.

Recommendation(s) / Proposed Decision

That the Annual Strategic Agreement between Torbay Council, South Devon and
Torbay Clinical Commissioning Group and Torbay and South Devon NHS
Foundation Trust set out at Appendix 1 to the submitted report be approved for the
period to 31 December 2017.

That a Adult Services and Public Health Monitoring Working Party be established
comprising 5 members (to be politically balanced), with the Executive Lead for
Adults and Children and the Executive Lead for Health and Wellbeing and the
Directors of Adult Services and Public Health being invited to attend meetings, with
terms of reference as follows:

(@) To provide strategic political interface between elected members and the
Executive Lead for Adults and Children and the Directors of Adult Services
and Public Health.

(b)  To understand the key priorities for Adult Services and Public Health.

(c) To be fully briefed on the changes within Adult Services and Public Health
especially in respect of the arrangements with the Integrated Care
Organisation, changes arising from the Devon-wide Sustainability and
Transformation Plan and changes in Government legislation and/or
guidance.

(d) To understand the financial situation in relation to Adult Services and Public
Health.

Page 42



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Supporting Information

Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust has given notice to the Council,
and CCG, that it intends to withdraw from the Risk Share Agreement with effect
from 1 January 2018.

This is not step which the ICO has taken lightly and the ICO, and other partners,
remain committed to finding and securing partnership solutions, which ensure the
delivery of joined up, integrated and effective health and care to people living in
Torbay. However, the Trust was unable to reconcile the current Risk Share
Agreement with the provision and requirements of NHS planning guidance for
2017/18, hence the Trust’s decision to give notice.

The Trust, the Council and CCG are committed to working in partnership to
renegotiate the RSA, or find an alternative mechanism which delivers similar
outcomes but is mutually acceptable to all parties and aligned with national
planning guidance for the NHS and the local authority.

As part of this, work is underway to revise savings plans for the coming year in a
way which meet the challenges which local services will face in 2017/18 and sets a
foundation for 2018/19 and beyond. Because this is work in progress the Trust’s
Operational Plan has not yet been confirmed by the NHS nationally and is therefore
not available for public consideration. A draft of the Plan is available to members
as an Exempt Appendix. Whilst there are a series of elements that continue to be
developed there is a sound knowledge of activities in relation to Adult Social Care
and these are articulated in the attached Annual Strategic Agreement.

A number of place-based, system wide, savings programmes have been developed
which are designed to have whole system impact in Torbay (and South Devon).
These include:

e Community Services (focusing on the implementation of the new model of care
which includes closer and more integrated working between adult social care,
community health services and primary care).

e Placed people (focusing on people placed in care homes whether funded
through adult social care or Continuing Health Care).

e Prevention (focusing on the prevention and self care and reducing reliance on
formal health and care services).

e Market Management (focusing on developing innovative solutions increase
capacity and availability in domiciliary, residential and nursing home care
services).

The ASA will ultimately form part of the Trust’s Operational Plan. It is envisaged
that the Operational Plan will be presented to Council in July 2017.

In moving forward to renegotiate the Risk Share Agreement, it is important that
members have an oversight of both Adult Services and Public Health. Itis
proposed that a Monitoring Working Party is established to mirror the Children’s
Services Monitoring Working Party. This will enable a group of members to meet
informally to review performance and financial monitoring information. The

Page 43



4.8

5.1

Working Party will also be briefed on the changes to Adults Services and Public
Health coming through the system as a result of local, regional and national
pressures.

The Working Party will be able to report to the Overview and Scrutiny Board and
the Audit Committee as appropriate. The Overview and Scrutiny Board would
continue to undertake its statutory health scrutiny duties.

Mayor’s Response to the comments made by the Overview and Scrutiny
Board

The Overview and Scrutiny Board will consider the draft ASA at its meeting on 15
February at which point it will make recommendations to the Mayor. The Mayor’s
response to those recommendations will be published ahead of the meeting of the
Council.

Appendices

Appendix 1: Annual Strategic Agreement
Appendix 2: Draft Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust Operational Plan
Exempt

Page 44



Agenda Iltem 8
Appendix 1

Operational Plan Appendix
representing the Annual Strategic
Agreement

Between

Torbay Council and Torbay and South Devon
NHS Foundation Trust

For the Delivery of:

Adult Social Care April 2017 to March 2019

V2.4 - 06 February 2017

Page 45



CONTENTS

1.

[ 1Ay e e [ ot i Te] o - F TP SO PP PP PRPROPION 5
1.1 SCOPE Of the AGrEEMENT ....oeiii e e e et e e e bae e e e ree e e e araeas 5
1.2 Ry = LU o) - T=d == T 1 0 1= | SR 5
13 Summary of Services t0 be Provided .......ccueviieiiii i 5

ASC COMMISSIONING PrIOTITIES «oeeiieeiiieeeee ettt ettt e e e e e st e e e e e e s e sanrneeeeeeeeenan 6
2.1 NEW MOAEI OF CAre ..coiiieiiieiiie ettt et et s e st e s bee e sb e sbae e sateesareeesanes 6
2.2 AUTISITI ottt et e s e e e s sraa e e snee 7
2.3 Learning DiSabilities ....cccuuiiiieiiee e e e st e et e e et b e e e enaaaeeean 7
24 MENTAT HEAIEN ..ottt et et bt st st s be b 7
25 SOCIal Care WOIKFOICO. .o viiiiiieeiie ettt ettt st st ba e st e sbeeesanee s 7
2.6 Enhanced working between the commissioning functions ..........ccceeevviieiiiiie e, 7
2.7 HOUSING QN0 CArE ...viiiiiciiiie ettt et e e et e e e rta e e e s satae e e s aasaeeeenbaeeeesnsseeessnsseeennn 7
2.8 SafEGUATNING AUILS ...oeeiieiieee e ettt e e e e ate e e e et ae e e e e bee e e e e abaeeeennranas 8

CUITENT SEIVICES ..ottt ettt e s e e e s e e e s s b e e e s e sab e e e s s nrenes 8
3.1 ACTIVITY ASSUMPTIONS ..ttt ettt e e e s s ee et e e e s s ssbbbreeeeeesesaasbbaeeeeessesannssnes 8
3.2 oY [=Tot =T I A Yor 1Y/ A USRS 9
33 Activity Baselines and Planning ASSUMPLIONS ........ceiiiciiieiiiiieeccieee s ciree et e s eree e earaee e 9
34 Impact on Quality, activity and cost including improvement...........cccceecveeeeciieecccciiee e, 10
3.5 Adult Social Care WOrkforce .......cooui ittt st 10
3.6 Y (=T ={U =T e [T V- USRSt 11

Delivery and Performance Management: Adult Social Care Services .......ccccccveeeevcveiecccrieeeseneen. 12

YT QY (ol DTNV <] (o) o g T=T o PRt 13
5.1  Social Care Workforce Plan.........oouieiieiiiieeereeeee et 14
5.2 Strength Based APPrOaCh .....oooeiiii ettt e e et e e e et e e e e ata e e e earaaeeeanes 14
53 New Approach to Person Centred support Planning........ccoccveeeeeiiieeccciiee et 15
5.4 WellbEING COONAINATONS. ... .vviiiiiiiiee ittt ettt e et e e e et e e e et e e e e e eate e e e eateeeeenteeeesssaaeeennes 15
5.5 StanNdardisation Of PrOCESS......cccuiiii it e e e srr e e s sate e e e serraeeesanes 15
5.6 Self directed support — including direct payments.......cccccovveeiiciiee i 15
5.7 Care Model Implementation..........ccueei e 15
5.8 Service for people with learning disabilities including Autism .........cccccoeeeieeeiiiiee e 16
5.9 Residential and day Services for Older PEOPIE .........oeeecuiieieciieeeee et 16
5.10  REVIEWS ittt ettt st e st e e s e e s r e e e e s n e e s e n e et e s nr e e e e s rr e e e s nnneenan 16
5.11 Programme Management Office (PMO) arrangements to ensure delivery ..........ccccccveene. 17

Page 46



Lo I LY |V, 11T o] o = PR 17

6. MeENTAl HEAITN ..ottt st e st e ab e s esne e e saree s 17
R O TUF- 1} VA XY U - ol Y PUST 18
7.1 National: CQC (Care Quality COMMISSION) ....c.uviiiiiiiieeciiie e e e e e 18
7.2 Local: Torbay and South Devon NHSFT ......cooiiiiiieee ettt e e e s e 18
7.3 Multi-agency Safeguarding HUD (MASH) .......coouiiiiiie et 18
8. FINANCE @NA RISKS ...eeeiiiieiiieetee ettt ettt st e e st e st e s bt e e sab e e e sabeesareesneeesareenn 18
8.1 210 Lo ey QA 1T T or= Y o o 13 TOPR 18
8.2 FINANCIAl RiSK SNAIE ...ttt sttt 19
8.3 Revenue Budget 2017/18 and 2018/19.....cuueeeieeeeiee et etee ettt eteeesare e sbee e 20
8.4 Care Home Fees Judicial ReVIEW APPEAL........ccuueiiieiiii it 20
8.5 BELLEr Care FUNG ... .ciiiiieiee ettt ettt et sttt e it e s bt e e sabeesbeesnteesabeeenns 20
S T 11T oY B @ o = T =TSRRI 20
9.1 Lo N T o o N o F- = PR 20
9.2 Residential and Non Residential Charges .........eeeecuieeeeciiiee et et 20
9.3 L0 =T OO OO PP T OPPPROTI 21
9.4 Universal Deferred PAyMENTS .....cccuviiieiiiiiecciiee ettt et e e e e s vee e s sabee e s sareeas 21
10. LCT 0N =T g g T ool PP PRSPPI 21
10.1  Adult Social Care Programme Board.........ccceeecuieeeieiiiiei ettt seeee e eeeee e e s e see e e 21
10.2 Consultation, engagement and iNnVOIVEMENT ProCESS .......cceeevieeeieiiiieeeeiiee et eeveee e 22
10.3  Programme ManagemMENT......cueiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereeeeeeeereeeeeeeerrererereeeerrerrereererererererene 22
0 S =NV B =Y ol £ [ o 3PNt 23
10.5 Governance of Other deCISIONS .......cceveeriiriiiieii et 23
10.6  Governance Of Placed PEOPIE ....cooiuuiiiiiiee ettt 23
10.7  Risk Share OVErsight GroUP ...cc.ueiiieiiie ettt e esbee e e e bee e e e sbae e e e eareeas 24
10.8 Roles and ReSPONSIDIlITIES......ccuuiii it 24
10.9  EMErgENCY CaASCAUE cueiviiiiieciiiieeee e e e ettt e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e s e s saabt e e e e e e e sesannbeaaeeaeessesannreenneeeeseanas 24
10.10 FAN o [V Y I ANU o [ e oY= o T V=TSRRI 24
Appendix 1 - Performance Measures ASCOF / BCF / L.l vocoieouieiieieeceeceeeee ettt ere e e 26
Appendix 2 - Summary of the Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework for Torbay (Jan ’17)............... 27
Appendix 2.1 - Adult Social Care Extract from Torbay CIPFA Local Authority Budget Comparative
Profile - ‘Family’ Group AUTNOTITIES .......oeieciiiieciiie ettt ettt e et e e e e tae e e eetr e e e e e nreeaean 32
Appendix 3 — GOVEINANCE STFUCTUIES ...cciiiiiee ittt ettt et e e e et e e e ebre e e e snteeeesbtaeeesraaeessantaeeesnnes 37
Appendix 4 - Programmes of the Joint Executive and Placed People Governance..........cccceceevcuvveeennns 38

Page 47



Appendix 5 — Strategic and Micro-commissioning fuNCtions .........cccceeeeeciiiieeie e, 39

Appendix 6 — EMErgenCY CaSCAUE .....uuiiiiiciiiee ittt ceittee ettt e sttt e e et e e s sbee e e s snteeeesantaeessastaeessnssaeessnes 41
Appendix 7 — Annual AUdit PrOSramme ........ooccuiiiiiiiiee ettt e e st e e e eata e e e esrte e e e sntaeeesanes 42
Appendix 8 - Adult Social Care Related/Impacting Trust Wide Improvement/Savings Plans ............. 44
Appendix 9 — COUNCIl GOVEINANCE .......eiiiiiieeeicciiiee ettt e ecttee e e sette e e e ette e e e sbteeeessteeeesantaeeesastaeeesasteeeesnnes 45

Page 48



1. Introductions

The ASA outlines service development areas within the budget envelope provided the
council and outlines elements of the work plan being undertaken by the Trust on behalf of
the council, over the two years 2017/18 and 2018/19. Whilst this is under review with the
serving of notice by Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust, it remains the intended
direction of travel for all parties.

It specifies roles and responsibilities, and areas of risk. It aligns with the Corporate Plan
which sets our aims to support vulnerable adults. Risks remain in respect of the scale of
savings required, the stability and sufficiency of the independent sector market, the appetite
and acceptance for change in this model of care by the community, the continuing
pressures of DOLs (Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards) as well as the impact of operational
pressures in the Integrated Care Organisation (ICO).

1.1 Scope of the Agreement

The scope of this agreement is Adult Social Care services provided for the population for
which Torbay Council is accountable. This will normally mean people who are resident in
Torbay but will also include people placed in accommodation in other areas of the country
where national policy dictates that the Council remains the accountable authority.

In addition to the services described in this Agreement, the Trust provides other services,
including those commissioned by South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning
Group, NHS England specialist, dental and screening teams. These services are
described in the contract to which this ASA is appended.

Torbay Council also commissions additional services from the Trust including, the Drug and
Alcohol service and the Lifestyles, Health Visiting and School Nursing service which are
commissioned by the Council’s Public Health team.

This agreement sits within the overall contractual agreement with the ICO between the
Torbay and South Devon Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and the Torbay Council, It
is recognised that should there be a change in contractual arrangements with the Risk
Share agreement not being reinstated during the period of notice that an independent
agreement between the Council and ICO may need to be created.

1.2 Status of agreement

As at January 2017 this agreement remains in development due to the planning cycles of
the NHS changing, the delay in details as to the Better Care Fund and the on-going
negotiations in respect of the finances and notice on the risk share agreement in 2017/18.

The statutory duties and obligations in respect of the delivery of Adult Social Care such as
meeting the needs of those clients meeting eligibility criteria and those within the Care Act
continue to be effective within the scope of this agreement.

1.3 Summary of Services to be provided
The services provided under this agreement will include:
e Provision of information and advice to people enquiring about ASC services;

e Assessment of need for social care services, including the provision of rehabilitation
and reablement services, and an Emergency Duty Service;

Page 49



e Commissioning and monitoring individual packages of care, including case
management assessments under the Mental Capacity Act, Deprivation of Liberty
safeguarding and engagement in Court proceedings;

e Monitoring of the quality, performance, and cost of services provided by Trust staff
and other providers;

e Safeguarding the needs of adults and older people living in Torbay. This includes
delivery of Torbay Council’s operational safeguarding responsibilities, servicing the
Torbay Adult Safeguarding Board, investigations of individual safeguarding
concerns and whole homes investigations;

e Ensuring that services are provided in a cost effective way whilst still offering the
choice to which people are entitled,

e Collection of income for chargeable services, including and assessment of an
individuals’ financial circumstances and ensuring that people are receiving any
welfare befits to which they are entitled;

e The collection, collation and submission of activity information and performance
returns as required operationally, by the Council and to meet local, regional and
national statistical returns;

e The collection, collation and submission of financial returns and budget reports as
required operationally, by the Council and to meet local, regional and national
statistical returns.

e Benchmarking Torbay council’s performance and cost against similar Local
Authority areas, England and the South West

e Input to JSNA and housing needs assessment as required to ensure strategic
commissioning plans and market management is based on relevant, accurate,
quality and timely data

e Procurement and monitoring and management of the local market to ensure
sustainable, good quality services

e Delivery of agreed plans including Trust Wide Improvement projects and those
agreed through the Better Care Fund including the commitments to optimise the
application of the Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG)

2. ASC Commissioning Priorities

The Council’s Corporate Plan (2015-2019) includes the following commissioning
priorities for 2017-2019. It is the Trust’s responsibility to ensure these are
underpinned by timely and accurate data collection and information provision
including, finance and performance management information on independent and
community voluntary sector contracts and service level agreements held by the
Trust:

2.1 New Model of Care

e Living Well@Home development programme being a market wide programme in
support of the new model of care and move to outcomes based contract

¢ Implementation of the NHS Standard contract for Care Homes and development of
outcomes based contracting options

e Accommodation-based, care and support strategy
Outcomes based specification for extra care housing and procurement

e Development of a vibrant voluntary and community sector

Page 50



2.3

2.5

2.6

2.7

Reducing demand through prevention and innovation

Autism

Ensure Autism awareness training for all staff that come into contact with people with

autism
Provide specialist training for key staff
Undertake assessments under the care act for adults

Delivery of associated actions arising from the Autism Self-Assessment Framework

2016

Learning Disabilities
Focus on people living full and independent lives, where secure homes and
fulfilling lives are a priority

We will help people and let them know what options they have to help them
achieve their goals

Improved accessibility to community services for those people who have a
learning disability

Improve access to employment and housing
Development of Learning Disability Strategy and action plan.

Mental Health

Delivery of the improvement plan with Devon Partnership Trust and input to
mental health service redesign with Devon Partnership Trust, Devon County
Council and South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning Group

Support for integrated personal care planning and brokerage including
implementing and embedding systems and processes for identifying resource
allocation and extracting data to inform commissioning plans.

Continue to commission through this agreement delivery of social care funded
over 65’s Mental Health provision in Torbay.

Social Care Workforce

Ensure sufficient professional leadership and support to changes to the
workforce and implementation of new ways of working

Develop capacity within the workforce to deliver the services and provide
contingency working and engagement in co-producing new approaches to care
work e.g. Trusted Assessor models

Enhanced working between the commissioning functions

Developed working arrangements for clarity of roles and responsibilities with the
growing independent and voluntary sector

Supporting engagement with independent and voluntary sector providers through
the multi-provider forum and associated groups
Housing and Care

Implement the homelessness prevention plan

Re-commissioning of accommodation based and outreach support for single

Page 51



2.8

homeless and young peoples’ homelessness support services and young parents
service

Implement the Devon protocol to support joint action on improving health
through housing

Accommodation-based care and support plan

Better use of equipment, home improvements, grants and technology including,
disabled facilities grant in line with BCF planning

Homelessness strategy delivery including, prevention and early intervention and
alternatives to temporary accommodation and improved hospital discharge

Safeguarding Adults

The Trust will Deliver operational safeguarding duty on behalf of Torbay to:

Prevent abuse and neglect wherever possible, understand the causes of abuse
and neglect, and learn from experience

Ensure all organizations embed learning from incidents and case reviews

Improve multi-agency practice and processes to improve individual safety planning
as part of care and support plansand safeguard adults in a way that supports choice
and control and improves their lives

Provide information and promote public awareness to enable people in the
community to be informed so that they know when, and how, to report suspected
abuse

Work with strategic commissioners and in partnerships with independent and
community voluntary sector organizations to identify and address issues early
preventing escalation through focused service improvement planning to reduce and
streamline the number of current safeguarding processes.

3. Current Services

3.1

Activity Assumptions

Due to the timing of the NHS submissions and the democratic processes of the local
authority the 31* Dec figures are not available for the initial version submission. These will
be updated and included for final papers. For the purposes of context setting the figures
relate to activity as of 31% December 2015 and are the basis of activity assumptions applied
in the Council planning processes for setting the 2016/17 budget.

Page 52



Table 1 - Activity Month 6 2016/17

Adults & Older
Mental People
Health Mental Paignton
Under Health Learning &
65 Over 65 Disability | Torquay | Brixham Total

Type of Care and
Support Plans
Packages of Care Under
£70 per week (at home) 31 14 13 148 125 331
Care Under between
£70 & £606 per week
(at home) 52 38 215 291 306 902
Care Under £606 per
week (Residential
based) 35 133 63 144 148 523
Care over £606 per
week (at home &

residential based) 7 7 136 28 26 204
Full Cost Care

(Residential based) - 28 1 28 38 95
Full Cost Care (at home) - 9 - 46 59 114
Total 125 229 428 685 702 2,169

3.2 Projected Activity

This is included as part of the Trust’s overarching plans and assessment of the
impact of their preventative and demand management measures which are
presently being calculated. ASCPB will consider the presentation from the Trust
in this respect and will also be part of the target setting.

3.3 Activity Baselines and Planning Assumptions

At any one time the Trust will be supporting around 2,200 adults and older people
with social needs through the provision of Adult Social Care Services and support
funded through the Adult Social Care budgets delegated to the Trust under this
Agreement

Delivery is monitored through local operational meetings, the Trust's Community
Divisional Board and the Adult Social Care Programme Board against financial run
rates and performance targets.

The Trust will operate autonomously to take any management action is necessary to
correct performance which can be taken within the parameters of this Agreement.
However, should exceptional circumstances arise, through excess demand or other
external factors not taken into account when the budget allocations underpinning this
agreement were made, the impact and any corrective actions will be discussed through
the Adult Social Care Programme Board with advice to the overarching agreements
Contract Review Meeting as well as discussion and escalation as necessary to the Risk
Share Oversight Group.

Page 53



The indicators are to be agreed in the light of the December 2016 out-turn figures
and the associated funding. Performance indicators for the service will be those
set nationally, under the Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF), or
agreed locally. A description of the ASCOF indicators is set out in Appendix 1 and
includes details of the performance and benchmarking information against each
KPI

3.4 Impact on Quality, activity and cost including improvement

The levels of run rate are based upon demand and the legal duties within the Care Act with
which the Trust have a legal duty to comply as part of their delegated responsibilities on
behalf of the council. As a result and as can be seen from the above tables (though update
awaited) there is little impact on the number of people the Trust will be expected to
support, aside from the reductions in care home placements.

Consequently although action is necessary to bring run rates back in line with delegated
budgets it is expected that the majority of cost improvements will need to be found through
one or both of the following ways of reducing the cost of each individual package of care:

i.  Tight adherence to national eligibility criteria and/or
ii.  Finding more innovative ways of meeting peoples’ needs which deliver
better solutions at lower cost.

To support this approach there have been additional quality assurance processes
developed which will continue in 20171/8. The Social Care Quality Report is reviewed and
monitored through the Adult Social Care Programme board as one example of the
oversight and contract monitoring applied to these elements.

3.5 Adult Social Care Workforce

The provision of integrated health and social care services through local multidisciplinary
teams has proved to be an effective model for delivery, able to respond to customer needs
swiftly, facilitate rehabilitation and avoid admissions to residential care and hospital where
ever possible. However, the existing model relies on a level of staff resources which will
not be sustainable in future given the additional demands. An alternative model is being
designed which will have an impact on how staff are deployed.

The new care model will be built on a strengths based approach, aligning entirely to the
model in use within the voluntary sector and Integrated Personal Commissioning. Adopting
this approach across social care, health services and the voluntary sector will bring a
synergy of approach not previously seen. For social care this is building upon the previous
‘Personalisation Strategy’ which was been successful in delivering a change of philosophy
from time based and care based provision to outcomes based commissioning.

A social care workforce strategy was published in September 2016, which made a series of
key recommendations. The recommendations in this strategy focus on strengthening
recruitment, focusing on newly qualified workers and using enhanced media/advertising.

The strategy also looks to strengthen the Social Work Workforce, by creating a Principal
Social Worker and specialist clinical roles in order to align Torbay and South Devon to
neighbouring authorities. In addition, specialist roles are recommended. These measures
will equip the workforce for a more complex workload and offer a career pathway which is
not based on management.

Page 54



In addition, the strategy proposes to address the loss of experienced Social Workers to
neighbouring authorities by introducing flexibility within Band 6 to match salaries offered in
other peninsula authorities.

3.6 Safeguarding

The Trust will continue to deliver the delegated responsibilities of Torbay Council
regarding Safeguarding Adults. The Care Act 2014 put Safeguarding Adults into a
statutory framework for the first time from April 2015. This placed a range of
responsibilities and duties on the Local Authority with which the Trust will need to
comply. This includes requirements in the following areas:

Duty to carry out enquiries
co-operation with key partner agencies;
Safeguarding Adults Boards
Safeguarding Adult Reviews
Information Sharing

Supervision and training for staff

Accountability for this will sit with the Torbay Safeguarding Adults Board (TSAB). This is a
well-established group that will provide a sound basis for delivering the new legislative
requirements. The Board will incorporate the requirements into its terms of reference and
Business Plan for 2017/18, ensuring that all relevant operational and policy changes are in
place for April implementation.

Regular performance analysis from all partner agencies will be reported to the TSAB to
give a clear picture of performance across the agencies. The Council will ensure high level
representation on the Board by the Director of Adult Social Care Services and Executive
Lead for Adult Social Care.

In order to maximise capacity Torbay SAB will work closely with the Devon SAB with an
increased number of joint sub-committees and shared business support. In addition to
this, to provide internal assurance that the Trust is fulfilling its Safeguarding Adult
requirements, the Board will have a sub-committee which will oversee performance. This
will have a particular focus on training and performance activity.

The Council has signed up to the national initiative of Making Safeguarding Personal.
This is an exciting initiative designed to measure Safeguarding Adult performance by
outcomes for the individual, rather than the current reliance on quantitative measurement of
timescales for strategy meetings and case conferences. Work will continue to be done
through TSAB during 2017/18 to implement these new measures in Torbay and to report
gualitative measures in addition to ASCOF to SCPB.

The Trust also has delegated responsibility as a provider of adult social care services to
ensure that it participate as a full partner in the TSAB and meet all regulatory
requirements in safeguarding adults and children.

Page 55



4. Delivery and Performance Management: Adult Social Care Services

The present arrangements for adult social care delivery through an integrated health arrangement
delivered by the ICO have been benchmarked against similar authorities in its family group®. The
results show -

In a comparison with similar local authorities, Torbay spends around £281.27 per head of total
population, compared to £275.73 per head across the family comparator group of most similar local
authorities.”

This demonstrates a good use of money through this contract when considering that Torbay performs
very well in the following area -:

Excellent
e delayed discharges of care due to social care

And well in these areas —

Good
e proportion of people who use services who have control over their daily life.
e overall satisfaction of people who use services with their care and support.
e Information available to carers and service users

Opportunities for improvement are as follows

o ability of people to pay for their care themselves either with a direct payment or personal
budget

e proportion of people with a learning disability living in their own homes and in paid
employment

e The proportion of older people (aged 65 and over) who were still at home 91 days after
discharge from hospital into reablement/rehabilitation services

¢ Reducing the adult social care unit cost so that performance improves in comparison to other
CIPFA family group local authorities.

Audit South West’s January 2017 audit report looking at the Trust’s care assessment process has
confirmed that “the Trust’s arrangements for the assessment of the care needs of referred individuals,
and determination of eligibility to receive publicly funded care and support is in line with the Care Act
2014 and are appropriate. Staff are able to access a range of training and operational support
mechanisms to help them discharge these key responsibilities.”

Appendix 2 provides further detail in respect of the areas above

! Torbay’s family group of comparator authorities are groups of authorities that central government
consider have similar patterns of deprivation and age profiles etc.

% N.B. It should be noted that the ASA applies to the delegation of authority and activity in respect of
Adult Social Care and does not include Children’s services. The ICO’s use of funds to deliver these
services should therefore focus on adult social care when comparisons are made with other
authorities.

Page 56



[Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust Final Internal Audit Report: Care Assessment Process Report
Reference: TSD08/17 January 2017

Source Page 34 CIPFA Local Authority budget comparator profile Torbay Comparator Report November 2016
Source ASCOF and Personal Social Services: Expenditure and Unit Costs, England - 2015-16:
http://www.content.digital.nhs.uk/catalogue/PUB22240 ]

Unit cost improvement

The Trust will work with Torbay Council and SDTCCG to develop and implement a number of ASC
cost improvement projects as part of wider system savings plans to:

e Ensure expenditure and performance controls are in place to manage the Council’s
expenditure on ASC and exposure to risk

e Rationalise commissioning function and create cost effective commissioning support for
Torbay Council and the ICO

e Reshape the Market to increase quality and value for money incentivising independence and
reducing reliance on residential and nursing care

¢ Reduce adult social care unit costs through better use of supported living as an alternative to
residential care and increase use of direct payments and payments cards

e Manage increasing demand pressures and reduce low level packages of care by ensuring
conversations and criteria signpost new referrals to other offers of support before statutory
services are considered and a review of low level packages of care

e Reduction in cost of social work activity including, redesign of skill mix and workforce to
implement care model, a new support planning process and protocol for self -funders.

This builds on sound and fair performance as demonstrated in Appendix 2.1 an extraction
in respect of the Adult Social Care element of the CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy) 2016/17 charts for Torbay. The measures are against Torbay’s
government identified ‘family group’ of similar authorities. The tables demonstrate a
reasonable performance with opportunity for improvement.

5. Service Developments

Key developments in the way ASC services are provided, and any changes in what
services will be provided, are outlined in the following paragraphs. Where appropriate the
planning and implementation of these changes will involve internal and external
consultation with key stakeholders as set out in the Decision Tracker which is managed by
the Trust and taken through the Adult Social Care Programme Board. Where appropriate
the Decision Tracker will also clarify accountability for decision making in these
developments.

The new care model will target resources to those in greatest need and provide a
universal service to allow people to be as independent as possible and be connected with
their local community. The new care model will require significant change and we will
need to ensure that we support staff and managers through complex change.

To support the resilience and sustainability of services, we will work closely with the
independent and voluntary sector in relation to co-production of solutions that provide
solutions for ‘what matters to me’.

The Ageing Well Programme, led by the Community Development Trust, and information
and advice services are enablers to improve access to preventative services and
providing alternatives to traditional social care commissioned services and promoting
self-care with increased enablement, independence and wellbeing.

Page 57


http://www.content.digital.nhs.uk/catalogue/PUB22240

5.1 Social Care Workforce Plan

Delivery of Care Act compliance is a key deliverable for our social care staff and in 2017/18
we will develop and implement a workforce plan for social care services which focuses on:

e Working in partnership with our community, addressing the issues faced by
our most vulnerable members;

e Reuvisiting our approach to ensure we are inclusive with users, carers and
community organisations — using strengths based approaches as our
principal theoretical approach and operating model;

e Promoting the reputation of social work in Torbay through
engagement with users and the co-design of our approach;

e Supporting staff to reach their potential using a capability framework;
responding to the Social Work health check and by providing support
to improve resilience;

e Delivering a high quality, safe and well respected service through use of
guality, safety and governance processes.

In 2016/17 TSDFT undertook the Social Work Health Check

The health check indicated that there are arrangements in place for structures such as
flexible working, staff welfare services and exit interviews. Despite increasing allocation
lists, Social Workers did not report unmanageable caseloads or sickness due to stress.
However, stress is a constant issue for Social Work. Although Social Workers do find time
to attend training, and they find it useful, they feel it needs improvement in terms of
specialist areas and opportunities for professional development.

These key areas were identified as performance and improvement priorities:

¢ Reducing the amount of process and computer inputting
e Improving training & CPD

¢ Clarifying arrangements for supervision

e Focusing on wellbeing and resilience

These areas will be addressed via an action plan in 2017/18.

5.2 Strength Based Approach

The Care Act 2014 requires local authorities to consider the person’s own strengths and
capabilities, and what support might be available from their wider support network or within
the community to help in considering what else other or alongside the provision of care
and support might assist the person in meeting the outcomes they want to achieve. In
practice, this means operationalising strengths based approaches into the care model.

A strengths based approach is being embedded and scaled up within the new Health
and Wellbeing Teams. It will become the golden thread which runs through all our
interactions with people, both in terms of how we approach care and support in our
teams and how our teams in turn approach care and support with the people they
serve. To support the deployment of a strengths based approach we have developed
the following principles for the implementation:

e We will empower staff to use their skills and experience;

Page 58



o We will let go of care management approaches;
¢ We will focus on community involvement;

¢ We will concentrate on the assets and strengths of the people who use our
services, our staff and our partners.

5.3 New Approach to Person Centred support Planning

During the course of 2017/18 the Trust will continue to explore new approaches to
undertaking support planning. This will include furthering existing schemes for people with
learning disabilities and undertaking wider proof of concept work in partnership with
independent, voluntary and third sector organisations.

5.4 Wellbeing coordinators

There will be continued development of Wellbeing Coordinators within Health and
Wellbeing teams. They will be a bridge between the statutory, independent and voluntary
sector providing alternatives to traditional social care commissioned services. There will be
a focus on reducing social isolation and providing support for activities that social care
cannot do as they are required to focus on more complex work.

We will develop new approaches to support planning, building on the learning so far,
which maximise the use our contracts with partners in the independent and the voluntary
sector and best value.

5.5 Standardisation of process

We will continue to build on the standardisation work that streamlines our systems and
processes making sure the most appropriate staff focus on the right work. We will build on
the strength of delivering standardisation across the Bay whilst keeping a local focus for
Paignton and Brixham and Torquay. We will use benchmarking to consider further
opportunities for standardisation and the delivery of productivity and cost improvement.

5.6 Self directed support - including direct payments

Self-directed support using initiatives such as Individual Service Funds alongside Direct
Payments will be encouraged. An infrastructure will be developed to support this,
enabling people to identify their options, make informed decisions and have mechanisms
that make the right thing to do the easy thing to do.

An example of this is the implementation of Direct Payment cards that took place in
2016/17
Development of the personal assistant market will be a key delivery element in 2017/18

5.7 Care Model Implementation

Health and wellbeing teams referred to in the Operational Plan will be providing a range of
functions details of which are below:

Encourage self-care, healthy lifestyles and maintain independence
Help to grow community assets/develop resilience;

Assessment, support planning and professional social work support;
Provide rehabilitation;

Provide nursing care;

e Integrated medical management of people with complex co-morbidities;

Page 59



e Reactive care coordination of people with deteriorating complex health issues and
frail elderly;

e Continue to imbed and mainstream Learning Disabilities and working with the
voluntary sector to support the delivery of this

e Proactive care co-ordination of people with complex needs and frail elderly;

¢ Proactive integrated long term conditions support;

¢ High quality discharge support from hospital to home, integrated planning and
seamless handover of care;

e Provide falls prevention services;

¢ Provide palliative care as part of end of life care pathway.

In addition to its organizationally based governance structures the impact of these changes
on community based care is such that the schedule of development and roll-out will be
provided to and monitored through the Adult Social Care Programme board in respect of the
community activity

5.8 Service for people with learning disabilities including Autism

Following a public consultation 2015/16 where a decision was made by the Trust board to
close Baytree House, all associated work outlined in the 2016/17 Annual Strategic
agreement has been achieved.

Work relating to people with learning disabilities and autism continues to progress. During
2017/18 work will continue to ensure people with a learning disability and or autism receive
the right support, when they need it. To achieve this:

e A Learning Disability Strategy will be developed with clear action plan and
accountability between partner organisations

e Development of a targeted action plan detailing improvements to be made following
the Autism Self-Assessment Framework 2016.

Key to successfully addressing the needs of people with learning disabilities will be:
e The development of data collection relating to learning disability and autism to aid
understanding of demand and pressures within the health and social care system.

o A skilled and effective workforce trained with specialist skills in social care
assessment and engagement with workforce development associated with Devon
Transforming Care Programme.

e Supporting the people to remain independent for as long as possible through
effective accommodation and accommodation based support. This will be achieved
through the creation of a Supported Living service specification and framework for
providers in Torbay and link to work undertaken by Devon County Council.

e Providing effective support to enable people with learning disabilities and / or autism
to gain and sustain employment.

5.9 Residential and day Services for Older People

Market management strategy to support and shape the local market for adult social care
will be produced in the first quarter of 2017 led by council commissioners.

5.10 Reviews

Reviews will continue within zones and specialist services as part of business as usual. In

Page 60



addition to this there is a review team who concentrate on high cost packages review.
This team in 2017/18 will continue to focus on reviews of independent living providers with
support from Commissioners to consider the care and accommodation costs and driving
best value.

There will also be a review and further refinement of standardised processes and systems
for high cost packages. This work will be ongoing throughout the year with outcomes
reported through existing reporting arrangements.

5.11 Programme Management Office (PMO) arrangements to ensure
delivery

This work will be coordinated through the Transformation Team, and the governance
arrangements that are in place within the organisation, with progress being reported
through the ASCPB. The Trust Wide Improvement Programme is detailed in the main
Operational Plan to which this forms an appendix. A key programme of work impacting
on Adult Social Care is the Placed People and Continuing Health Care work. This will be
part of the development of the new model of care and a sustainable system which is
detailed in the overarching Operational Plan and detailed Programmes/Projects

5.12 Key Milestones

These are to be agreed in line with the performance indicators and Trust Wide
Improvement initiatives in advance of the contract year.

6. Mental Health

The Council has statutory responsibilities for providing services to eligible people with
poor mental health under the Mental Health Act 1983 and NHS and Community Act
1990, which are delegated to the Trust. These include:

e Approval and provision of ‘sufficient’ numbers of Approved Mental Health
Practitioners (AMHP);

e guardianship under section 7;

¢ financial and Budgetary responsibilities for the whole Mental Health budget,
including activity below assigned to DPT.

Devon Partnership Trust (DPT) will be commissioned by the Council to operationally deliver
these under 65 social care mental health services in Torbay. This is in compliance with
Torbay Council’s statutory duties under the Care Act, Mental Health Act and other relevant
legislation, including:

e Aftercare under section 117;

e Care management services, including operational brokerage of social care
packages.

Strategic Commissioning Support for this arrangement will be provided by Torbay
Council’s Joint Commissioning Team including, co-location of the Trust mental health
commissioner and day to day work allocation and support.

Professional Practice oversight of AMHP needs to be defined and agreed. This
arrangement will be governed by this annual strategic agreement and a contract between
DPT and the Trust.

The priorities for the commissioned service in 2017 to 2018 are to be outlined in the Joint

Page 61



Improvement Plan (JIMP) between the Council, and DPT. Close working with other
commissioners such as the CCG will see this developed and monitored through Social Care
Programme Board Quarterly performance and finance reports will be submitted to the
ASCPB. A governance structure is in place with the Council, the Trust and Devon
Partnership Trust. It is envisaged greater alignment of governance and strategic approach
will be achieved with Devon County Council during 2017/18. It is expected that during
2017/18 employment of the Approved Mental Health Practitioners will transfer from the
Council to Devon Partnership Trust.

7. Quality Assurance

7.1 National: CQC (Care Quality Commission)

The Commission will make sure health and social care services provide people with safe,
effective, and compassionate high-quality care and encourage care services to improve.
They monitor, inspect, and regulate services to make sure they meet fundamental
standards of quality and safety and publish what they find, including performance ratings to
help people choose care.

7.2 Local: Torbay and South Devon NHSFT

The Trust will provide quality assurance of both its own integrated business activity and
the services it commissions on behalf of the community. A quality and safety report is
being developed, which will report all social care quality, safety and performance metrics
guarterly. Interim performance monitoring is via the ASCPB; which receives performance
reports and updates on ad hoc issues.

A Quality Assurance Framework has been developed and is now in use with
independent and voluntary sector providers to provide assurance in regard to the
quality of care provided to people in their own homes and in care homes.

7.3 Multi-agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH)

Since October 2015 the Single Point of Contact for safeguarding adults has been co-
located with Torbay Council Children’s Services

There will be a continued focus on ensuring that all staff have the appropriate level of
training for their role, as set out in the Torbay Safeguarding Adults Multi-Agency Training
Policy.

8. Finance and Risks

8.1 Budget Allocations

The allocations to be included in the Risk Share Agreement (RSA) 2017/18 as per the
agreed five year RSA September 2015 is £35.6m. The council positively adjusted this by
£0.860m to accommodate the results of the care homes judicial review part one resulting in
a figure of £36.460m. The council has also made further commitment to the integrated
system for the 2017/18 year adjusting the budget by an additional £0.1m resulting in a final
budget of £36.560m. In addition the council will pass over the Independent Living Fund
(ILF) grant in full.

The Council will honour its 9% share of any ICO deficit. This is full year so will be % of those
values if ASA/RSA is to end of December 2017 given the January 2017 serving of notice on
the RSA by the ICO

Page 62



8.2 Financial Risk Share

The Risk Share Agreement (RSA) developed as part of the transaction creating the ICO

took effect from its inception on 1% October 2015. The share of financial risk going
forward is a function of the wider performance of the Trust, rather than specifically in
relation to Adult Social Care.

The financial baseline from the Council and the CCG commissioners funding the 1CO will
appear in as the RSA appendix to the Operational plan.

8.2.1 Notice served on Risk Share Agreement

It is to be noted that the ICO have served notice on the RSA as of January 2017, the notice
period being twelve (12) months.

Whilst the intent is to be able to continue to work in partnership and renegotiate the RSA
the current position is that this ASA is effective for nine months of the financial year to
which it relates.

If the current RSA finishes end of December 2017 in line with recent ICO notice of
withdrawal, then the current Better Care Fund arrangements between the Council and
South Devon and Torbay CCG in support of the RSA will also cease and will need to be
revised in line with national BCF guidance.

8.2.2 Efficiency Risks:

e Delivery of the Trust wide Improvement Programme;

e Agency and temporary staffing costs;

¢ Increasing costs of medical technologies;

e Rate of expenditure in both Adult Social Care and Place People;

e Delayed delivery of financial benefits associated with the implementation of the
revised care model

8.2.3 Risks pertinent to Adult Social Care expenditure include:
e The scaled of savings required;
e The Judicial Review challenging Care Home Feed set by the Council;
e Insufficient capacity in the domiciliary care market;
e Sufficiency in the care home market;
e Community Support for Change;
e Impact of case law relating to the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards;
e Pressures within the out of hours Emergency Duty Service;
e Impact of the Care Act;
e The increasing complexity of needs

e The risk within the Risk Share Agreement in respect of any cumulative overspend
being shared between three organisations.

Page 63



8.3 Revenue Budget2017/18 and 2018/19

The budget allocated by the Council for Adult Social care Service is set out in 8.1 above

. The budget is predicated on the ICO achieving the commitments that it has made within
the Trust Wide Improvement programmes.

The Council will review the budget annually and in the light of the negotiations as to future
Risk Share and pooled budget arrangements, whilst continuing to consider a multi-year
agreement the appropriate direction of travel.

8.4 Care Home Fees Judicial Review Appeal

The commitment of £0.860m adjustment to the RSA set out in 8.1 is an interim assessment
of the increase in care home fees associated the judicial review established in 2015/16.
The Council have agreed to fund this in addition to the original opening baseline, along with
any additional settlement agreed or instructed in the final decision on the judicial review
appeal. The appeal is now scheduled to be heard in June 2017 so this outstanding risk is
carried forwards.

In respect of 2017/18 an make an interim decision on fees will be made pending the
outcome of the judicial review.

8.5 Better Care Fund

The guidance and directions in terms of the BCF for 2017/18 will not be available until first
guarter 2017. Once received the BCF commitments will form an addendum to the ASA.

9. Client Charges

9.1 Power to charge

With the introduction of the Care Act, the Council now has a ‘power to charge for
services’ whereas previously, there was a ‘duty to charge’ for long term
residential/nursing care and a ‘power to charge’ for non-residential care.

The Council has made the decision to utilise the ‘power to charge’ for both residential and
non-residential services. The Trust will discharge this power on behalf of the Council and in
doing so will apply sections 14 and 17 of the Care Act and the Care and Support (charging
and assessment of resources) regulations 2014.

9.2 Residential and Non Residential Charges

Charges per unit of care for residential services will be amended each April as directed by
the Department of Health new rates.

Charges per unit of care for non-residential care services will be set annually through the
Council’s charging policy.

Client contributions are based on the level of care a person requires and an assessment
of their financial circumstances, including capital and income. The Trust will ensure that
individual financial assessments are updated at least annually (but more frequently where
the financial circumstances of an individual service user are known to have changed
during the course of the year).

Consequently the charges made to an individual may change in the course of a year if

Page 64



there are changes in their financial circumstance or the level of care they require.

The Trust will ensure that all clients in receipt of a chargeable service receive a full
welfare benefit check from the Finance and Benefits team and an individual financial
assessment in person for new assessments where possible.

There is no charge for Intermediate Care or Continuing Health Care services.

9.3 Carers

Services provided specifically to carers will, in principle, not be subject to a charge but this
will remain under review dependent upon resource allocation. These are services provided
directly to the carer (rather than the person that they care for) which include open access
services such as Carers Emergency Card and Carers Education Courses, and simple
services provided as a result of an assessment including emotional support or one-off
direct payments for a carer’s break.

9.4 Universal Deferred Payments

The Care Act 2014 established a requirement for a universal deferred payments
scheme which means that people should not be forced to sell their homes in their
lifetime to pay for the cost of their care.

A deferred payment is, in effect, a loan against the value of the property which has to be
repaid either from disposal of the property at some point in the future or from other sources.
The scheme has now been running since April 2015 as all councils in England are required
to provide a deferred payment scheme for local residents who move to live in residential or
nursing care, own a property and have other assets with a value below a pre-determined
amount (currently £23,250). They must also have assessed care needs for residential or
nursing care.

The Council’s deferred payments policy is now fully implemented as part of the policy the
Trust has the ability to recover any reasonable costs it may incur in setting up a Deferred
Payment Arrangement in addition to the cost of any services provided.

These management costs may be included in the deferred payment total or be paid as and
when they are incurred.

The interest rate payable on deferred payments is advised by the Department of Health
and changed every six months. Interest will be added to the balance outstanding on the
deferred arrangement on a compound daily basis, in accordance with the regulations.

10. Governance

10.1 Adult Social Care Programme Board

The Adult Social Care Programme Board remains the contract management Board for this
Agreement. The Board will drive adult social care and improvement plans. Its Terms of
Reference cover the following areas:

e To assist the development of the strategic direction of adult social care services
supporting the new context faced by the Council and Trust in terms of public sector
reform, reducing public resources and potential devolution;

e To receive regular reports and review progress against transformation and cost
improvement plans differentiating between those areas incorporated within the
budget settlement and any cost pressures over and above this;

Page 65



e To receive reports and review performance against indicators and outcomes
included in the Annual Strategic Agreement providing and/or participating in
regular benchmarking activities;

e To monitor action plans against any in-year areas of concern, raising awareness to a
wider audience, as appropriate;

e Todiscuss and determine the impact of national directives translating requirements
into commissioning decisions for further discussion and approval within the
appropriate forums. This will include the initial list of service improvement areas
planned for 2017-19 and onwards;

e To discuss and develop future Annual Strategic Agreements; co- ordinate the
production of the Local Account.

e To escalate issues of concern or delivery to the Contract Review
e meeting and the Risk Share Oversight Group as appropriate

e Toreceive and review the progress of the Trust Wide Improvement Plans impacting
on Adult Social Care

The Adult Social Care Programme Board sits within the governance framework for the
overall contract, which is set out in Appendix 3

10.2 Consultation, engagement and involvement process

As the Accountable Authority the Council will lead consultation processes where the need
for change is being driven by the needs and requirements of the Council beyond those of
delegated activities to the Trust. The Trust is committed to supporting the consultation
and engagement processes the Council undertakes in relation to service changes
recognising the Council’s statutory duty and good practice.

As a provider the Trust will engage all stakeholders in service redesign and quality
assurance including, playing an active role with Torbay Council Health Overview and
Scrutiny Committee. Additionally the Trust will be engaged with the CCG Locality Teams
where the primary focus will be on consultation in regard to NHS services.

Where service changes will result in variation in the level or type of service received by
individual service users, the Trust will comply with statutory guidance on the
review/reassessment of care needs and ensure that those service users affected are given
appropriate notice of any changes.

The Council, the Trust, and the CCG will continue to support the role of Healthwatch and
the community voluntary sector in involving people who use services in key decisions as
well as service improvement and design. The Council also expects the Trust to engage
actively with service users and the voluntary sector in Torbay in developing new service
solutions. This will apply irrespective of whether the service changes are driven by the
necessities of the current financial environment or the need to ensure the continual
evolution and development of services.

10.3 Programme Management

Oversight of delivery and programme management for the programmes of work set out in
this Agreement will be provided through the Trust's Programme Management Office.
Delivery will be tracked by the Trust’'s Programme Management Office (PMO), monitored
through standing internal meetings (such as the Community Divisional Board) and reported
to the ASCPB.

Page 66



10.4 Key Decisions

Whilst this agreement places accountabilities on the Trust for the delivery and
development of Adult Social Care Services, the Trust may not act unilaterally to make or
enact decisions if they meet the criteria of a ‘key decision’ as described in the standing
orders of the Council or are included in a list of ‘Reserved Items’ shared between the
parties as part of the agreement and which would be listed in an appendix.

This requirement reiterates section 22.3 of the Partnership Agreement under which
services were originally transferred from the Council to Torbay Care Trust. Key
decisions must be made by the Council in accordance with its constitution.

In Schedule 8 of the Partnership Agreement a key decision is defined as a decision in
relation to the exercise of council functions, which is likely to:

e Result in incurring additional expenditure or making of savings which are more than
£250,000;

e Result in an existing service being reduced by more than 10% or may cease
altogether;

o Affect a service which is currently provided in-house which may be outsourced or
vice versa and other criteria stated within schedule 8 of the Partnership Agreement.

In addition when determining what constitutes a key decision consideration should be
given to the possible level of public interest in the decision. The higher the level of
interest the more appropriate it is that the decision should be considered to be a ‘key
decision’.

10.5 Governance of other decisions

Governance of other decisions will vary according to the scope and sensitivity of the
decision being made. To ensure clarity about whether decisions are to be taken by the
Trust, Council or CCG and at what level the decision should be taken a ‘Decision Tracker
has been developed.

The Decision Tracker will be reviewed, managed and updated by the ASCPB
throughout the year.

10.6 Governance of Placed People

With the negotiations that will take place during 2017/18 in respect of a revised relationship
between the parties with notice having been served on the Risk Share (expiring 31
December 2017), there is a need to increase the focus on those areas where direct social
care impact can be or needs to be identified. This will support discussions and options. In
respect of Placed People, Adult Social care will be clearly identified and reported alongside
health, Continuing Health Care, with clear allocation between the two as to clients, activity
and spend. The pooled arrangements continue to report within the existing structure whilst
oversight will be undertaken through Social Care Programme Board for information
purposes with the papers that will be enhanced to reflect this delineation which are
reported to the Joint Executive

This is displayed diagrammatically in Appendix 4

Acknowledging the change in the Risk Share Agreement and being cognisant of
its implications to adult social care elements of the service delivery by the ICO,
the framework for Council Decision taking is included at Appendix 9 for reference

Page 67



10.7 Risk Share Oversight Group

The Risk Share Agreement (RSA) describes the framework for the financial management
of the multi-year investment by health and social care commissioners for the services
provided by the Trust. The RSA sits alongside the NHS Standard Contract and this
Agreement. Whilst does not override the quality or administrative elements it does
supersede all financial components.

The implementation of the RSA will be monitored by the Risk-Share Oversight Group
(RSOG), which includes senior officer representation from the Council and Directors from
the Trust and CCG, to provide strategic oversight of the RSA.

A diagram of the governance structure is included Appendix 3

10.8 Roles and Responsibilities

10.8.1 Torbay Council Executive Lead Adults and Children

The role of Executive Lead is held by an elected Member of Torbay Council, as part of
their duties they will sit as the Council’s representative on the Trust Board to provide
oversight, challenge, and liaison.

10.8.2 Director of Adult Social Services

The role of Director of Adult Social Services (DASS) is a statutory function, and is fulfilled
by a senior officer of the Council who is accountable for all seven responsibilities of the role
set out in statutory guidance dated May 2006. However responsibility for Professional
Practice and Safeguarding are delegated to the Deputy DASS employed within the
professional practice directorate of the Trust.

10.8.3 Assistant Director of Adult Social Services

The role will provide professional leadership for social care services and lead on workforce
planning, implementing standards of care, safeguarding and support the running of the
Adult Social Care Programme Board. The role also oversees the Deprivation of Liverty
Safeguards and Guardianship arrangements in Torbay.

10.8.4 Organisational Roles and Responsibilities

The partnership working inherent within the Torbay model is supported by further
clarification of the organizational roles pertaining to the local authority as the commissioning
partner of the contract and the Trust as the providing partner including commissioning
responsibilities within its delegated activities. A range of activities for reference is included
in Appendix 5 — Strategic and Micro-commissioning functions

10.9 Emergency Cascade

Please see Appendix 6 for details of Torbay Council’s Emergency Planning Roles in
Council’'s Emergency cascade. The Trust will be expected, through best endeavors, to
identify social care senior officers to be part of emergency cascade, to coordinate delivery
of Adult Social Care in an emergency situation.

10.10 Annual Audit Programme

Audit South West (ASW) as the Internal Audit provider to Torbay and South Devon NHS
Foundation Trust will undertake the following actions and requirements:-

Page 68



Consult with the Director of Adults Services (DAS) of Torbay council on proposed internal
audit coverage

Provide to the DAS copies of assignment reports that relate to control arrangements for
Adult Services
Provide an annual report to the DAS on the adequacy and effectiveness of the overall

system of internal control for the Trust, and in particular, those areas directly affecting Adult
Services.

Detail is included in appendix 7

Page 69



Appendix 1 - Performance Measures ASCOF / BCF / L.L

Distilled from the Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF), Better Care Fund (BCF) & Local
Indicators (Version 3.7)

Due to the timing of the operational plan as required by NHS England this year, the out-turns on which the

targets would normally be agreed for Adult Social Care are not available. These will be negotiated with
partners with an update to be provided to February Council

The latest figures discussed at Social Care Programme Board form this appendix interim

Page 70



T/ obed

Parformanos Mesurm from the 508 Socal Care Oufoomas Framasork [RSO00]
Batter Cara Fund [BOF) & Local indators 201817
Warikon 1.3

Torbay and South Devon INHS |

[HE Faurgatian Trdst
[ran | swaws | ammna | s |

- e piber [ p— Mgl | Bt | Mot | o - o | s k[ it | ot | ot | vempl | Tewd | v | reps
aitiare || trwagn | Sevegn || Sovays | sewrge | Srwagn | Sregs
L i
[P ———— T [T=— ) =gy = o e o SR T A Y o B i o Ty ma | T E ma T ™ m ma = ] G | mw | = | w3 ma
b
e e T ettt Th b o g e S B e T el W
[ leg il
Taw paaslin [l i . remst 3 s e B aa
== e [ = =y fornciin b o SERLLH Al Tl e R i o Ty o | mam T N T E] EH ED ESES]
| s by [
i Josn i i i i g e b T
e vy
LR L T T
[N L et A T g e o iy g i ey i i | AETF | My | B G e madiers [roriey b gk e of v sy msivig Sk wopyard sl [ L o= = 3 - =gl LT
i g ey [ o i v
I o i [
[EeTE— B
e s v g il
e m——— —— g [C= ) == [er=mprp——m—— -y - mm | mm | mm | e | LT = = - g | = | B
e my e s ol bl e e, sl
B e B e T
b il b ey il e g g B s by e b
[ T o T o g . o e i b o s e | PR | Wiy | e e = [ £ g | s
|trm i e iy iy T e v Seutndal T e i gl sl e s
frim e oy e et b A g
T sk
o s b b . Tl b i g by
o comr§ Wi et U Bt mp ke
a1 et T T [E——— = I L T e L [ e ————— ] o ER] wie | e | s - @ B ] - - no
rm i e b ma vy S s o e o
|t [ by .
[T frm i e st gy Bl ey e
o 10 v gy o TICTR | Mimeinl | o i v Fremrae— [ | e £ e £ ™ ) ET) =g ) [T
(o LB gt o e s i 4 ke il b pnid =) T T ) i1 T ur . B e i WM o B g i T L
[rrsery— ey
o oyl e i e v el o By b o el
e
== ] | T N S S B = N R
|eemteams e i i £ | i gl B
= s
R s
e o
]
- Ny
™ N e e o T i b o o o i g |
—
e I i T e s
fraiin i dims i vl
P Ty =TS T =ty r——— FEih 8 vem e g1 T by b 0 g e i o ETl B £ T W | mom ™ [ W | mow | mm | now
e e Amm v b i iy i
e T b il e e s o i
W e T
b sy

Pagui ors

27



2/ obed

=T Fowem | Bl | 35200 Pt [E T ——— ECClE
i p— ™
i
frac [ AP | Wiy | g Ly s
T T j [ —— .
e i o P fom = M
(R . ——
W gl
freaise e b Fom rudmamrvimely o gy el e DT Ly
iy
b et g iy iyl Tk e B g bl
 E e e e g g pe ] T [ e— [y ey e—) T TR N ey —p— A | e | mm | @& e oA | mae | - ) EE EC ES I RS
= L - i
[ - e o e
b e T o man mmm i s rmn e B s e e
iy =
-
T pmr 1T Sramriie o carwn w roar Bl By e m | TR | B | e St v T L | e e = ) ] | e |
trim |y e
ET ) e rv—"r————— ST TR Ty — | 3 = [ Er BETE BT - - | = ) )
o -
P ————— JFESTI FFITN PRSI Fy— -_ O B =3 B £ -
i 1 D pomem e s by e BB || | My | v e o TETLIE w2 e pame e e e i ] S 3 | =] =1 =] = =
aritn e vn e )
[
FT S ere—— ey —— Ty TR TR iy — Y S ey F— —r— — CENEE T - - | = ) )
LT L) e e prp———— gy =y T ————— e —Y p—y— p—— w— EC N R - - | = ) )
- g it e remer e wa en
i o s st gyt e P
[
Eu.ﬂh—i.—n—n—l—-ﬂ.ﬂd-ﬂ-—— RETE | Wiy | 8w B vt o b ] e Fn | ET o =a | oed [T m ma | ma ma
T T L —— W g e |- mimi e g e i B g T
B e T b e B B g e o o e, T oy b e
e il L L T
e T S
b e w2 e s ooy ek B g
-
[ femamd armde = bom i o DETE | My | Mg Fe il wn e on e o B i i mm mA ) CERETT ™ EE ECD ECEEEEE S
T T L p———— = - —a
[ sl
- -
e ———— e ———————— A T e ) N EEEE A = a | um | mm | [ mw
T = L S Y
rasit W g e T
B e T e a2 s - L g g 7 i e o ks 8 B Ton ok
[SrE——— b i+ v e s g vy B
e e iy i ] b B o o ek TP " o e e,
fim m rn em n e e i e e e
. T T
- i B
) ST
[T T p—— ey prmp— gy T~ r— [ = e ] as 28 | myma | auao | mam | = o EE EAE AR
o B e a i e i o P | s L Tty e
i L e (R . i nm i
L Sy v o B bl el B whhh mea | ARCDR | Wiy | = T B [T [} [T [cT 1 T3 ] T3 | mme | s | mam | o= ™ | = | = | e | =
o vl cam Baei ] ok ey ol [ - e i i e s i, By e g e e el
- [ hmes i
0 ey v o e B g el B Wk w | ARDE | Wiy | T T | L8 T £ [T AT e E L] [ e B =) @ | = | = | e | =
[ s i i, By e b
[ Lo
P o 8 B s s i
Faplan

28



¢) abed

B P | G EEE LTI —— TEATE P e St
w—t o
-2 p - = [CET - .
B b b B oy
b b T
| Cg e — = =T O L e T
e R b G B N T L  a
B ]
Tl b o B
A i prrrd e e e e o e m | Wamiy | e o TR b b v e
e
- - armi | vty [ b i i e L —y—
madiaar dham i i bl b, el b
- L
E—u T e i [TETE P T
L -T8 Caetin Cingran s B = =1 ==

Pagul ori

29

EOED I EaEE s
ot | Cosotn | gl | Tepe | e | regs
o [FESCN ety
) = ) =T} - mow |
£ ED - - ] ]
e === ==
_-_q T T
e oo | damm | sLmm




v/ abed

30

BT Praem | Somlain EE [T e EES T = ———— E e A E A e B e T
i La——— i | ot | wm | mpnt | g | s | ™ ™
Ry [Py e PR rev ey e,
o [r—— BETF | st | Bkt g T - — o | mm | e | samm | serm | s | ma | oram | mow
P i e e i
e 1o e
e Tewn
ram
| T e e pr—— TTF | B | b v | ST | e E) W = o S D ™ e W | = [ ww | =
faamc-mce e~ e | S——— e E e Bl T i Bl TR B wila ma B =4 B Bl gl B TR
s 1 i - s irs mad By g by e b
[ T o et oy et e e Bl B | RRDR | Aol | bt g T e o —r— EF R e TR T T TR TR A S ) EE ETd B AR D
N iy [ i bl b
B T ] A
b ar TE
ras.
D et T o pregeie o s s B B b P WETF | B | b e | = R ) e | um | e | = | R EEa ) ) | = [ W | nm
r i s wam
S —— e —————— [ Jr—— — S —— | moem | mom | we | e | e | e - - - - = s | nm | mew | om | o
— S E— T E— — — —
[T g e gy [ =gy ==} T e Py CER D = o) o) ) EE ED IR
[ o b e
e T
e Tewn
| I ey ——————— T N [ — o ——— T L P —p— = e T | My | ) EEEDD ESECSSEED
it s msim e e ey b i e e '
rren B Vg v i e i e o T By
T
— e t——— e —————————————— T e ——
T P Ty T p—p—g—] e = | i | e 3 3 wa ) ) i o] = e ) ) e D
ST T —— e T T | A e 3 - e ) e
ai -
h.—m—.-u.n..u...—-..n..—u.q_n.._
Faguid o



G, abed

Appendix 2 - Summary of the Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework for Torbay (Jan '17)

THE AD SOCIAL CARE OUTCOMES FRAMEWORK FOR TORB AN *17)
Torbay value Cnnp:::s':;:lmp England average  Unit of measure Trend Trend guide
0 |1A: Social care-related quality of life score 201518 350 107 123 £l 19.1 % Higher is better
@ |18: The proportion of people who use services who have control over their daly life 2015018 4m E15 70.1 & 78.8 % \,a_/"' Higher is better
1C{1): Proportion of people using social care who receive seff-directed support 201314 3.155 628 td 572 81.8 % /""-F. Higher is better
[ |1C{2): Proportion of people using social care who receive direct payments 201314 790 157 151 & 19.1 % .__/ Higher is better
@ |1C{1A}: The proportion of people who use services who receive seff-directed support 201518 1204 236 & 960 & aa.8 % / Higher is better
@ |1C(1B): The proportion of carers who receive self-directed support 2015018 308 B34 783 ) 777 % / Higher is better
1C{2A): The proportion of people who use services who receive direct payments. 201518 309 267 202 231 % M“-\,‘ Higher is better
@ |1C{2B): The proportion of carers who receive direct payments 201518 308 834 & 57.9 & 674 % / Higher is better
@ |1D: Carerreported quality of ife 2014115 345 a3 B0 ] 78 % Higher is better
@8 |1E: The proportion of adults with a leaming disability in paid employment 201518 15 39 87 & 58 % /\...... Higher is better
1F: The proportion of adults in contact with secondary mental health semvices in paid employment 201518 - EN 67 % /‘-‘ - Higher is better
@ |1G: The propertion of adults with a leaming disability who live in their own home or with their family 201518 253 701 & TG4 & 754 % /M—' Higher is better
1H: The proportion of adults in contact with secondary mental health services lving independently, with or without support 201518 - 632 58.8 % /"' b Higher is better
11{1) The proportion of people who use services who reported that they had as much social contact as they would like 201518 305 404 470 454 % ._._N Higher is better
11{2) The proportion of carers who reported that they had as much social contact as they would ke 201415 3T 415 388 335 % Higher is better
& |24(1): Permanent admissicns of younger adults (aged 18 to 64) to residential and nursing care homes, per 100,000 population 201314 25 364 & 18.3 ¥ 144 [Rate per 100,000 /_v Lower is better
2A[1): Long-term support needs of younger adults (aged 13-84) met by admission to residential and nursing care homes, per 100,000 population 201518 12 16.3 182 133 [Rate per 100,000 / Lower is better
2A{2): Permanent admissiens of older people (aged 85 and over) to residential and nursing care homes, per 100,000 population 201314 205 6141 g 7203 6506 Rate per 100,000 - / * | Loweris better
@ |2A(2): Long-term support needs of okder adults (aged 65 and over) met by admission to residential and nursing care homes, per 100,000 population 201518 178 513.0 & 7075 £l 6282 Rate per 100,000 “""‘\-\_‘ Lower is better
& |2B{1): The proportion of clder people (aged 85 and over) who were still at home 21 days after discharge from hospital into reablementirehabilitation services 201518 173 750 ] 845 & a7 % \"“_\_. Higher is better
@ |28(2): The proportion of clder people (aged 85 and over) who received itation services after di from hespital 201518 223 44 td 34 & 29 % \.__'/ Higher is better
@ |2C{1): Delayed transfers of care from hospital, per 100,000 2015018 [} 5.0 o 124 L 121 Rate per 100,000 ._,_,_../"‘" Lower is better
2C{2): Delayed transfers of care from hospital that are attributable to adult social care, per 100,000 population 201518 3 23 53 47 [Rate per 100,000 M Lower is better
@ |20: The outcome of short-term services: sequel to service 201518 T3 818 a7 & 75.8 % M“-\,‘ Higher is better
3A: Overall satisfaction of people who use services with their care and support 201518 339 670 862 B4.4 % /\7""1 Higher is better
3B: Overall satisfaction of carers with social services. 201415 290 46.4 438 412 % Higher is better
3C: The proportion of carers who report that they have been included or consulted in discussion about the person they care for 201415 285 75T 731 723 % ¥ Higher is better
3D: Proportion of people who use services and carers who find it easy to find information about services 201213 - 752 745 714 % \/ Higher is better
@ |30(1): Proportion of people who use services and carers who find it easy to find information about services 201518 273 813 T84 & 735 % \_._,/ Higher is better
@ |3D(2): The proportion of carers who find it easy to find information about support 201415 285 T40 3 & 85.5 % M Higher is better
4A: The proportion of people who use services who feel safe 201518 309 723 708 g9.2 % - Higher is better
4B: The proportion of people who use services who say that those senvices have made them feel safe and secure 201518 390 852 aso a5.4 % e \ Higher is better
Notes:
@ Torbay value is statistically significantly higher or better than the England average Source: NHS Digital, Measures from the Adult Social Care Qutcomes Framework (ASCOF), England
Torbay value is not statistically signficantly different fo the England average hitp:/fwwew . content digital. nhs.uk, I {PUBZ1800 [ T IRBAY
) Torbay value is statistically lower or worse than the England average Comparator group based on CIPFA nearest neighbours "-'_.." St
Mo statistical significance calculated

31




Appendix 2.1 - Adult Social Care Extract from Torbay CIPFA Local
Authority Budget Comparative Profile - ‘Family’ Group Authorities

2016-17 Estimates £'000 £ per head Avg £ per head
Physical support 11,742 88.02 77.17
Sensary support 227 1.70 2,12
Support with memaory and cognition 2,528 18.95 24.36
Learning disability support 10,215 76.57 86,27
Mental health support 3,331 24.97 21.67
Social support 792 5.94 4,24
Assistive equipment and technology 640 4.80 3.56
Social care activities 5,205 35.02 30.56
Information and early intervention 412 3.09 3.06
Commissioning and service delivery 2,422 18.21 22,71
Total 37,521 281.27 275.73
-
| E400 Total Adult Social Care per Head (£')
£350
£300
£250
£200
£150
£100
£50
£0
. *« h f d n z 6 a8 k w r g
I |
(£120 - Physical support per Head (£') | { £7.00 - Sensory support per Head (£') |
£]_DD 4 EE-DD -1
£80 £5.00
- £4.00 A
£60 4 £3.00 1
£40 4 £2.00
£20 £1.00 I
B £0.00
£0 -£1.00
| t amwn s fdk g x z h z a h r e umagnt ws x d fk
h A I\_ S
' 5
[ £70 4 Support with rnern::nr a?d cognition per |'/£1_2|j _ Learning disability support per Head (£')\u
Head (£"
£60 4
£60 £100 -
£350 4
£30
£40 4
£
£30 4 £60
£20 £40 -
£10 4 I £20 4
£0 £0
| hoos d x r kme z u fon a s m=x g t z af e r h u nwk d
.\- -,-' I_\. ./I
e £50 - Mental health support per Head (£") A "JEQD _ Social support per Head (£') B
£40
£15 4
£30 4
£10 4
£20 4
£10 £s
£0 £0
| hmt u s n z fg k a x f 5 z n hw tr m&k f x d e a uaqg
. L

Page 76



et
Assistive equipment and technology per

~

[ £12 4 { £80 S Social care activities per Head (£')
Head (£") -
£10 A £70
£60 -
£8 A £50 o
£6 - £40
£30
£4 4 £20 4
£2 £10 -
£
£0 -£ 4
| m w s n g e d k z tf u r = abh d n e s t x zmvr w f k a gu
A '-\_ _,'
ra ", ; -
. . = ] rd
| £12 1 Information and early :ntenrentmn per | £60 - Commissioning and service delivery per |
Head (£") A
£10 Head (£')
£50
£3 A
6 | £40
£4 4 £30 A
£2 4 I £20 A
£0 £10 -
£
£0
| a zdsex fnortkwhmagu *x = f & k u t a r n gmbhwaz
1
L .
Adult Social Care - Physical Support
2016-17 Estimates £'000 £ per head Avg £ per head
Physical support - adults (18-64) 2,365 17.73 19,44
Physical support - adults (65+) 2,377 70.29 57.74
Total 11,742 B8.02 F717
.’F i
| £45 - Physical support - adults (18-64) per Head |
— (£)
£40 A
£35 4
£30 A
£25
£20 4
":EJI.EEI _ Physical support per Head (£') £15 A
£10 A
£100 A £5 4
£0
£30 f t »x a z 5 dmn k wh & g ur
£80 | ;
—
£40 4 [ £80 - Physical support - older people (65+) per |
£20 4 £70 A Head (£")
£60
£0
'.\ t amwn s f d k g = z & u 7 £50 A
) £40 4
£30 A
£20 4
£10 4
£0
- m wa t n s d g k z u & = f rh

Page 77



Adult Social Care — Sensory Support

2016-17 Estimates £'000 £ per head Avg £ per head
Sensory support - adults (18-64) 34 0.63 0.70
Sensory support - alder people (65+) 143 1.07 1.42
Total 227 1.70 2.12
s T,
[ £4.5 - Sensory support - adults (18-64) per Head |
— £4.0 (£
£3.5
£3.0 A
£2.5 1
£2.0
— - £1.5
(£7.0 - Sensory support per Head (£") \ £1.0
£0.5
£6.0 4 £0.0 .
£5.0 4 -£0.5
£4.0 h =z a r n & t g u s mdwx f k
.\- |
£3.0 4
—
£2.0 4 e T,
r [ £5.0 Sensory support - older people (65+) per |
£1.0 4 £4.5 4 Head (£')
£0.0 £4.0
-£1.0 J £3.5 4
N z,ahreurrgnrwsxdfk: £3.0 4
) ) £2.5 4
£2.0 4
£1.5 +
£1.0 4
£0.5 1
£0.0
S Z a r u e mgn t wx s h d fk
| |

Adult Social Care — Support with memory and cognition

2016-17 Estimates £'000 £ per head Avg £ per head
Support with memaory and cognition - adults (18-64) 112 0.34 071
Support with memory and cognition - older people (65+) 2,416 18.11 23.65
Total 2,528 18.95 24.36
ras T,
[£2.50 - Support with memory and cognition - |
= adults {(18-64) per Head (£')
£2.00 4
£1.50 4
- — £1.00
(£70 - Support with memory and cognition per |
Head (£7) £0.50 -
£60 A
£0.00
r 4
50 2 u s r t n f e z k amwag dh
£40 L )
£30 A i
ral Bt
£20 4 | £70 -+ Support with memory and cognition -older |
people (65+) per Head (£')
£10 A £60 A
£0 £50 A
l\_hsdxrkrr'ezufntawg- £40 4
£30 A
£20 A
£10 ~ I
£0
S h = d r k xme z u f n t awag
\ )

Page 78



Adult Social Care — Learning disability support

2016-17 Estimates £°000 £ per head Avg £ per head
Learning disability support - adults (18-64) 3,100 68.22 77.05
Learning disability support - older people (65+) 1,115 8.36 9,21
Total 10,215 76.57 B86.27
s o,
(£120 - Learning disability support - adults (18-564) |
per Head (£")
£100 4
£80
£60 1
.'2120 _ Learning disability support per Huad|:£'5-\- £40 4
£20
£100 4
£0
£30 A4 s »xma g z e t f h r nwk v d
£60 - -
—
£40 J o . N N
[ £25 _ Learning disability support - older people
{65+) per Head (£')
£20 4
£20
£0
Y s m=® g9 t z a f e r h u nw k d) £15 4
£10 A
£5 A
£0
— u t gm f z = n r k s wa h de
Adult Social Care — Mental health support
2016-17 Estimates £°000 £ per head Avg £ per head
Mental health support - adults (18-64) 1,835 13.76 12,00
Mental health support - older people (65+) 1,496 11.21 9.68
Total 3.331 24.97 21.67
s T
[ £25 5 Mental health support - adults (18-64) per |
— Head (£')
£20 A
£15
P — £10 A
(£50 - Mental health support per Head (£') |
£45 £5
£40 o
£35 1 _m,srunhakfwzxegld
£30 1 )
£25 4 i )
£20 - = _ -
g ",
£15 1 [ £35 - Mental health support - older people (65+) |
£10 4 per Head (£')
- £30 4
£5
£0 £25 A
'.\_ hm t u s n z f g k a x w e dr ) £20 A
£15 A
£10 A
£5 A
£0
S h v tmag =z n = f w k d & a w r




Adult Social Care — Social Support

2016-17 Estimates £'000 £ per head Avag £ per head
Social support: Substance misuse support 111 0.83 071
Social support: Asylum seeker support - - 0.09
Social support: Support for carer 309 2.32 2.82
Social support: Social Isolation 372 .73 0.62
Total 792 5.04 4.24
P N . ~
£20 - Social support per Head (£") \
£18 4
£16 1
£14 4
£12 4
£10 4
£58 4
£6 A
£4
£2 4
£0
\ s z n h w t r m&k f x d & a ug
- ~, 7 . )
£3.5 - Social support: Substance misuse support | £0.70 Social support: Asylum seeker support per
per Head (£") Head (£')
£3.0 4 £0.60 1
£2.5 4 £0.50 4
£2.0 4 £0.40 4
£1.5 4 £0.30 4
£1.0 4 £0.20 A
£0.5 4 I £0.10 +
£0.0 £0.00
h zmr a n k f x u t w s g ed z v dr wx t s nmkh g f ea
. A p ~
. At -
£18.0 - Social support: Support for carer per Head £3.5 - Social Support: Social Isolation per Head
i (£7) (£')
£16.0 3.0 4
£14.0
£12.0 £2.5 1
£10.0 4 £2.0
£8.0 £1.5 4
£6.0
£1.0 -
£4.0 £1.0
£2.0 - . £0.5
£0.0 £0.0 4
= w t h z rn f kmw=x d & u aag z n s t x g muw r k h f e da
., 4 L .y

Page 80



T8 obed

Appendix 3 - Governance Structures

Joint Technical
Working Group
- monthly

Cuality Assurance

- bimonthly

social Care
Programme Board
- bimanthly

Placed People
Governance Group

- monthly

37




28 abed

Appendix 4 - Programmes of the Joint Executive and Placed People Governance

boint Executives

[Frogramme Reporting &

Decizion Taking]

Tarbey Couno
Carolins
Demand —
Dareschor of
Punles Heasith,
Ty CoRUrec

Fmg———. ] .. Boute Programme
Placed Cormmumity . M=dicines . . |
Urgent Care . El=ctive Car= .. Services Prrewention D v ry =nd
F"-E-I:I-FI-|-E S=rvices Dptimisation R e Orwersight
L liz Dewenpart, | lans= Vinar. Faul Cooper, Simon Tapley, biimrik Procter - Fab [Drger - Camoline Tanglor Ann Wagner-
et Chief Murse De=purty C20 Cureschor of Dureschor of LE i P - Direschar of Dareschor of
DpErating TSDFT mined IDinsctor COMMIESSEINIng Primeiry Caine Dirsctar Adurts, Soumne | STrEtamy and
=
o= TEIDET ot Finmno mred mined Corparsbe TEDFT i nncreation TSDFET
TSDFT Transformatan | Ssrasoss - . S lafin Cuoransll -
SDTO0S EIMEEAT | cniet Finmnce

Offio=r SDTO0E

i

38




Appendix 5 - Strategic and Micro-commissioning functions

Function/role lead

Torbay Council Strategic
Commissioning function

Torbay and South Devon Trust
adult social care function

STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING FUNCTION

Market shaping and developing new providers to fill gaps in provision and oversight of v

decommissioning plans

Macket Position statement and Joint Strategic Needs Assessment v

Mapket mapping v

G$2analysis v

Anglysis of sufficiency of supply v

Mé&age provider failures and market exits v v
Strategic Commissioning Strategy v

Proactive strategy to develop the market as a whole v

Market engagement with provider market as a whole v

Run Multi Provider Forum for all providers with strategic themes v

Joint commissioning arrangements with partner organisations and other areas v

Lead on co-design of new service models with providers and stakeholders v v
Develop population outcome based commissioning approach for market v

Develop and c-produce Payment by Results mechanisms that encourage sound outcomes v

Co-ordinate user and carer engagement and consultation v

Contract review and performance management of adult social care v

Review budget for adult social care and sign-off cost improvement plans related to Adult Social Care v

3T




Function/role lead

Torbay Council Strategic
Commissioning function

Torbay and South Devon Trust
adult social care function

MICRO COMMISSIONING OF PROVIDERS, PROCUREMENT AND BROKERAGE

Develop and implement operational commissioning plans

Overarching sub contracts between Trust and other adult social care providers, eg Care homes,
community care

AN

Prepare and agree individual service specifications

Develop and monitor outcome based commissioning approach for each provider at service level

Develop personal outcome based commissioning for each service user

Contract management & performance review of independent & voluntary sector including, grant funding

Proactive quality assurance of individual providers including, develop/implement service improvement
plans

ANARNRNEN

Achieving value for money from providers including, cost improvement planning

curement of adult social care providers

RRnage provider failures and market exits including, for service users and relatives/carers involved

Iﬁﬂjvidual contracts for care packages

B\_ﬁkerage/purchasing processes and brokerage of individual care packages

Direct payments and personal budgets

Lead and manage safeguarding processes including, Whole Provider/Provider of concern/quality concerns

Resolution of Safeguarding incidents and implementation of lessons learned

Run and co-ordinate forums for specific provider areas with operational focus eg forums for care homes

Collection, collation and regular reporting of data on need, demand, supply, cost, workforce and
performance (Trust and sub contractors) with interpretation and presentation

ANRANRNENENENENENEN

Benchmarking of cost/performance of services — own and sub-contracted

Management of pooled budget to achieve value for money and cost improvement

AN

40




Gg abed

Appendix 6 - Emergency Cascade

Adult Services Primary Contacts

Name/Title

Emergency Role

Frances Mason, Head
of Partnerships, People
and Housing

Communication with contracted providers of Care and Support for
vulnerable people. Availability and co-ordination of needs assessment.
Safeguarding vulnerable adults and serious case review including
authorisation of deprivation of liberty under Mental Capacity Act.

Joanna Williams,
Associate Director of
Adult Social Services

The role will provide professional leadership for social care services and lead on
workforce planning, implementing standards of care, safeguarding and support the
running of the Adult Social Care Programme Board. The role also oversees the
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards and Guardianship arrangements in Torbay.

Adults Services Secondary Contacts

Robin Willoughby, Lead
AMHP

Assessment and placement, access to services, medication and packages
of care and place of safety for older people with poor mental health

Sharon O’Reilly,
Manager Older Person
Mental Health Team

Assessment and placement, access to services, medication and packages
of care and place of safety for people under 65 with poor mental health.

41




Appendix 7 - Annual Audit Programme
Background

For Torbay Council, Internal Audit is a statutory service in the context of The
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015.

From April 2013, organisations in the UK public sector are required to adhere to
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the Standards).

Internal Audit for Torbay & South Devon NHS Foundation Trust is delivered by
Audit South West.

Internal Audit Plans

When preparing the internal audit plan for Torbay and South Devon NHS
Foundation Trust it is expected that Audit South West will :

e Consider the risks identified in Torbay Council's strategic & operational risk
registers that relate to Adult Services

e Discuss and liaise with Directors and Senior Officers of Torbay Council
regarding the risks which threaten the achievement of the Council's
corporate or service objectives that relate to Adult Services, including

changes and / or the introduction of new systems, operations, programs, and

corporate initiatives

e Take account of requirements to support a “collaborative audit” approach
with the external auditors of Torbay Council

e Consider counter-fraud arrangements and assist in the protection of public
funds and accountability.

e Support national requirements, such as the National Fraud Initiative (NFI)
which is run every two years.

Draft plans, showing proposed audits covering Adult Services should be shared
and agreed with Torbay Council's Director of Adult Services (DAS).

The DAS should also be made aware of planned audit reviews that will provide
overall assurance that control mechanisms operated by the Trust, but that are key
to the workings of Adult Services, are working effectively. ( e.g. audits of key
financial systems (Payroll, payments, income collection etc.) and corporate
arrangements (e.g. procurement, Information Governance etc.)).

The Audit Plan will not be a "tablet of stone" and changes may be required or
advised during the year.

Page 86



Internal Audit work

Internal audit work should be completed in accordance with the PSIAS.

Proposed briefs for work covering Adult Social Care should be shared with the DAS
prior to fieldwork commencing.

Reporting - Assignments

The DAS will be provided of copies of all final reports that specifically relate to Adult
Services.

The DAS will also be provided with early sight of draft reports for which the audit
opinion is "fundamental weaknesses" or similar.

The Director of ASC will also be provided with copied of final audit reports for wider
subject areas (e.g. payroll) where the audit opinion is "fundamental weaknesses" or
similar.

Reporting — Annual Report

Audit South West will provide the Council with an annual assurance report on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the overall system of internal control for the Trust,
and in particular, those areas directly affecting Adult Services. It is noted that this
assurance can never be absolute. The most that the internal audit service can do is
to provide reasonable assurance, based on risk-based reviews and sample testing,
that there are no major weaknesses in the system of control.

The report should provide:

. a comparison of internal audit activity during the year with that planned,
placed in the context of Adult Services

. a summary of significant fraud and irregularity investigations carried out
during the year and anti-fraud arrangements; and

. a statement on the effectiveness of the system of internal control in meeting
the Council’s objectives

- Together with a summary of the performance indicators set for internal audit
and performance against these targets.

Page 87



Appendix 8 - Adult Social Care Related /Impacting Trust Wide
Improvement/Savings Plans

These will be provided as part of the Operational Plan when agreed by NHS England
and available for publication

Page 88



Appendix 9 - Council Governance

Financial and

Development of
Development of
the Budget

Policy Framework Performance

documents Menitoring

Senior Leadership Team
Mayor's Executive Group
ICT Policy
Development and Mayor and Group
Decision Group Leaders

Children’s {Performance and Improvement) Weorking Party
OR
Adults and Public Health {Performance and Improvement) Working Party

|

Overview and Scrutiny Board | -e— Audit Committes

oo

Council

Page 89



Agenda Iltem 9

ORBAY

COUNCIL -

Meeting: Council Date: 23 February 2017

Wards Affected: All Wards

Report Title: Review of Torbay Council Investment Fund Strategy

Is the decision a key decision? Yes

When does the decision need to be implemented? As soon as possible

Supporting Officer Contact Details: Anne-Marie Bond, Assistant Director Corporate
and Business Services, anne-marie.bond@torbay.gov.uk

1. Proposal and Introduction

1.1 At the meeting of Council held on 8 December 2016 Members approved a bid on a
local investment using the Council’s Investment Fund. The Council also
recommended that the Investment Committee review the Investment Strategy and
amount of the Investment Fund to ensure that there is the greatest opportunity to
maximise benefits income, diversify investments and spread risks and bring the
proposals back to Council. This report sets out a review of the Investment Strategy
and Fund which has been carried out by the Council’s Investment Committee.

1.2  The Investment Strategy is a Policy Framework Document and requires Council
approval.

1.3  The report also sets out a review of the Investment Committee Terms of Reference
to ensure they match the revised Strategy and working practices.

2. Reason for Proposal

2.1 Toreview the Investment Fund Strategy and Investment Fund in light of external
training and experience of the Investment Committee in considering prospective
investments.

3. Recommendation(s) / Proposed Decision

Recommendations from the Mayor:

3.1  That the Council be recommended to approve the revised Torbay Council
Investment Fund Strategy set out in Appendix 1 to the submitted report.

3.2  That the Council be recommended to approve the revised Terms of Reference of
the Investment Committee set out in Appendix 2 to the submitted report.

forward thinking, people orientated, adaptable - always with integrity.

Page 90


mailto:anne-marie.bond@torbay.gov.uk

Recommendations from the Investment Committee:

3.3  That the Council be recommended to approve the revised Torbay Council
Investment Fund Strategy set out in Appendix 1 to the submitted report, subject to
the level of authority to the Investment Committee being increased to £10m.

3.4  That the Council be recommended to approve the revised Terms of Reference of
the Investment Committee set out in Appendix 2 to the submitted report, subject to
the level of authority to the Investment Committee being increased to £10m.

Appendices

Appendix 1. Revised Torbay Council Investment Fund Strategy
Appendix 2: Revised Terms of Reference of Investment Committee

Background Documents
Capital Investment Fund Report and Minutes — Council meeting 22 September 2016 -

http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=163&MId=6615
&Ver=4

Page 91


http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=163&MId=6615&Ver=4
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=163&MId=6615&Ver=4

creating a prosperous and healthy Torbay

February 2017

DRAFT Version 3




Investment Fund Strategy

As part of its efficiency plan and transformation programme the Council needs to increase its future local
taxbase income (Council tax and NNDR) by investing capital resources within Torbay to stimulate growth.
Capital resources could be a combination of asset purchase, co investment in projects or capital loans.

As clarification the following descriptions have been used:

“Investments — Yield”. These are property purchases where the objective is to increase rental income to
the Council.

“Investments — Taxbase”. These are property purchases where the objective is to increase NNDR or
Council tax income to the Council.

“Investments — Loans or Co Investment”. These are loans to business for capital expenditure where the
objective is to increase rental income to the Council or to increase NNDR or Council tax income to the
Council. Co Investment is where Council with another investor provides finance or jointly purchases.

“Property Purchase” — property to include purchase of land and/or buildings.

This Policy Framework document appendix-sets out the an-appropriate-strategy for the management of
the Investment Fund including purchases/investments. The strategy adepted-should reflects a suitable
balance between the risks inherent in the types of property/investments to be acquired and the financial
rewards obtainable whilst limiting risks appropriately. In addition, the portfolio of investments being
acquired should be diversified in order to spread risks via a balanced portfolio, such diversification
principally being across geographical location and the use type of properties held. Existing investments
that fall within the remit of the Investment Fund Strategy shall be included in the portfolio to assist
in creating a balanced portfolio, as well as other suitable assets held by the Council.

The risks of investing in property may be mitigated through the acquisition of assets with secure, long
income streams. This needs to be balanced against the requirement for a given level of income yield on
capital invested in a careful and controlled manner, with specific analysis of risk criteria carried out in the
‘due diligence’ stage prior to the completion of each purchase.

To invest in commercial mvestment propertles te for the benefit, improvement or development of the
area whilst also delivering ; ,
vestments-with a minimum significant income return over the medlum term of at Ieast 6-5%(er 2%
above capital costs) on capital invested, through a balanced strategy of acquisition, retention and
management of good quality property investments, with that income being used to support wider
Council services.

The improvement or development of the area will not be constrained by the boundaries of Torbay as
there is an evidence base that demonstrates that investment within the South West Local Enterprise
Partnership (LEP) Zone area has a positive impact on Torbay's economy. LEPs were established
around functional economic boundaries which reflects both labour market and wider economic
interdependence. This can be evidenced through the Heart of the South West Strategic Economic

creating a prosperous and healthy



Plan (see http://heartofswlep.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/SEP-Final-draft-31-03-14-website-
1.pdf ) and the Torbay Economic Strategy (see
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/documents/s35783/Torbay%20Economic%20Strateqy

.pdf ). However opportunities in any geographic location will be considered where it can be
demonstrated that there is a benefit to, or improvement or development of Torbay.

Seepe

The maximum total level of investment shall be £50m to assist in diversifying the investment
portfolio.

lavestment—Yield | investment-—Taxbase |investment-loans-&-co
vestment
Purchase

The Investment Committee shall make all decisions up to £6m. The maximum individual investment
to be approved by Investment Committee shall be £5m including estimated purchasing costs,
however Full Council approval is not restricted in terms of value.

Achieving a spread of risk across a greater number of assets and by acquiring properties across the range
of different property asset classes, namely retail, leisure, office and industrial, is to be desired, however it
has to be recognised that opportunities to do this may not arise, and ultimately if individual business cases
are robust, groupings in any individual property class should not pose any increased risk to the Council.

The principle of being relatively risk-averse by limiting fresh investment to properties with minimum
unexpired lease terms of five years at the date of acquisition, and with tenants of strong financial standing,
should will be adopted if possible. Clear consideration will need to be given to yields where
investments do not have fully repairing and insuring (FRI) terms or FRI by way of service charge,
meaning that all costs relating to occupation and repairs are borne by the occupier(s) during the
lease term to ensure that these costs are recovered.

Hhe

creating a prosperous and healthy Torbay


http://heartofswlep.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/SEP-Final-draft-31-03-14-website-1.pdf
http://heartofswlep.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/SEP-Final-draft-31-03-14-website-1.pdf
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/documents/s35783/Torbay%20Economic%20Strategy.pdf
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/documents/s35783/Torbay%20Economic%20Strategy.pdf

The investment portfolio will include acquiring some properties to hold and some properties to
dispose of depending on the anticipated lifespan of the asset, so as to ensure that the Council has a
rolling stock of investments in order to achieve maximum income for the Council. Preperties-will-be

acguiredto-hold-rather than-to-dispose-

Investment—Yield

Investment held

Investments/asset
s held for defined
period (maximum

Costs)

estimated borrowing
costs (interest and
MPR or if capital
loan prevailing

for asset life 10 years)
Yield Rental
repayments
Minimum Yield 6-5% of purchase 2% above Increased-Council ;
Required (before price{or 2% above | estimated NNBR-income Hvestment

borrowing costs
(interest only or if
capital loan
prevailing

borrowing rates + | borrowing rates + | {er2%-above
2%) 2%) estimated
berrowing-costs)
Hcapital
lean
i
borrowing
rates+2%
Maximum-Yield— 10% 10% 10%
Remove
Benchmarked-Yield | Yes Yes Yes
linked size

Acquisitions of assets will be pursued at a target minimum yield (before costs) of 6.5% and, as a guide to
potential risk, maximum-yields of 10.0% or more are unlikely to be appropriate for investment. Assets
producing initial yields in excess of 10.0% are likely to exhibit high risk characteristics, such as very short
unexpired leases, or financially weak or insubstantial tenants, or obsolete buildings and would therefore
require a higher level of due diligence to be carried out to assess the benefits and risks are-therefere
te-be-avoided. Assets with a projected yield of over 10% will be discounted unless officers can demonstrate
that risk characteristics are acceptable and avoid very short unexpired leases, financially weak tenants or
obsolete buildings.

Hhe future

creating a prosperous and healthy Torbay



el office & ” Lindustrial . Lindustrial . Lindustrial
industrial

Traditionally the highest returns come from the office and industrial sub-sectors. Currently offices can
provide an income return of 5.5% in quality in-town areas and between 7.5% and 8.5% for reasonable
quality offices in regional and sub-regional centres. Industrial income yields can range from 6.0% up to
7.5% for acceptable quality assets. The retail sub-sector for prime retail property is lower than comparable
office/industrial assets with typical yields ranging between 5% and 7% for high quality in-town properties.
On this evidence it is likely that predominantly office and industrial/warehouse will be targeted for
acquisition with a lesser emphasis on retail. Leisure and mixed use investments will also be eligible under
the strategy.

Residential property tends to be management intensive and requires specialist expertise. It is therefore
proposed that this sector is excluded from the Investment Fund strategy.

Yield Taxbase =  |loans&Co
Location = | NationaHUK) |Terbay | Torbay | NatioraHUK)

Location— 25%-in-any 100% Torbay 100% Torbay
. . |

Torbay would be the preferred location for fresh acquisitions of investment properties, so that reinvestment
is directly retained within the local economy and any additional capital expenditure is made in the local
area. However, there is a finite and limited supply of property within the local area, and of that supply only
a small proportion may be available for purchase at any time. The A wider South West Local Enterprise
Partnership area should also be considered for fresh acquisitions as there is an evidence base that
demonstrates that investment in this area has a positive impact on Torbay’s economy. However
opportunities in any geographic location will be considered where it can be demonstrated that there
is a benefit to, or improvement or development of Torbay. Faxbase-investments—andloans-and-co
investments-willbe-for-investments-only-within-the Forbay-area- We will consider opportunities for co

investment with partner organisations of good financial and reputational standing.

Hhe

creating a prosperous and healthy Torbay



Commercial assets will be sought with lot sizes of £500,000 plus with income yields of 2% or more
above borrowing costs. However consideration will always need to be given to the number of
smaller investments held by the Council, in pursuance of this Strategy and the burden of
administering each investment before a decision is taken.

41. Leisure investments, such as public houses, restaurants and health & fithess centres with-similar
characteristics-as-abeve-will also be sought.

52. Mixed-use investments would also be potentially suitable additions to the portfolio. These may
include a mixture of commercial uses or a mixture of retail and office use. Again—similar

: - bove for office | il anphy

63. Residential investment — tends to be significantly more management intensive than the types of
commercial property investment envisaged under this strategy and requires specialist residential
management expertise, so are is-propesed-to-be excluded from thisthe strategy. urderthe

| b .

creating a prosperous and healthy Torbay



Investment, Loans & lavestment-Taxbase | lnvestment-loans-&co
Co Investment —Yield investment
Independent Valuation | Yes (if applicable) ¥Yes H-applicable
of asset
Condition Survey Yes (if applicable) ¥Yes H-applicable
Independent Yes (if applicable) ¥Yes H-applicable
Assessment of Asset
Life
Independent Yes (if applicable) ¥Yes Happhcable
Assessment of
Residual value
Security required Yes if loan - Yes—minimum-75%-of
investmentioan
ol . | I ol |
“Green Book” Financial | Yes (if applicable) Yes ¥es
profile over life of asset
(IRR)
Lease Fenants-of strong Fenants-of strong H-applicable
. g . g
whexpiredeaseterm | unexpiretHeaseterm
Reputational Issues No “sin” assets or “sin” “sin”
tenants tenants tenants

A rigorous assessment of all risks is required in each case of fresh investment in order firstly to value each
property and then to check its suitability for inclusion in the portfolio. The risks fall into two categories, firstly

economic and property market risks in specific property market sub-sectors and locations and secondly
asset-specific risks (as set out below). These can be measured and an assessment made of the likely
future performance of the investment carried out based on the ranges of likely future rental growth and
voids of the property and also the projected disposal price or capital value at the end of the period over
which the cash flow analysis is being measured.

Financial returns are modelled over a medium-term horizon of five years, based on proposed offer prices, to
determine the acceptability of each investment, and can be compared against general market forecasts.

creating a prosperous and healthy Torbay ’




Internal Rate of Return (IRR) calculations will be carried out to model the expected cash flows from each
investment. The anticipated returns can be modelled on different bases to reflect the range of risks
applicable in each case, to ensure that forecast returns properly reflect the measured risks. In this way a
Business Case is put together to support each recommended property acquisition.

This modelling will be used to make an assessment on how long the asset should be retained for,
taking into account the likely future value of the asset at the proposed time of disposal, any over-
renting and potential voids in the leases. Where the value of the asset is likely to be less than the
amount paid, including stamp duty and purchasing costs, Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) will
be applied to recover these costs. MRP will be assessed on a case by case basis by the Head of
Finance in line with the Council’s MRP Policy.

The Head of Finance reserves the right to refer any proposed investment decision (irrespective of
value) to the Council for consideration where he deems this is in the best interest of the Council.

Asset-specific risks

Income and capital returns for property will depend principally on the following five main characteristics;
* Location of property

* Building specification quality

* Length of lease unexpired

* Financial strength of tenant(s)

* Rental levels payable relative to current open market rental values

Location — this is the single most important factor in considering any property investment. In the retail
sector prime or good secondary locations in major regional or sub-regional shopping centres are likely to
provide good long-term prospects, or alternatively prime locations in sub-regional or market towns.

Industrial and warehouse property has a wider spectrum of acceptable locations with accessibility on good
roads to the trunk road and motorway network being the key aspect.

Experienced knowledge will be required to ensure that good locations are selected where property will hold
its value in the long term.

Building specification quality — In office property especially it is important to minimise the risk of
obsolescence in building elements, notably mechanical and electrical plant. Modern, recently-built office
and industrial property should be acquired to ensure longer-term income-production and awareness of the
life-cycle of different building elements and costs of replacement is critical in assessing each property’s
merits. For town centre retail property trends have been towards larger standard retail units being in
strongest demand from retailers.

Length of lease unexpired — At present capital values are highest for long-term leased property and
values tend to reduce significantly when unexpired lease terms fall below five years, as owners expect
significant capital expenditure to be necessary when leases expire and tenants may not renew leases and
continue to occupy. Fresh investments should be made ensuring that diminishing lease terms will not either
adversely affect capital value or that significant capital expenditure and voids are experienced. A strategy
to dispose of investments before unexpired lease terms reach terms of shorter than three years should be
adopted or the leases to be renegotiated before this time.

creating a prosperous and healthy



Financial strength of tenant(s) — assessment will be required of each tenant of potential acquisitions
through analysis of their published accounts and management accounts where necessary. Risk of tenant
default in rent payment is the main issue but the relative strength of a tenant’s financial standing also
impacts upon capital value of property which is let to that tenant and careful analysis of financial strength is
a key part of due diligence prior to purchase of investments.

Rental levels — following the banking crash in 2007/8 rental levels fell across most occupier markets,
particularly in office and retail markets. As a result rents payable on leases that were granted before 2007
may be at levels which are higher than current rental values. Rents in some sub-sectors have recovered
back to pre-2007 levels but care is required in all purchases to assess market rents local to each property
to check whether rents payable under leases are above or below current levels, as this will impact on
whether growth in rents in the future will be fully reflected in the specific property being analysed.

Environmental and regulatory risks - Risks such as flooding and energy performance are taken into
account during the due diligence process on every property purchase.

Reputational risks - A policy on specific types of commercial tenant which may not be acceptable to the
Council such as tobacco, gambling or alcohol-related companies should be adopted. Properties tenanted
by such companies would not then be considered for purchase. However, this would not necessarily
protect the Council in the event of a future transfer of any tenancy to a prohibited company.

Investment - Yield

Investment - Taxbase

Investment- loans & co
investment

MRP

50 years land and 40
years buildings or life
of asset

50 years land and 40
years buildings or life
of asset

As applicable

Interest Costs used in
appraisal

New Borrowing Rates

New Borrowing Rates

New Borrowing Rates

SDLT & other
purchase costs

Part of purchase price

Part of purchase price

*Fund Management

0.50% of purchase

0.50% of purchase

0.50% of loan or

Costs & ongoing client | price price investment
costs
“Green Book” Financial | Yes Yes Yes

profile over life of asset
(IRR)

*Normally for each investment an annual payment of 0.5 % of the purchase price or loan or
investment, subject to a case by case evaluation and decision by the Chief Finance Officer, will be
held in a central fund to cover the following:

He Future 9

creating a prosperous and healthy Torbay




10

external advice for future investments;

known or expected one off future costs, such as costs associated with future negotiation or
renegotiation of leases;

void periods;

bad debt provision;

irrecoverable estate costs;

management of assets; and

maintenance or redevelopment costs associated with future leases.

creating a prosperous and healthy Torbay



Appendix 1
Investment Fund Business Case for Investment
1. Investment Name and Address
2. Strategy Objective
3. Compliance with Strategy Objective — Non-Financial:

e Sector and target assets

e Location

¢ Building specification

e Management and maintenance obligations
e Lease arrangements

e Quality of tenants

4. Compliance With Strategy Objective — Financial (Completion of Appendix with commentary as
below):

e Purchase price with an independent valuation

e Estimated exit value and proposed timescale for disposal

e Building survey results

e Rental income assessed over asset life linked to assessment of future market trends of
both the asset sector and location

¢ Qutgoings
e Estimated voids
e Cashflow

e Costs including stamp duty, legal fees, survey fees, letting costs

¢ Management and maintenance obligations

¢ Internal Rate of Return (IRR) Calculation

e Diversity — how this investment fits in with existing investments and loans by sector

5. Legal Issues (to Include):

e Review of title and ownership
e Liabilities and restrictions

6. Risk Assessment

e Economic and Property Market

e Asset-specific —e.g. location, building quality, length of lease, financial strength of tenant, rent
payable

e Environmental and regulatory

e Reputational

7. Recommendation

Hhe

creating a prosperous and healthy Torbay

11



8. REVIEW

e Chief Finance officer
e Monitoring officer

12 Paa ! L \Q/
y creating a prosperous and healthy Torbay



Investment Committee:

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2

Proposed Revisions to Terms of Reference:

1.

To review the Investment Strategy and make recommendations to the Council for revision
of the same, when appropriate.

To determine any investment or purchase using the Investment Fund up to the value of £5
million, in accordance with the Investment Strategy. All investments or purchases to be
subject to a (documented) review by the S151 Officer, Monitoring Officer—Fund-Manager
and Executive Head of Business Services (any of whom may require the proposal to be
referred to Council for approval).

To review with officer advice current and future investment opportunities.

To determine when to receive external advice on investment opportunities.

To receive performance reports on the Investment Fund on a quarterly basis.

creating a prosperous and healthy Torbay ,



Agenda ltem 10

ORBA

[6/0)0).(6)1 5 -

Meeting: Council Date: 23 February 2017
Wards Affected: All wards in Torbay

Report Title: Torbay Council Annual Pay Policy Statement and Review of Pensions
Discretions

Is the decision a key decision? Yes

When does the decision need to be implemented?

Executive Lead Contact Details: Councillor Derek Mills, Executive Lead for Health and
Wellbeing and Corporate Services, (01803) 843412, Derek.mills@torbay.gov.uk

Supporting Officer Contact Details: Anne-Marie Bond, Assistant Director Corporate
and Business Services, (01803) 207160, Anne-marie.bond@torbay.gov.uk

1. Proposal and Introduction

1.1  Section 38 (1) of the Localism Act 2011 requires English and Welsh Authorities to
produce a pay policy statement for each financial year. This is a statutory
requirement. The pay policy statement must be approved formally by Council. The
pay policy statement draws together the Council’s overarching policies on pay and
conditions and will publish them on the Councils Website and update them as
necessary through the year.

1.2 Under the current Pensions Regulations, Torbay Council is able to exercise a range
of discretions in regard to how the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is
applied to its employees who are members of the Scheme.

2. Reason for Proposal

2.1 The Annual Pay Policy Statement 2017/18 must be approved by the Council in
order for the Council to be compliant with Section 38 (1) of the Localism Act 2011.
The Employers Pensions Discretions must be reviewed and approved by Council
annually in line with the LGPS regulations.

3. Recommendation(s) / Proposed Decision

3.1  That the Torbay Council Annual Pay Policy Statement 2017/18, as set out at
Appendix 2 to the submitted report, be approved.

3.2  That the Employers Pensions Discretions set out in Appendix 3 to the submitted
report be approved.

forward thinkizi3, p2ople ciientated, adaptable - always with integrity.


mailto:Derek.mills@torbay.gov.uk
mailto:Anne-marie.bond@torbay.gov.uk

Appendices

Appendix 1. Supporting Information and Impact Assessment
Appendix 2: Torbay Council Pay Policy Statement 2017/18
Appendix 3: Torbay Council Pension Discretions

Background Documents

Copies of Torbay Councils associated Pay Policies will be made available upon request.
All current policies are held on the HR Intranet pages:-
http://insight/humanresources

The following documents/files were used to compile this report:-
Localism Act Pay Policy Guidance from the Local Government Association
http://www.local.gov.uk/localism-act

forward thinkizi3, p2ople Ciientated, adaptable - always with integrity.



http://www.local.gov.uk/localism-act

Agenda Item 10

, Appendix 1
Appendix 1
Supporting Information and Impact Assessment
Service / Policy: Human Resources
Executive Lead: ClIr Derek Mills
Assistant Director: Anne-Marie Bond
Version: 1 Date:  10.2.17 Author:  Jo Sandbrook, Senior HR Officer

Section 1: Background Information

1. What is the proposal /issue?

The publication of the Annual Salary Statement is a Statutory requirement
under Section 38 (1) of the Localism Act 2011. If Council does not approve the
Salary Statement then there is a significant risk that the Council will be in
breach of the legislation.

See Pay Policy Statement, Appendix 2, for full details.
Under the current Pensions Regulations, Torbay Council is able to exercise a

range of discretions in regard to how the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) is applied to its employees who are members of the Scheme.

The Employers Pensions Discretions must be reviewed and approved by
Council annually in line with the LGPS regulations.

2. What is the current situation?

The position with the Pay Policy Statement has not changed significantly from
last year. There are changes to the Multiplier information that assesses the
median between the highest and lowest earners due to the introduction of the
National Living Wage in April 2016. This has increased the lowest salary and
has reflected a positive change in the highest and lowest paid officers within
the Council. The policy has also been updated to reflect Hay 2016 rates low to
and spinal scales.

Employee and employer pension contribution rates have not yet been updated
as these figures are not yet available although the employer contribution rates
are expected in January 2017.

3. What options have been considered?

There are no options to be considered in regard to the publication of the Pay
Policy Statement as it is a Statutory requirement of the requirement under
Section 38 (1) of the Localism Act 2011.

Page 107



The Employers Pensions Discretions were changed and approved by Council
in December 2015. Although they have to be agreed by Council on an annual
basis, there is no requirement for these to be changed currently therefore no
options have been explored.

How does this proposal support the ambitions, principles and delivery of
the Corporate Plan 2015-19?

Ambitions: Prosperous and Healthy Torbay

Principles:
e Use reducing resources to best effect
¢ Reduce demand through prevention and innovation
¢ Integrated and joined up approach

Targeted actions:
e Protecting all children and giving them the best start in life
Working towards a more prosperous Torbay
Promoting healthy lifestyles across Torbay
Ensuring Torbay remains an attractive and safe place to live and visit
Protecting and supporting vulnerable adults

Who will be affected by this proposal and who do you need to consult
with?

Torbay Council employees and those within the Council’s Maintained Schools,
including all employees who are members of the Local Government Pension
Scheme.

How will you propose to consult?

Trade Unions representing staff within Torbay Council and its’ Schools will be
consulted at Joint Consultative meetings.

Page 108




Section 2: Implications and Impact Assessment

What are the financial and legal implications?

There would be legal implications for Torbay Council if it does not publish its
Annual Pay Policy Statement in accordance with the Localism Act 2011. The
Pay Policy Statement and associated pay policies set out the processes and
procedures by which the Council pays its staff. These practices are in
accordance with the Equality Act 2010 and associated employment law and so
must be approved in order to maintain compliance.

What are the risks?

Non-Compliance with Section 38 (1) of Localism Act 2011 mainly and
employment law, see above. It is currently not determined as to whether there
would be a financial penalty for non-compliance with the Localism Act
however, under employment law non-compliance could result in heavy
penalties for the Council (e.g. Equal pay and discrimination claims).

Public Services Value (Social Value) Act 2012

Both decisions will not relate to the above Act as there are no associated
services or goods that need to be purchased or hired.

10.

What evidence / data / research have you gathered in relation to this
proposal?

Reference has been made to the Localism Act 2011 and supplementary
guidance supplied by the Department for Communities and Local Government
(“Openness and Accountability in Local Pay: Supplementary Guidance”).

Advice and information has also been provided by the Local Government
Association.

11.

What are key findings from the consultation you have carried out?

The key findings to date from consultation have revealed nothing significant as
this is a policy that affects Torbay Council staff. Consultation takes place with
the Councils’ Trade Unions on behalf of its staff, the expectation is that the

Council has a legally complaint pay policy in place that is fair and transparent.

Page 109




12.

Amendments to Proposal / Mitigating Actions

Feedback from internal facing departments has not suggested the need for any
changes or mitigating action.

Page 110




TTT abed

Equality Impacts

13

Identify the potential positive and negative impacts on specific groups

Positive Impact

Negative Impact & Mitigating
Actions

Neutral Impact

Older or younger people

Introduction of the National
living Wage in April 2016 has
had a positive impact to the pay
for lowest earners within the
Council.

Employers Pensions
Discretions affecting
employees who are 55 years
and above. A neutral impact as
the proposal is that the
discretions will not change
since they were last reviewed
in 2016.

People with caring
Responsibilities

Introduction of the National
living Wage in April 2016 has
had a positive impact to the pay
for lowest earners within the
Council.

People with a disability

Introduction of the National
living Wage in April 2016 has
had a positive impact to the pay
for lowest earners within the
Council.

Women or men

Introduction of the National
living Wage in April 2016 has
had a positive impact to the pay
for lowest earners within the
Council.

People who are black or
from a minority ethnic
background (BME)
(Please note Gypsies /
Roma are within this

Introduction of the National
living Wage in April 2016 has
had a positive impact to the pay
for lowest earners within the
Council.




21T abed

community)

Religion or belief
(including lack of belief)

Introduction of the National
living Wage in April 2016 has
had a positive impact to the pay
for lowest earners within the
Council.

People who are lesbian,
gay or bisexual

Introduction of the National
living Wage in April 2016 has
had a positive impact to the pay
for lowest earners within the
Council.

People who are
transgendered

Introduction of the National
living Wage in April 2016 has
had a positive impact to the pay
for lowest earners within the
Council.

People who are in a
marriage or civil
partnership

Introduction of the National
living Wage in April 2016 has
had a positive impact to the pay
for lowest earners within the
Council.

Women who are
pregnant / on maternity
leave

Introduction of the National
living Wage in April 2016 has
had a positive impact to the pay
for lowest earners within the
Council.

Socio-economic impacts
(Including impact on child
poverty issues and
deprivation)

Introduction of the National
living Wage in April 2016 has
had a positive impact to the pay
for lowest earners within the
Council.




¢TT abed

Public Health impacts
(How will your proposal
impact on the general
health of the population
of Torbay)

Neutral, no public health impact
identified as a result of
proposals.

14

Cumulative Impacts —
Council wide
(proposed changes
elsewhere which might
worsen the impacts
identified above)

Possibility of wider budget savings elsewhere within the Council may necessitate a change to the
Employers Pensions Discretions when they are reviewed in future.




Agenda Item 10
ORBAY Appendix 2

COUNCIL

TORBAY COUNCIL ANNUAL PAY

POLICY STATEMENT APRIL 2017/18

Human Resources

This document can be made available in other languages, on tape, in
Braille, large print and in other formats. For more information please
contact 01803 207366 or HRPolicy@torbay.gov.uk

1. Purpose and Scope of the Policy Statement

1.1 Section 38 (1) of the Localism Act 2011 requires the Council to prepare an Annual Pay
Policy Statement.

1.2 Supplementary guidance was published in February 2013 — “Openness and
Accountability in Local Pay: Supplementary Guidance”. Due regard has been given to
that guidance in preparation of this policy.

1.3 This Annual Pay Policy Statement acknowledges the impact of pay legislation, The
National Living Wage, with effect from 1% April 2016, see Appendix 1.

1.4 In dealing with staff pay it is the Council’s strategy to ensure that our Pay Policy
facilitates the recruitment and retention of staff with the skills and capabilities the Council
needs.

15 Arrangements for staff pay must comply with Equal Pay legislation.

1.6 This Pay Policy Statement applies to the Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service,
Directors, Assistant Directors, Executive Heads and Senior Officers within Torbay
Council. It addresses the legal requirement to set out how pay is determined for this
group. This includes the following posts within Torbay Council:

00 Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service
[0 Directors

[0 Assistant Directors

Page 114 1


mailto:HRPolicy@torbay.gov.uk

Executive Heads ( and those posts with specific responsibility such as Section 151
Officer)

Senior Officers (non-executive heads) — These are posts where the salary is above
£50,000.

1.7 This Pay Policy Statement is a supplement to Torbay Council’'s overarching Pay and
associated policies which form part of the terms and conditions of employees. These
include but are not limited to:-

O

Torbay Council Pay Policy

Job Evaluation Scheme Policies (Greater London Provincial Councils Job Evaluation
Scheme).

NJC Terms and Conditions of Employment (Green Book)
JNC Terms and Conditions for Chief Executives

JNC Terms and Conditions for Chief Officers (Directors within Torbay Council are
appointed to these Terms and Conditions).

NHS Terms and Conditions

Torbay Council Local Government Pension Scheme Policy Discretions
Employment of Apprentices Policy
Re-Evaluation Policy

Temporary Acting Up Policy

Expenses Policy

Market Supplement Policy

Market Forces Policy

Staff Travel Plan

Key Skills Retention policy

Flexible retirement

Re-organisation and Redundancy Policy

Retirement Award

Page 115



1.8 Draft guidance from the Secretary of State makes reference to the Hutton Review of Fair
Pay. This indicated that the most appropriate metric for pay dispersion is the multiple of
chief executive pay to median salary. Tracking this multiple will allow the Council to
ensure that public services are accountable for the relationship between top pay and that
paid to the wider workforce. This annual pay policy statement will publish this multiple
along with the following information:

[0 The level of salary for each of the Officers as defined in (1.4) above;
[1 The salary of the lowest paid employee

This information can be found in Appendix 1 of this policy.

2. Arrangements for Officer Pay

2.1 The general terms and conditions of employment are governed by the following national
agreements:

[0 Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service - JNC for Chief Executives of Local Authorities,
O Directors - INC for Chief Officers of Local Authorities,

[0 Assistant Directors - NJC for Local Government Services

[0 Executive Heads - NJC for Local Government Services

[0 Educational Advisors and Inspectors/ Educational Psychologists — Soulbury Pay and
Conditions

[0 All other Employee Groups — NJC for Local Government Services

[0 Public Health — NHS Terms and Conditions of Service (for employees who have
transferred under TUPE)

2.2 The council uses two forms of Job Evaluation to identify officer pay. This is either through
the Council’s GLPC Job Evaluation Scheme or the Hay Evaluation Scheme. The Hay
Evaluation scheme produces both a Know How Score and a total points score for each post
evaluated. Torbay Council pays salary (with a pay band of 4 spinal points) on the basis of
the Know How Score only (not the final points score). Know-How is the sum of every kind
of knowledge, skill and experience required for standard acceptable job performance.

2.3 The Hay Job Evaluation scheme is used to evaluate the following roles within the Council.

Page 116 3



24

OoOoooad

Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service

Directors

Assistant Directors

Executive Heads

All Grade O roles are evaluated under GLPC and Hay (this is due to the cross over
point of the two schemes).

Public Health posts are evaluated on the Council’'s GLPC Job Evaluation Scheme.
Public Health posts can also be evaluated using the “Agenda for Change” job evaluation
scheme in order to provide Market Forces information.

All other posts within the Council are evaluated under the Torbay Council GLPC
evaluation scheme in accordance with the agreed policies.

The Officers evaluated as having a Know How Score within the Hay evaluation scheme
are paid on a salary range based on the low to median salary levels as set in 2016 for all
sectors within the South West. Torbay Council publishes this in bands of £5,000. Please
refer to Appendix 1 within this policy for further information. This salary information,
together with corresponding job descriptions, is also available from the Council’s internet
page, link as follows:-

http://www.torbay.gov.uk/index/yourcouncil/financialservices/expenditure/salarydisclosure.htm

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

In determining the salary for the Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service within the
Council, advice will be taken by the Employment Committee from Head of Human
Resources and the Assistant Director, Corporate and Business Services. Further
independent advice will be sought from South West Councils (HR and Employment
Services) and other professional organisations to ensure the correct level of
remuneration is awarded by the Council.

The Chief Executive under the general scheme of delegation within the Council will
determine the terms and conditions of employment of all officers. Advice will be sought
Human Resources and Assistant Director, Corporate and Business services as required.

Following significant changes in duties, any post can be re-evaluated. The evaluation
will be based on a Job Evaluation Questionnaire which will be assessed by an
independent panel of Job Evaluation trained assessors. External advice and
benchmarking will also be undertaken if necessary to ensure that market conditions are
taken into account for pay and grading.

Salary increases in relation to cost of living will be applied to all posts according to the
awards made by the appropriate National Joint Council as described in paragraph 2.1.

Page 117 4


http://www.torbay.gov.uk/index/yourcouncil/financialservices/expenditure/salarydisclosure.htm

2.9

2.10

211

No additional payments are made to in respect of:

[

Bonus payments or Performance payments to the Senior Officers defined in 1.4,
unless where given as a result of protections under TUPE e.g. Director of Public
Health whose protected medical terms and conditions include access to additional
NHS allowances in regard to Clinical Excellence and on-call duties, details can be
found on the NHS Employers webpage as follows: -
http://www.nhsemployers.org/Aboutus/Publications/PayCirculars/Pages/PayCircular-
MD1-2013.aspx

Additional enhancements are paid to NJC Employees who are employed on SCP 29
or below of the Torbay Council Salary Scale. Until 31° May 2017, these will be paid
in accordance with NJC Terms and Conditions of Employment (Green Book) part 3,
pay and grading. From 1% June 2017, these enhancements will be varied in in
accordance with a Collective Agreement with our Trades Unions, dated 13"
December 2016.

Additional payments are made to any Council Officers who act as Returning Officers and
carry out duties at elections. These payments are calculated according to the approved
scale or set by a government department depending on the nature of the election. This
is treated as a separate employment as and when required.

In comparing the Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service pay with the wider workforce the
Council will use the following definitions:

The lowest-paid employee: the employee or group of employees with the lowest salary
(full-time equivalent) employed by the Council at the date of assessment.

The median: the mid -point salary when full-time equivalent salaries are arranged in
order of size (highest to lowest). Based on salary levels of staff on the date of
assessment.

This excludes those employed on casual contracts of employment, but includes part time
employees where their salaries are normalised to the full-time equivalent. It also
excludes Apprentices who are employed on the Torbay Council apprentice pay grade.

3. Contributions and other terms and conditions

3.1

All staff who are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme make individual
contributions to the scheme in accordance with the following table. These figures
represent the 2016/2017 contribution rates and have not yet been increased for 2017/18.
This is anticipated early in 2017.

Page 118 5


http://www.nhsemployers.org/Aboutus/Publications/PayCirculars/Pages/PayCircular-MD1-2013.aspx
http://www.nhsemployers.org/Aboutus/Publications/PayCirculars/Pages/PayCircular-MD1-2013.aspx

Band Salary Range Contribution Rate
1 £0 To £13,600.00. 5.50%
2 £13,601.00 To £21,200.00. 5.80%
3 £21,201.00 To £34,400.00. 6.50%
4 £34,401.00 To £43,500.00. 6.80%
5 £43,501.00 To £60,700.00. 8.50%
6 £60,701.00 To £86,000.00. 9.90%
7 £86,001.00 To £101,200.00 10.50%
8 £101,201.00 To £151,800 11.40%
9 More than £151,801.00 12.50%

Page 119




3.2

3.3

5.1

6.1

The employer pension contribution rate is: 14.8% from 1% April 2017.

All employees are currently able to apply for a Car Parking permit, which enables the
employee to park on council property for a reduced daily rate.

Payments on Termination — Chief Officers

The Council’s approach to statutory and discretionary payments on termination of
employment of Chief Officers, at retirement age or prior to this, is set out within its
Redundancy policy and is in accordance with Regulation 5 of the Local Government
(Early termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) Regulations 2006 and
Regulations 8 and 10 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership
and Contribution) Regulations 2007. Final payment details are submitted to Full Council
for approval.

Salary Packages upon Appointment

Any salary package offered in respect of a new appointment for a Chief Executive /Head
of Paid Service will be approved by Full Council. This will include any new salary
package equating to £100,000 or more.

In the case of salary packages for Directors and Assistant Directors, this will need to be
approved by the Council’s Employment Committee, acting on behalf of Full Council. This
will include any salary package equating to £100,000 or more.

Settlement Agreements

Torbay Council will only enter into Settlement Agreements in exceptional circumstances
where it is in the Council’s overall commercial and financial interests to do so. Any
Settlement Agreement for the Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service will be approved by
the Full Council. This will include any severance package including associated pension
costs equating to £100,000 or more.

In the case of Settlement Agreements for Directors and Assistant Directors, this will
need to be approved by the Council’s Employment Committee acting on behalf of full
Council. This will include any severance package including associated pension costs
equating to £100,000 or more.

Page 120 7



7.1

7.2

7.3

Settlement Agreements for any other member of staff will need to be authorised by the
Director or Assistant Director of the service following consultation with the Chief
Executive/Head of Paid Service.

Publication

Once approved by Full Council, this Policy and any subsequent amendment will be
published on the Council’'s website. Human Resources Policy will be responsible for the
annual review to ensure an accurate pay policy is published ahead of each financial
year.

In accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting, the annual
Statement of Accounts includes pay details of Senior Officers reporting directly to the
Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service and statutory posts where the salary is above
£50,000 per annum.

Full Council decisions in relation to staff pay matters are available from the Council’s
internet page, link as follows:-

http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/ieDocHome.aspx

Page 121 8


http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/ieDocHome.aspx

Current Salary Levels for Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service, Directors,
Assistant Directors and other Senior Officers

Torbay Council publishes a Salary Levels list with post details, salary spot rates or bands and full-time
equivalent salaries, available from Torbay Council’'s web-site:-
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/council/finance/salary-levels/

Appendix 1 Multipliers

The idea of publishing the ratio of the pay of an organisation’s top salary to that of its median salary
has been recommended in order to support the principles of Fair Pay and transparency. These
multipliers will be monitored each year within the Pay Policy Statement.

The Council’s current ratio in this respect is 5.79:1, i.e. the highest salary earns 5.79:1 times more
than the Council’s median salary. When measured against the lowest salary the ratio is 9.33:1.

In comparing the highest paid salary with the wider workforce the Council will use the following
definitions:
¢ The lowest-paid employee: the employee or group of employees with the lowest rate of pay
(full-time equivalent) employed by the Council at the date of assessment. This includes all
types of employment within the Council.

e The median: the mid-point salary when full-time equivalent salaries of all core council staff are
arranged in order of size (highest to lowest). Based on the salary levels of staff on the date of
assessment. This includes all types of employment within the Council.

The lowest full time equivalent salary is £13,891 which is Point 6, Grade A. Date of assessment: 5t
January 2017.

Annual Salary Ratio to Highest

Highest Salary £129,586
Median (Mid-point) value £22,365.23 5.79:1
Lowest full time salary £13,891 9.33:1

9 Page 122


http://www.torbay.gov.uk/council/finance/salary-levels/

Equality Statement
These guidelines apply equally to all Council employees regardless of their age, disability, sex, race,
religion or belief, sexual orientation, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, marriage and

civil partnership. Care will be taken to ensure that no traditionally excluded groups are adversely
impacted in implementing this policy. Monitoring will take place to ensure compliance and fairness.

Policy Feedback

Should you have any comments regarding this policy, please address them to the HR Policy
Feedback mailbox —

HRpolicy@torbay.gov.uk

History of Policy Changes

This policy was first agreed by members of the Torbay Joint Consultative Committee in March 2012

Date Page Details of Change Agreed by:
November 2012 | Various Amendment from Chief SSG 8.11.12
Executive to Chief Operating Approved by Full Council
Officer
6" December 4-5 Update to pension ranges re: Approved by Full Council
2012 LGPS contribution rates Addition
of Payments upon Termination
Section
6" December 7 Update to Ratio + Multiplier Approved by Full Council
2012 information (Appendix 2)
6" December 6 Update to current salary levels + | Approved by Full Council
2012 addition of newly appointed
posts (Appendix 1)
5" December Various Update to current salary levels | To be approved by Full
2013 and reference to Chief Executive | Council — 5.12.13
Officer throughout. Inclusion of
Public Health information.

10 Page 123


mailto:HRpolicy@torbay.gov.uk

5th December
2014

Various

Update to current salary levels
and pension rates, reference to
Executive Head of Commercial
Services.

To be approved by Full
Council —4.12.14

November 2015

Various

-Update to reflect structure
changes, e.g. Chief Officer/Head
of Paid Service and Assistant
Director roles. Reference to
National Living Wage from
1.4.16.

New section (5) relating to
approval process for Chief
Officer/Head of Paid Service
appointments and changes to
Section 6 (Settlement
Agreements) to reflect approval
process, i.e. delegation to
Employment Committee for
decisions relating to Directors
and Assistant Directors.
Reference to “Openness and
Accountability in Local Pay:
Supplementary Guidance”

Approved by Full Council —
10.12.15

February 2017

Various

Update to reflect change in job
title — Chief Officer to Chief
Executive.

Changes to Appendix 1 —
Multipliers, due to salary pay
award in 2016 and introduction
of National living Wage.
Changes to terms and
conditions relating to
enhancements and other terms
and conditions that have been
varied through Collective
Consultation.

Updated to reflect Hay 2016
rates low to medium and spinal
scales.

General re-wording to take into
account constitution, general
delegations.

Pending - to be approved by
Full Council February 2017

Policy to be reviewed December 2017.

11 Page 124




Agenda Item 10
Appendix 3

pensions

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013
And

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions
& Savings) Regulations 2014

Employer Name: TORBAY COUNCIL

Policy effective from: 1°* April 2017 — following Council decision
2" February 2017

Page 125



Regulation R16(2)(e) & R16 (4)(d)

Policy Decision

Shared Cost Additional Pension Scheme

An employer can choose to pay for or contribute
towards a member’s Additional Pension Contract
via a Shared Cost Additional Pension Contract
(SCAPC)

Torbay Council will not normally enter into a
Shared Cost Additional Pension Contract to count
towards a member’s Additional Pension Contract
except in exceptional circumstances.

Regulation R30(6) & TP11(2)

Policy Decision

Flexible Retirement

Employers may allow a member from age 55
onwards to draw all or part of the pension
benefits they have already built up while still
continuing in employment. This is provided the
employer agrees to the member either reducing
their hours or moving to a position on a lower
grade.

In such cases, pension benefits will be reduced in
accordance with actuarial tables unless the
employer waives reduction on compassionate
grounds or a member has protected rights

Torbay Council will take all reasonable steps to
accommodate an employee’s request for Flexible
Retirement.

The Council will consider waiving reduction to
pensions benefits where flexibility will enable the
Council to retain key skills within critical service
areas.

The Council will also consider requests where an
employee is aged between 55 to 60 and satisfies
the 85 year rule criteria.

Requests will be considered by the Head of Paid
Service and/or Council, dependent upon the
seniority of the role and associated costs, in line
with the Local Government Transparency Code
2014.

Regulation R30(8)

Policy Decision

Waiving of actuarial reduction

Employers have the power to waive, on
compassionate grounds, the actuarial reduction
(in whole or part) applied to members benefits
paid on the grounds of flexible retirement.

Employers may also waive, on compassionate
grounds, the actuarial reduction (in whole or
part) applied to member’s benefits for deferred
members and suspended tier 3 ill health
pensioners who elect to draw benefits on or after
age 60 and before normal pension age

Employers also have the power to waive, in
whole or in part, the actuarial reduction applied
to active members benefits when a member
chooses to voluntarily draw benefits on or after
age 55 and before age 60.

The Council will not waive the actuarial reduction
to scheme member’s benefits in respect of
flexible retirement, deferred member’s benefit
requests, suspended tier 3 ill health pensioners
or active members who retire voluntarily and
draw benefits from age 55 to normal retirement
age.

The Council will consider waiving the acturarial
reduction to the scheme member’s benefits in
respect of flexible retirement only.

Page 126




Regulation TPSch 2, para 2(2) & 2(3)

Policy Decision

Power of employing authority to “switch on”
the 85 Year Rule

An employer can choose whether to “switch on”
85 year rule for members who voluntarily retire
on or after age 55 and before age 60

An employer can also choose to waive, on
compassionate grounds, the actuarial reduction
applied to benefits for a member voluntarily
drawing benefits on or after age 55 and before
age 60

Torbay Council will not ‘switch on’ the 85 year
rule for members who voluntarily retire on or
after age 55 and before age 60.

The Council will also not waive the actuarial
reduction in respect of benefits drawn for a
member from age 55 to 60.

Regulation R31

Policy Decision

Power of employing authority to grant
additional pension

An employer can choose to grant additional
pension to an active member or within 6 months
of ceasing to be an active member by reason of
redundancy or business efficiency (by up to
£6,500* per annum)

(* the figure of £6,500 will be increased each April
under Pensions Increase orders)

Torbay Council will not normally exercise the
discretion to grant additional pension except in
exceptional circumstances.

These policies may be subject to review from time to time. Any subsequent change in this Policy

Statement will be notified to affected employees.

Signed on behalf of

Signature of authorised officer:

Date:

Print name of authorised officer:

Job Title:

Page 127




Agenda Item 11

ORBAY

COUNCIL ~

Meeting: Council Date: 23 February 2017

Wards Affected: All

Report Title: Heart of the South West Devolution — Update and Appointment of
Joint Committee

Is the decision a key decision? Yes
When does the decision need to be implemented? June 2017

Executive Lead Contact Details: Mayor Gordon Oliver, 01803 207001,
mayor@torbay.gov.uk

Supporting Officer Contact Details: Anne-Marie Bond, Assistant Director — Corporate
and Business Services, 01803 207160, anne-
marie.bond@torbay.gov.uk

1. Proposal and Introduction

1.1  This report provides an update following the July 2016 ‘in principle’ Council
approval to progress negotiations for a devolution deal and the establishment of a
Combined Authority.

1.2  This report also outlines proposals for the:

e Preparation and approval of a Heart of the South West (HotSW) Productivity
Plan to take forward the HotSW Prospectus for Productivity which was prepared
in support of the partnership’s aspirations to secure a devolution deal and
approved by the councils in February 2016.

e Creation of a formal HotSW Joint Committee of the local authorities, national
park authorities and partners to take forward the Productivity Plan.

1.3 The proposals outlined above are covered by common recommendations in this
report to be considered by all of the councils during February/March 2017.

2. Reason for Proposal

2.1 The urgent and essential need to improve productivity across the HotSW area is
the driver for the recommendations in this report.

2.2  The Productivity Plan will replace the Local Enterprise Partnership’s Strategic
Economic Plan. It will be the key strategic document for the partners to engage

forward thinking, people orientated, adaptable - always with integrity.

Page 128



2.3

2.4

2.5

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

with Government on a range of investment opportunities and powers emerging
from the Industrial Strategy and the National Infrastructure Fund.

The recommendations also reflect the position reached with the Government on the
Combined Authority / devolution deal matters. With no agreement in sight on either
issue the Leaders wish to put in place an alternative formal collaboration
arrangement at HotSW level to maintain and take forward the momentum achieved
by the partnership.

The HotSW Joint Committee will provide a formal strategic partnership to
complement and maximise the ability of local sub-regional arrangements to deliver
their aspirations. It will allow the partners to collaborate to agree and deliver the
Productivity Plan as well as engage effectively with the Government, other deal
areas and other LEPs on a range of policy agendas. It will allow the partnership to
test and improve its ability to work together as a potential precursor to the
establishment of a Combined Authority at some point in the future. It will also
provide a mechanism to work alongside and influence the LEP on strategic
investment decisions affecting the HotSW area and to secure improvements to LEP
governance and accountability.

Without a Joint Committee in place at this time at a strategic level, the HotSW area
is likely to find itself disadvantaged in terms of taking advantage of Government
policy initiatives and new funding opportunities compared to those areas that have
and are establishing formal strategic partnerships. Although a Joint Committee
cannot undertake the full range of functions of a Combined Authority, it would
provide a mechanism towards the establishment of a Combined Authority if
deemed appropriate, including the potential to operate as a shadow Combined
Authority at some point in the future.

Recommendation(s) / Proposed Decision

That the update about the HotSW Combined Authority / devolution deal proposals
(including that a Joint Committee, if established, will have responsibility for
developing future ‘deal’ and combined authority proposals for recommendation to
the constituent authorities) be noted.

That the proposals for the HotSW Productivity Plan preparation and consultation
(including noting that a Joint Committee, if established, will have responsibility for
approving and overseeing the implementation of the Productivity Plan) be
approved.

That it be agreed ‘In principle’ that a HotSW Joint Committee be established with a
Commencement Date of Friday 1 September 2017 in accordance with the
summary proposals set out in this report.

That the ‘in principle’ decision at (3.3) above be subject to further recommendation
and report to the constituent authorities after the County Council elections in May
2017 and confirmatory decisions to: approve the establishment of the Joint
Committee; a constitutional ‘Arrangements’ document; an ‘Inter-Authority
Agreement’ setting out the support arrangements; appoint representatives to the
Joint Committee; and appoint an Administering Authority.

Page 129



Appendices

Appendix 1. Supporting Information and Impact Assessment

Page 130



Agenda ltem
Appendix 1

Supporting Information and Impact Assessment

Heart of the South West Devolution — Update and
Appointment of Joint Committee

Executive Lead: Elected Mayor of Torbay
Director / Assistant Director: Steve Parrock, Chief Executive

Service / Policy:

Version: 1 Date: 24.1.17 Author: Julian Gale, Strategic Manager —
Governance & Risk, Somerset
County Council (on behalf of the
Programme Management Office)

11

Section 1: Background Information

1. Combined Authority / Devolution Deal update

1. Following the in-principle agreement by Heart of the South West
(HotSW) local authorities to move towards a Combined Authority model
to deliver its devolution deal, the Government has changed and the EU
Referendum has taken place. Both of these events have had a
significant impact on Government policy and in particular the approach
to devolution.

2. Members will recall that before the change of Government the previous
Secretary of State had indicated his support for the establishment of a
Combined Authority for the HotSW area and indicated that a Mayor
would not be imposed or be a pre-condition of any initial devolution
deal. Although it was made clear that a Mayor was required to achieve
extensive funding and powers, the partnership was encouraged to push
the limits of an initial deal, with the potential for further deals in the
future. At that stage in the early autumn of 2016, the Autumn Statement
presented the first opportunity for the announcement of an initial deal. It
was also acknowledged that the HotSW LEP would not be penalised in
Growth Deal 3 negotiations through not agreeing to a Mayor.

3. These indications were sufficient for the councils to pass resolutions in
July / August 2016 to agree to the principle of creating a non-Mayoral
Combined Authority for the Heart of the South West, as set out in the
Prospectus for Productivity, as the basis for negotiation with
Government towards a devolution deal for the area.

4. Following the change of Government, the new Secretary of State has
given a clear indication that a Mayoral Combined Authority is required in
order to achieve a significant devolution deal.

5. The collective view is that the partnership must maintain the momentum
achieved to date by putting in place arrangements across the HotSW
area to deliver key ambition of raising productivity and avoid the area
being disadvantaged compared to its neighbours. Pending any
progress being made on 1.4 above, and to allow the area to capitalise

Page 131



on the emerging, national Industrial Strategy, the Leaders are
recommending the following at this stage:

e The creation of a HotSW Productivity Plan to develop the strength of
the Heart of South West’'s economy; and

e That consideration is given to the creation of a Joint Committee of
HotSW partners to drive the development and delivery of the
Productivity Plan and be the basis for identifying further public sector
reform opportunities for recommendation to the partner authorities.

HotSW Productivity Plan

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

The report to Council on 21 July 2016 set out that regardless of whether
the area entered into a devolution deal with Government the partnership
intended to continue with the development of a Productivity Plan for the
area to deliver the aspirations set out in the Prospectus for Productivity
agreed by the Councils in February 2016. This remains the priority of
the partnership.

The Productivity Plan, which replaces the LEP’s Strategic Economic
Plan, will guide the long term growth aspirations for the area and will be
our key strategic document for engaging with Government and our
communities on future prosperity. In the absence of a combined
authority / devolution deal at this stage a mechanism is required to
enable the partners to collaborate formally to maximise what can be
achieved within existing structures and resources through new ways of
working as well as continue negotiations with Government over a range
of policy agendas to help deliver the partnership’s productivity
ambitions.

The latest research from Exeter University confirms that the area has
one of the best employment rates in the country. However, too many of
those jobs are part-time and low paid. The area significantly lags
behind the rest of the UK in terms of its productivity and the key to our
future prosperity is to address this disparity.

Productivity is defined as: “the amount of goods and services that a
person, industry or country produces per hour.” The more goods and
services that are produced, the more productive — and ultimately
wealthy — an economy is. There are 5 drivers of productivity which must
all be addressed for productivity to rise:

1. Competition
. Which encourages business to innovate and be more efficient;
and
. Access to national and international markets through good
infrastructure.
2. Enterprise
. New business opportunities for existing firms and start-ups
where competition encourages new ideas and ways of
working; and
. Support for businesses and entrepreneurs.
3. Investment in physical capital

Page 132




2.5

2.6

2.7

. Machinery, equipment, buildings and infrastructure. More
capital generally means that more can be done, better and

quicker; and
. Infrastructure and somewhere to ‘set up shop’ are essential,
and investment capital must be available.
4, Skills
. Skills are needed to take advantage of investment in new
technologies and ways of running a business; and
. Skills alone can determine productivity but so do good
management, creativity and investment.
5. Innovation
o The successful exploitation of new ideas: technology,

products or ways of working boost productivity, for example
as better equipment works faster; and

. Research and development and general support for
innovators is essential.

Our Prospectus for Productivity confirms our commitment to increasing
productivity across the Heart of the South West to ensure a successful
future economy. We know the new Secretary of State for Business,
Energy and Industrial Strategy, who is developing the Industrial
Strategy, is keen to hear and reflect the local narrative in his strategy.
The Productivity Plan will provide the platform for the area to engage
with Government on this agenda with a view to delivering our collective
aspirations for growth in the Heart of the South West.

The Productivity Plan will be developed through an evidence base
produced by the LEP’s Future Economy Group and engagement with
stakeholders and the community. In developing the Plan a range of
issues will be explored:

Productivity in the public and private sector

Understanding how the local economy works and interventions
required to guide investment decisions

Bringing together local government, business community, public,
the universities and other groups

The need to build an inclusive economy with growth for all.

Work to create the Productivity Plan is intended to be a fully inclusive
process involving all stakeholders and will include public consultation. It
will take the form of several stages as follows:

W/c 23 January — 10 March 2017 — a discussion paper will be shared shortly
with all Councils. This ‘Green Paper’ will set out some of the emerging
challenges for Heart of the South West productivity identified by the LEP’s
Future Economy Group. The results from this discussion paper will form the
basis of a formal consultation paper on the vision and priorities for a
Productivity Plan.

May 2017 (post County Council elections) — A formal consultation ‘White
Paper’ will be released to all Councils and stakeholders. This will be a public
consultation to directly inform the content of the Productivity Plan.

September 2017 — The Productivity Plan will be considered for formal
adoption.

Page 133




HotSW Joint Committee Proposal

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Members will be aware of the work on developing the Combined
Authority proposal for the HotSW area. This work was suspended
following the change of government focus as referenced elsewhere in
this report. The partnership decided that until there is clarity from the
Secretary of State of the criteria for moving forward on devolution, it
would take forward a less risky and more cost effective short term
option of forming a HotSW Joint Committee to oversee and own the
development and delivery of the Productivity Plan. Although the Joint
Committee would not have the statutory status of a Combined Authority
and cannot therefore deliver the full range of benefits that a Combined
Authority can, it has the potential to provide cohesive, coherent
leadership and formal governance to agree and oversee delivery of the
Productivity Plan and bring forward other pan-HotSW proposals for
recommendation to the constituent authorities, as desired and
necessary. Its role will focus on collaboration, negotiation and
influencing with full delegated decision making responsibilities limited to
agreeing and overseeing the implementation of the HotSW Productivity
Plan. All other matters where a decision is required will be referred
back to the constituent authorities for approval.

Ultimately the aims of the Joint Committee through delivery of the
Productivity Plan will be to:

e Improve the economy and the prospects for the region by
bringing together the public, private and education sectors;

e Increase our understanding of the economy and what needs to
be done to make it stronger;

e Ensure that the necessary strategic framework, including
infrastructure requirements, is in place across the HotSW area to
enable sub-regional arrangements to fully deliver local
aspirations; and

e Improve the efficiency and productivity of the public sector.

The creation of a single strategic public sector partnership covering the
HotSW area will: facilitate collaborative working; help us to remove
barriers to progress and will provide the partnership with the formal
structure to engage with Government at a strategic level to maximise
the opportunities /benefits available to the area from current and future
government policy. It will also enable the constituent authorities and
partners to have discussions with neighbouring councils / combined
authorities / LEP areas on South West peninsula priorities and issues as
well as the ability to move swiftly towards a devolution deal and
Combined Authority model in the future if the conditions are acceptable.

A Joint Committee will also provide a formal mechanism for the
constituent authorities to engage effectively with the LEP across
common boundaries and agendas. The LEP is in the process of
adopting a new assurance framework as part of new government
requirements which require improvements in the LEP’s transparency
and accountability. The direct involvement of the LEP in the Joint

Page 134




3.5

3.6

3.7

Committee on many common agendas will provide a mechanism to
enable the councils to have a more direct involvement in and greater
influence over the activities of the LEP.

The detail of the proposed functions of the Joint Committee and how it
will operate will be set out in a draft ‘Arrangements’ document which will
be presented to the constituent authorities for approval in the summer .
The reason for only seeking an ‘in principle’ approval to the creation of a
Joint Committee at this stage is because of the local County Council
elections scheduled for May 2017. Therefore final decisions to
establish the Joint Committee will be sought from all authorities in July /
August with a view to the Committee being established on the 1%
September 2017.

In detail the proposed functions of the Joint Committee are as follows:

(a) Develop, own and implement the HotSW Productivity Plan in collaboration with
the LEP.

(b) To identify and develop proposals (for recommendation to constituent authorities
/ partner agencies as necessary) in response to policy opportunities presented
by the Government to secure functions and funding for the benefit of improving
productivity. Examples include Industrial Strategy, Brexit, and Devolution.

(c) Develop and make recommendations to the constituent authorities / partner
agencies for actions emerging from the work of the Brexit Opportunities and
Resilience Task Group

(d) Continue discussions / negotiations with the Government / relevant agencies to
secure delivery of the Government’s strategic infrastructure commitments, eg,
strategic road and rail transport improvements

(e) Identify opportunities for rationalising / improving existing public sector
governance arrangements and make recommendations to the constituent
authorities/partners..

()  To work with the LEP to identify and deliver improvements to the LEP’s
democratic accountability and to assist the organisation to comply with the
revised (November 2016) LEP Assurance Framework. This includes formally
endorsing the LEP’s assurance framework on behalf of the constituent
authorities as and when required and before it is formally approved by the LEP’s
Administering Authority.

(g) To ensure that adequate resources (including staff and funding) are allocated by
HotSW partners to enable the objectives in (a) to (f) above to be delivered.

In addition to the functions set out above, the Joint Committee
Arrangements document will set out in detail:

(@) Membership arrangements: based onl Authority (and to include the 2 National
Park Authorities, 1 Member (normally the Leader of the Council / Chairman of
the National Park Authority), 1 named substitute member and 1 vote. Partner
organisations such as the LEP and the Clinical Commissioning Groups will also
have non-voting membership of the Joint Committee

(b) Standing Orders / Rules of Procedure: An Administering Authority will be
identified to support the operation of the Committee and it will be recommended
that the Standing Orders and Rules of Procedure of the Administering Authority
will apply to the operation of the Committee. This will include the usual Access
to Information rules which apply to local authority meetings.

(c) Provisions to enable a Constituent Authority to formally withdraw from the Joint
Committee and for the Joint Committee to be dissolved.

(d) Appointment of a Chairman and Vice-Chairman on an annual basis.

(e) The ability for the Joint Committee to appoint sub-committees or establish
working groups as required.

Page 135




3.8  Adraft Inter-Authority Agreement will accompany the ‘Arrangements’
document for approval in the summer. This will detail how the Joint
Committee will be supported and set out the obligations on the
constituent authorities.

In particular this document will set out the Administering Authority
functions in support of the operation of the Committee including the
provision of financial, legal, constitutional and administrative support to
the Committee.

The Agreement will also include:

(a) The cost sharing agreement setting out how the costs of running
the Joint Committee will be met by the constituent authorities

(b) The roles and responsibilities of the constituent authorities in
support of the Joint Committee

(c) The roles and duties of the Chief Executives’ Advisory Group that
will support the Joint Committee

(d) Accounts, Audit, Insurance arrangements

(e) Confidentiality, Equal Opportunities, Data Protection provisions

(f) Dispute Resolution provisions.

3.9 In addition to the Arrangements and Agreement documents, as part of
the summer approval recommendations, the constituent authorities will
also be asked to confirm nominations for Joint Committee membership;
and appoint an Administering Authority to support the Committee.

How does this proposal support the ambitions, principles and delivery of the
Corporate Plan 2015-19?

Working with partners towards a devolution deal and to create a Productivity Plan
for the Heart of the South West, meets the ambition of creating a Prosperous
Torbay as well as the principle of taking an integrated and joined up approach.

Who will be affected by this proposal and who do you need to consult with?

Throughout the development of proposals for devolution, Members and the
public have been kept informed of developments. Communications include
press releases, newsletters and publication of the Devolution Statement of
Intent and Prospectus for Productivity. This emphasis on consultation will
continue with the proposed Productivity Plan over the spring of 2017 and this
will inform the final Plan to be approved in the autumn of 2017.

Page 136




Section 2: Implications and Impact Assessment

6. What are the financial and legal implications?

Financial Implications

Costs associated with the early work on the Productivity Plan preparation
largely relate to officer time which is being provided ‘in kind’ by the authorities
and partners. Specifically some direct costs will be met by the Local
Enterprise Partnership across the common agendas of the LEP and the
partnership.

The establishment of a Joint Committee provides a low cost option compared
to a Combined Authority structure. It is anticipated that the Committee will
receive considerable in kind support from partners and direct running costs will
be limited to potentially providing direct officer support for the meetings, if there
is insufficient ‘in-house’ capacity, and the costs of the meetings themselves. In
respect of the latter, meeting costs can be minimised through the use of
council premises for meetings if that is the wish of the authorities. The
assumption at this stage is that the direct support costs will be kept to a
minimum but could potentially rise to an estimated maximum of £40k per
annum as a shared cost between all constituent authorities. The final costs
figure will be dependent on the views of the leaders on the issues raised
above. Clarification on these issues will be sought before the decision point is
reached in the summer to establish the Joint Committee. It is anticipated at
this stage that even if the costs are at the upper figure detailed above then in
the first year (2017/18) of the operation of the Joint Committee the costs are
likely to be covered by the residual devolution budget so requiring no further
call for funding from the authorities.

In addition to the direct costs of administering the Joint Committee there is also
the issue of a budget to fund its work. At this stage it is recommended that this
should be an early issue for discussion and recommendation by the Joint
Committee, once established, as this will be dependent on the eventual work
programme.

In coming to their decision about a Joint Committee, Members might like to
consider the potential cost/impact of not working in this way and the potential
loss of investment to the area. Through recent funding initiatives and policy it
is clear that Government is looking for areas to come together and articulate
their vision and priorities across footprints wider than their organisational
boundary or sub-regional areas. The areas that work on wider boundaries are
more successful in securing funding. A recent example of this is the Growth
Deal funding settlements announced in the Autumn Statement to the Northern
Powerhouse and Midlands Engine authorities, who work through formal
governance arrangements, when compared with the wider South West.

The proposal put before Council sets out a low risk, low cost option to work in a
more formal way to capitalise on opportunities arising from future Government
strategies and funding strands.

Page 137




Legal Implications

Each of the partners’ legal teams and Monitoring Officers will be involved in the
development of the detail of the Joint Committee.

The Joint Committee will be instigated through a simple ‘Arrangements’
document setting out the functions, membership and operation of the
Committee as well as an Inter-Authority Agreement setting out how the
authorities will support the Committee. These documents will be
recommended for approval in the summer but a summary of the principles and
iIssues to be covered are set out in this report.

Somerset County Council has been the lead authority for the Governance
work-stream within the Partnership and the Council’s Chief Executive and
Monitoring Officer have developed the outline proposal for the Joint Committee
in consultation with the Leaders and Chief Executives Group.

What are the risks?

Risk implications will continue to be addressed at all stages of these proposals.
The Secretary of State is yet to formally clarify his position on the HotSW
devolution proposal although the overall policy direction seems to be becoming
clearer. In the circumstances the Leader feel that the partnership needs to
move forward with the priority development of the HotSW Productivity Plan and
that this can best be achieved through the establishment of a formal Joint
Committee in place of the current informal governance arrangements. This will
put a formal governance structure around the Productivity Plan preparation,
approval and delivery so minimising risk to the County Council and the other
partner authorities. It will give partners the ability to negotiate with Government
at pace, particularly on the emerging Industrial Strategy but without the
statutory commitment required to establish a Combined Authority.

Without a Productivity Plan and Joint Committee in place the Council and its
partners will be at a disadvantage in negotiating and lobbying Government on
a range or policy initiatives including the growth agenda and are likely to miss
out on potential funding streams.

Page 138




Agenda Item 12

ORBAY
COUNCIL —
Meeting: Audit Committee Date: 18 January 2017
Council 23 February 2017

Wards Affected: All

Report Title: Decision to opt in to the national scheme for Auditor Appointments
with Public Sector Audit Appointment (PSAA) as the ‘Appointing Person’

Is the decision a key decision? No
When does the decision need to be implemented? 8 March 2017

Executive Lead Contact Details: Mayor Oliver, Mayor and Executive Lead for Finance
and Regeneration, (01803) 207001 and mayor@torbay.gov.uk

Supporting Officer Contact Details: Martin Phillips, Head of Finance, (01803) 207285
and martin.phillips@torbay.gov.uk

1. Proposal and Introduction

1.1  This report sets out the proposals for appointing the external auditor to the Council
for the 2018/19 accounts and beyond, as the current arrangements only cover up to
and including 2017/18 audits. The auditors are currently working under a contract
originally let by the Audit Commission and the contract was novated to Public
Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) following the closure of the Audit Commission.

1.2 If the Council is to take advantage of the national scheme for appointing auditors to
be operated by PSAA for the subsequent years, it needs to take the decision at this
meeting to enable the Council to accept the invitation, which has a deadline of, by
early March 2017.

2. Reason for Proposal

2.1 A sector-wide procurement conducted by PSAA will produce better outcomes and
will be less burdensome for the Council than any procurement undertaken locally.
More specifically:
e The audit costs are likely to be lower than if the Council sought to appoint

locally, as national large-scale contracts are expected to drive keener prices
from the audit firms;

forward thinking, people orientated, adaptable - always with integrity.

Page 139



¢ Without the national appointment, the Council would need to establish a
separate independent auditor panel, which could be difficult, costly and time-
consuming;

e PSAA can ensure the appointed auditor meets and maintains the required

guality standards and can manage any potential conflicts of interest much more
easily than the Council;

e Supporting the sector-led body will help to ensure there is a vibrant public audit
market for the benefit of the whole sector and this Council going forward into
the medium and long term.

3. Recommendation(s) / Proposed Decision

3.1 That the Audit Committee recommends:
That the Council accepts Public Sector Audit Appointments’ (PSAA) invitation to
‘opt in’ to the sector led option for the appointment of external auditors for five
financial years commencing 1 April 2018.

Appendices

Appendix 1: Supporting Information

Background Documents

Invitation to become an opted-in authority

Page 140



Agenda Iltem 12
Appendix 1

Appendix 1 Supporting Information

Section 1: Background Information

1. What is the proposal / issue?

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act) brought to a close the Audit
Commission and established transitional arrangements for the appointment of
external auditors and the setting of audit fees for all local government and NHS
bodies in England. On 5 October 2015 the Secretary of State Communities and
Local Government (CLG) determined that the transitional arrangements for local
government bodies would be extended by one year to also include the audit of the
accounts for 2017/18.

The Act also set out the arrangements for the appointment of auditors for
subsequent years, with the opportunity for authorities to make their own decisions
about how and by whom their auditors are appointed. Regulations made under
the Act allow authorities to ‘opt in’ for their auditor to be appointed by an
‘appointing person’.

In July 2016 PSAA were specified by the Secretary of State as an appointing
person under regulation 3 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations
2015. The appointing person is sometimes referred to as the sector led body and
PSAA has wide support across local government. PSAA was originally
established to operate the transitional arrangements following the closure of the
Audit Commission under powers delegated by the Secretary of State. PSAA is an
independent, not-for-profit company limited by guarantee and established by the
LGA.

PSAA is inviting the Council to opt in, along with all other authorities, so that PSAA
can enter into a number of contracts with appropriately qualified audit firms and
appoint a suitable firm to be the Council’s auditor.

2. What is the current situation?

The Council’s current external auditor is Grant Thornton, this appointment having
been made under a contract let by the Audit Commission. Following closure of
the Audit Commission the contract was novated to PSAA, and since this date
PSAA has demonstrated its capability in terms of auditor appointment, contract
management, and monitoring audit quality. Over recent years authorities have
benefited from a reduction in fees in the order of 55% compared with fees in 2012.
This has been the result of a combination of factors including new contracts
negotiated nationally with the audit firms and savings from closure of the Audit
Commission. The Council’s current external audit fee is £102,000 per annum plus
any grant certification work.

The scope of the audit will still be specified nationally, the National Audit Office
(NAO) is responsible for writing the Code of Audit Practice which all firms
appointed to carry out the Council’s audit must follow. Not all audit firms will be
eligible to compete for the work, they will need to demonstrate that they have the

Page 141




required skills and experience and be registered with a Registered Supervising
Body approved by the Financial Reporting Council.

What options have been considered?

If the Council did not opt in the PSAA there would be a need to establish an
independent auditor panel. In order to make a stand-alone appointment the
auditor panel would need to be set up by the Council itself. The members of the
panel must be wholly or a majority of independent members as defined by the Act.
Independent members for this purpose are independent appointees, this excludes
current and former elected members (or officers) and their close families and
friends. This means that elected members will not have a majority input to
assessing bids and choosing which audit firm to award a contract for the Council’s
external audit.

Alternatively the Act enables the Council to join with other authorities to establish
a joint auditor panel. Again this will need to be constituted of wholly or a majority
of independent appointees (members). Further legal advice would be required on
the exact constitution of such a panel having regard to the obligations of each
Council under the Act and the Council would need to liaise with other local
authorities. Local procurement has been considered and discussed with
neighbouring authorities however there was no appetite for such action. This
together with only nine providers that are eligible to audit local authorities and
other relevant bodies means that any local procurement exercise would seek
tenders from these same firms, subject to the need to manage any local
independence issues. Local firms could not be invited to bid.

None of these options are recommended. All these options would require more
resource-intensive processes to implement and without the bulk buying power of
the sector led procurement, would be likely to result in a more costly service. It
would also be more difficult to manage quality and independence requirements
through a local appointment process.

How does this proposal support the ambitions, principles and delivery of the
Corporate Plan 2015-19?

The proposal supports the Corporate Plan by using reducing resources to best
effect. The PSAA as appointing authority would manage the procurement
process, ensuring both quality and price criteria are satisfied. Ensure suitable
independence of the auditors from the bodies they audit and managing any
potential conflicts as they arise whilst minimising the scheme management costs
and returning any surpluses to scheme members. Activities that would have
placed greater demand on resources that are already stretched.

Who will be affected by this proposal and who do you need to consult with?

Torbay Council’s officer and elected members. However there would be no
change to the delivery model.

How will you propose to consult?

Not applicable.

Page 142




Section 2: Implications and Impact Assessment

7. What are the financial and legal implications?
Legal implications

Section 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires a relevant
Council to appoint a local auditor to audit its accounts for a financial year not later
than 31 December in the preceding year. Section 8 governs the procedure for
appointment including that the Council must consult and take account of the
advice of its auditor panel on the selection and appointment of a local auditor.
Section 8 provides that where a relevant Council is a local Council operating
executive arrangements, the function of appointing a local auditor to audit its
accounts is not the responsibility of an executive of the Council under those
arrangements.

Section 12 makes provision for the failure to appoint a local auditor: the Council
must immediately inform the Secretary of State, who may direct the Council to
appoint the auditor named in the direction or appoint a local auditor on behalf of
the Council.

Section 17 gives the Secretary of State the power to make regulations in relation
to an ‘appointing person’ specified by the Secretary of State. This power has been
exercised in the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 (SI 192) and
this gives the Secretary of State the ability to enable a Sector Led Body to become
the appointing person. In July 2016 the Secretary of State specified PSAA as the
appointing person.

Financial implications

There is a risk that current external fee levels could increase when the current
contracts end in 2018. Opting-in to a national scheme provides maximum
opportunity to ensure fees are as low as possible, whilst ensuring the quality of
audit is maintained by entering in to a large scale collective procurement
arrangement.

If the national scheme is not used some additional resource may be needed to
establish an auditor panel and conduct a local procurement. Until a procurement
exercise is completed it is not possible to state what, if any, additional resource
may be required for audit fees for 2018/19.

8. What are the risks?

The principal risks are that the Council fails to appoint an auditor in accordance
with the new frameworks or does not achieve value for money in the appointment
process. These risks are considered best mitigated by opting in to the sector led
approach through PSAA.

9. Public Services Value (Social Value) Act 2012
No implications

Page 143




10.

What evidence / data / research have you gathered in relation to this
proposal?

Information on Council’s who have opted in is available on the PSAA website.

Informal updates between unitary Council’s indicate the significant majority are
intending to use the PSAA.

Informal update between other Councils in Devon indicates the majority are
intending to use the PSAA.

11. What are key findings from the consultation you have carried out?
Not applicable.
12. Amendments to Proposal / Mitigating Actions

Not applicable

Page 144




Agenda Iltem 13

ORBAY

COUNCIL -

Meeting: Council Date: 23 February 2017

Wards Affected: All Wards

Report Title: Provisional Calendar of Meetings for 2017/2018

Is the decision a key decision? No

When does the decision need to be implemented? As soon as possible

Executive Lead Contact Details: Councillor Mills, Deputy Mayor and Executive Lead for
Health and Wellbeing and Corporate Services, derek.mills@torbay.gov.uk

Supporting Officer Contact Details: June Gurry, Governance Support Manager,
(01803) 207012, june.gurry@torbay.gov.uk

1. Proposal and Introduction

1.1 To seek approval for the provisional calendar of meetings for the 2017/2018
Municipal Year.

2. Reason for Proposal

2.1  The provisional calendar of meetings for 2017/2018 (attached at Appendix 1) has
been prepared based on the Council’s decision-making structure and in
accordance with the Council’s Standing Orders.

3. Recommendation(s) / Proposed Decision

3.1 That the provisional calendar of meetings for 2017/2018, set out in Appendix 1 to
the submitted report, be approved for final ratification at the Annual Council
Meeting.

3.2  That meetings of the Employment Committee and Civic Committee be held on an
ad-hoc basis, to be determined by the Governance Support Manager in
consultation with the relevant Chairman/woman.

Appendices

Appendix 1: Provisional Calendar of Meetings 2017/2018

forward thinking, people orientated, adaptable - always with integrity.

Page 145



Supporting Information
4. Position

4.1  Before the end of each Municipal Year the Council considers the provisional
calendar of meetings for the following Municipal Year, which is then ratified at the
Annual Council Meeting.

The following meetings have been scheduled in the calendar for 2017/2018.
Council;

Policy Development Decision Group (Joint Operations Team));
Policy Development Decision Group (Joint Commissioning Team);
Overview and Scrutiny Board;

Development Management Committee;

Licensing Committee;

Licensing Sub-Committee;

Harbour Committee;

Investment Committee;

Health and Wellbeing Board;

Standards Committee;

Audit Committee;

Appeals Committee (Transport).

4.2  The meetings of the Council have been programmed to allow sufficient reporting
time between the meetings for the plans and strategies which are required to be
approved through the Council’s Policy Framework process and for the budget
setting process.

4.3  The draft calendar has also been structured to allow, wherever possible, for each
type of meeting to be allocated a certain day e.g. Development Management
Committee to meet on Mondays, Licensing Sub-Committees and Council on
Thursdays.

4.4  Meetings of the Employment Committee and Civic Committee are proposed to be
held on an ad hoc basis, to be determined by the Governance Support Manager in
consultation with the relevant Chairman/woman.

5. Possibilities and Options

5.1  Wherever possible the timings of meetings have been set in accordance with the
needs of the Committee Members and the Public, for example the Licensing Sub-
Committees convene at 9:30 a.m. which is suitable for those making
representations. Timings are kept under constant review by the Governance
Support Manager. There is a small risk that some people will still not be able to
attend these meetings, however, in most cases where public participation is
permitted, the Council will accept written representations to enable people to put
their points of view across.

Page 146



6. Preferred Solution/Option

6.1 Members may wish to set alternative dates for meetings. However, the meetings
have been timetabled to allow sufficient time for the reporting of the plans and
strategies which make up the Council’s Policy Framework and the Council’s budget
setting process. A calendar of meetings is required under Standing Orders and
facilitates the organisation of the Municipal Year.

7. Consultation

7.1  The Mayor, Group Leaders, Chief Finance Officer and the Chief Executive have
been consulted on the draft provisional calendar of meetings for 2017/2018.

Background Documents

Constitution of Torbay Council -
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=458&info=1

Page 147


http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=458&info=1

Agenda Iltem 13

Appendix 1
Provisional Calendar of Meetings 2017-2018
1 May 2017 - 17 May 2018
MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY
Appeals
Committee 9.30 am 17 21 19 25 (Mon)| 18 8 13 17 21 28 25 2
Wednesday
(Transport)
Audit Committee | 200 PM 31 26 27 22 24 21
Wednesday
Annual Annual
Council 9 Council
(Tue) 1 14 (Mon)
Council Tiifszrg Adj 20 13 (Wed)| 19 7 8 19 Adj
y Annual 22 Annual
Council 10 Council
(Wed) 14 (Mon)
Development 2.00 pm
Management 8 12 10 14 11 16 13 11 8 12 12 9 8 (Tue)
. Monday
Committee
Harbour 5.30 pm
Committee Monday 26 12 (Tue) 19
Health and 1.30 pm
Wellbeing Board Thursday 11 6 S 6 (Wed) 15
Investment 4.00 pm 4 (Ig“) 13 11 8 5 137 14 1 9 6 6 |4 wed .
Committee Tuesday 30 27 25 22 19 31 28 23 20 20 17
Licensing 9.30 am
Committee Thursday 11 23
4 ; 6 130 7 5 S . 4 1 ; 5
Licensing Sub- 9.30 am 11 15 13 17 14 12 16 14 11 8 15 12 3
Committee Thursday 18 20 21 19 18 15 19 10
25 22 27 24 28 26 23 21 25 22 22 26
29 31 30 29
Overview and 5.30 pm
Scrutiny Board Wednesday 3 14 12 6 11 29 13 10 14 14 11
Policy
Development and
Decision Group 2.00 pm
(Joint Monday 2 (Tue) 5 3 4 2 6 4 9 (Tue) 5 5 3 (Tue) | 1(Tue)
Commissioning
Team)
Policy
Development and
. 2.00 pm
Decision Group 18 15 13 14 12 16 14 11 15 8 12
. . Thursday
(Joint Operations
Team)
14
Priorities and 15
: . 17
Resources Review Various 20 4
Panel 2018/19
27
28
Standards 2.30 pm 7 8
Committee Wednesday
Transport Working 4.00 pm
Party Thursday 29 30

Page 148




Agenda Iltem 19
0):3:7:\'¢

COUNCIL -

Meeting: Council Date: 23 February 2017
Wards Affected: All Wards

Report Title: Jubilee Gardens — Mayoral Recommendations

Is the decision a key decision? Yes

When does the decision need to be implemented? As soon as possible

Supporting Officer Contact Details: Anne-Marie Bond, Assistant Director Corporate
and Business Services, anne-marie.bond@torbay.gov.uk

1. Proposal and Introduction

1.1 At the meeting of the Policy Development and Decision Group (Joint Operations
Team) held on 6 February 2017 Members considered the submitted report (set out
at Appendices 2 to 5 to this report) on the proposed disposal of a number of assets
which had been deemed by officers as surplus to the Council’s requirements. This
included a piece of land adjacent to 4 Berry Head Road, Brixham known as Jubilee
Gardens.

1.2  Atthe meeting Members heard oral representations against the proposed disposal
of Jubliee Gardens from Tracy Hallett (Town Clerk of Brixham Town Council, she
also spoke on behalf of Phil Trayhorn who had submitted a petition via Change.org
which contained approximately 1,600 unverified signatures from local residents and
visitors) and Mr John Bates (member of the public). Members also noted that a
number of representations had been sent directly to the Mayor opposing this
disposal.

1.4  The Policy Development and Decision Group recommended to the Mayor that
Jubilee Gardens should be transferred to Brixham Town Council, who had stated
that they would protect the land and keep it as public open space.

1.5 The Mayor considered the recommendations of the Policy Development Group and
his recommendation to the Council is set out in paragraph 3 to this report. Full
details of his decision/recommendation in respect of Jubilee Gardens are set out in
his Record of Decision at Appendix 1 to this report.

2. Reason for Proposal

forward thinking, people orientated, adaptable - always with integrity.

Page 149


mailto:anne-marie.bond@torbay.gov.uk

2.1 To consider the recommendations of the Mayor which are outside the Council’s
Policy Framework, namely the Corporate Asset Management Plan and therefore for
the Council to determine.

3. Recommendation(s) / Proposed Decision
Recommendations from the Mayor:

3.1  That the Council be recommended that the land adjacent to 4 Berry Head Road
(known as Jubilee Gardens) remains in the Council’s ownership and is not
disposed of.

3.2  That the Council place a covenant on the land adjacent to 4 Berry Head Road,
shown edged red on map number EM260 attached at Appendix 4 to the submitted
report, protecting it from future development.

Appendices

Appendix 1: Record of Decision — Disposal of Surplus Assets

Appendix 2: Covering report — Proposed Disposal of Surplus Assets

Appendix 3: Supporting Information and Impact Assessment

Appendix 4: Map showing land at 4 Berry Head Road

Appendix 5: Results from consultation — 4 Berry Head Road

Background Documents

None

Page 150



Agenda ltem 19
Appendix 1

Record of Decision
Proposed Disposal of Surplus Assets
Decision Taker
Mayor on 06 February 2017
Decision

(1) that the Council be recommended that the land adjacent to 4 Berry Head Road (known
as Jubilee Gardens) remains in the Council’s ownership and is not disposed of
(recommendation to Council not subject to call-in); and

(i) that the Council place a covenant on the land adjacent to 4 Berry Head Road protecting
it from future development (recommendation to Council not subject to call-in);

(i)  that, having considered the feedback set out in Appendix 3 to the submitted report and
heard at the meeting, the following assets should be declared as no longer required for
service delivery and that the Assistant Director Corporate and Business Services be
requested to where appropriate advertise their intended individual disposal in
accordance with the Section 123(2A) of the Local Government Act 1972:

1. North Boundary Road playpark, Brixham;
2. Land at Green Park Road, Preston; and
3. Bay Tree House, Croft Road;

(iv)  that, subject to any objections received to any disposal advertised pursuant to S123 of
the Local Government Act 1972 the assets listed in (iii) above be individually disposed
on such terms as are acceptable to the Assistant Director Corporate and Business
Services in consultation with the Executive Head of Business Services and the Chief
Executive of the Torbay Development Agency; and

(v)  that, the Assistant Director Corporate and Business Services in consultation with the
Executive Head of Business Services and the Chief Executive of the Torbay
Development Agency be given delegated authority to consider any objections received
on the advertisement of any of the proposed disposals pursuant to s123 of the Local
Government Act 1972.

Reason for the Decision

The disposal of the three assets not required for service delivery will enable the capital receipts
to be reinvested into the Council’s existing Capital Programme, which will contribute to the
Council’s objectives as set out in the Council’'s Corporate Plan and the Corporate Asset
Management Plan and is in accordance with the Council’'s budget and Policy Framework.

The reduction of the number of assets held is seen as an important element to achieving a
sustainable maintenance regime for future generations.

The land known as Jubilee Gardens is a valued community asset and should remain as such
and be protected from future development.

Page 151



Implementation

The recommendations in respect of (i) and (ii) will be considered at the Council meeting on 23
February 2017.

The decision in respect of (iii) to (v) will come into force and may be implemented on 17
February 2017 unless the call-in procedure is triggered (as set out in the Standing Orders in
relation to Overview and Scrutiny).

Information

The submitted report set out a proposal to dispose of the following four assets which had been
deemed surplus to the Council’s requirements in accordance with the Council’s Corporate
Asset Management Plan:

Land adjoining 4 Berry Head Road, Brixham (known as Jubilee Gardens);
North Boundary Road Playpark, Brixham;

Land at Green Park Road, Preston; and

Bay Tree House, Croft Road, Torquay.

Oral representations were heard against the proposed disposal of the land adjacent to 4 Berry
Head Road (known as Jubliee Gardens) from Tracy Hallett (Town Clerk of Brixham Town
Council and on behalf of Phil Trayhorn who had submitted a petition via Change.org which
contained approximately 1,600 unverified signatures from local residents and visitors) and Mr
John Bates (member of the public). Members also noted that a number of representations had
been sent directly to the Mayor opposing this disposal.

The Mayor considered the oral representations made at the meeting, together with the written
representations in connection with Jubilee Gardens, the representations set out in Appendix 7
to the submitted report and the recommendations of the Policy Development and Decision
Group (Joint Operations Team) made on 6 February 2017 and his decision is set out above.
Alternative Options considered and rejected at the time of the decision

Alternative options were set out in the submitted report but were not discussed at the meeting.
The Mayor considered the recommendation of the Policy Development and Decision Group to
transfer the land adjacent to 4 Berry Head Road (known as Jubilee Gardens) but felt that this
asset should remain in the ownership of Torbay Council but that it should be protected by
means of a covenant.

Is this a Key Decision?

Yes — Reference Number: 1028277

Does the call-in procedure apply?

Yes

Page 152



Declarations of interest (including details of any relevant dispensations issued by the
Standards Committee)

None
Published

9 February 2017

Signed: Date: 9 February 2017
Mayor of Torbay

Page 153



Agenda Item 19
Appendix 2

ORBAY

COUNCIL ~

Meeting: Policy Development and Decision Group (Joint Operations Team)
Date: 6 February 2017

Wards Affected: Berry Head with Furzeham, Preston and Tormohun
Report Title: Proposed Disposal of Surplus Assets

Is the decision a key decision? Yes

When does the decision need to be implemented? As soon as possible

Executive Lead Contact Details: Mayor Oliver, Mayor and Executive Led for
Employment, Regeneration, Finance and Audit, mayor@torbay.gov.uk

Supporting Officer Contact Details: Kevin Mowat, Executive Head of Business Services,
01803 208428, kevin.mowat@torbay.gov.uk / Liam Montgomery, Head of Asset
Management and Housing, (01803) 208720, liam.montgomery@torbay.gov.uk

1. Purpose and Introduction.

1.1. To make individual recommendations relating to the disposal of four surplus assets
to achieve capital receipts and cost savings.

2. Proposed Decision
2.1. That the Mayor be recommended:

(1) to consider any feedback received before the 6™ Feb 2017, from the Local
Access Forum, Ward Councillors and Council officers to the disposal of the
four assets listed in Appendix 1;

(i) that, subject to any feedback identified in (i) above, to accept that the four
assets listed in Appendix 1 should be declared as no longer required for
service delivery and that the Assistant Director Corporate and Business
Services be requested to where appropriate advertise their intended
individual disposal in accordance with the Section 123(2A) of the Local
Government Act 1972;

(i)  that, subject to any objections received to any disposal advertised pursuant to
S123 of the Local Government Act 1972 and subject to (i) above, the assets
listed in Appendix 1 be individually disposed on such terms as are acceptable
to the Assistant Director Corporate and Business Services in consultation

forward thinking, people orientated, adaptable - always with integrity.

Page 154


mailto:kevin.mowat@torbay.gov.uk
mailto:liam.montgomery@torbay.gov.uk

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

4.1.

4.2.

with the Executive Head of Business Services and the Chief Executive of the
Torbay Development Agency; and

(iv)  that, the Assistant Director Corporate and Business Services in consultation
with the Executive Head of Business Services and the Chief Executive of the
Torbay Development Agency be given delegated authority to consider any
objections received on the advertisement of any of the proposed disposals
pursuant to s123 of the Local Government Act 1972.

Reason for Decision

Expenditure and repair liability across the Council’s assets significantly exceeds
available resources.

Council services supported by the Torbay Development Agency (TDA) continue to
review the suitability and challenge the present use of assets. Working together the
TDA and Council officers have considered the assets listed in Appendix 1 with a
view to reducing running costs and generating capital receipts. These receipts could
then be used to support the Council’s approved Capital Programme.

The disposal of assets not required for service delivery will enable the capital
receipts to be reinvested into the Council’s existing Capital Programme, which will
contribute to the Council’s objectives as set out in the Council’s Corporate Plan and
the Corporate Asset Management Plan. Consequently the recommended decision
falls within the Council’s Policy Framework.

The reduction of the number of assets held is seen as an important element to
achieving a sustainable maintenance regime for future generations.

At this point it is neither possible nor desirable to publicly quantify the expected total
receipt.

Section 123(2A) of the Local Government Act 1972 states that subject to certain
exceptions a council may not dispose of land consisting or forming part of an open
space unless before disposing of the land they advertise the disposal for two
consecutive weeks in a local newspaper, and consider any objections to the
proposed disposal which may be made to them. An open space is defined for the
purposes of the Act as being any land laid out as a public garden, or used for the
purposes of public recreation, or land which is a disused burial ground

Supporting Information

The Capital Strategy is approved by the Council each year and provides the funding
for the Capital Programme which will be met in part from asset disposals.

The Corporate Asset Management Plan which is approved by the Council each year
provided that the Council would adhere to the following guiding principles in the
management of its assets:

To continuously maintain and improve assets;

To release value and minimise cost by challenging and reviewing the manner and
use of assets;

To periodically review all assets to identify possible alternative use or disposal;

Page 155



4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

5.1.

5.2.

6.1.

7.1.

8.1.

To ensure that disposals are effectively managed; and
To monitor running costs to target potential savings.

Three of the four sites are deemed to be open space (Land adj. No. 4, Berry Head
Road, Land at Green Park Road and North Boundary Road Play Park). As such
their sale will be advertised in accordance with Section 123(1)(2a) of the Local
Government Act 1972. The Council will need to consider any objections prior to their
disposal.

The disposal of public open space is likely to require some form of mitigation, if so
required, as indicated in Policy R5 ‘Protection of public open spaces and playing
fields’, as set out in the Local Plan. However, this requirement would be identified as
part of the asset review process and planning policy would need to be followed in
any event. As such any decision to dispose of public open space is within Council
policy, so long as other associated policies are followed.

If deemed appropriate, architects will be instructed to obtain planning consent for the
sites so that the final disposal value can be maximised.

When an asset is considered to be available for sale, either with or without planning
consent, an external agent or auctioneer (as deemed appropriate) will be instructed
to sell the asset in accordance with Council Standing Orders.

Possibilities, Options and Fair Decision Making

The assets could be retained. If the assets are retained the ongoing maintenance
burden and repair liability would most likely remain with the Council. Also, if the
assets are retained then the anticipated capital receipt income will be lost and this
will have a negative impact on the Council’s capital budget/plan.

It would be possible to consider transferring some of these assets under the
Council’s Community Asset Transfer Policy but this option would not produce the
anticipated capital receipt.

Equal Opportunities

An Equality Impact Assessment has been published in respect of these proposals
and is attached to this report as Appendix 2.

Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012

Where deemed appropriate, architects will be employed to obtain an alternative
planning consent and external agents / auctioneers (as appropriate) will be
appointed to effect a disposal.

Consultation

Letters including plans of the individual assets have been forwarded to relevant
Ward Members and the Secretary for the Torbay Local Access Forum and
comments received in respect of these proposals are attached to this report as
Appendix 7.

Risks
Page 156



9.1.

10.

11.

The disposal of assets not required for service delivery has been identified as one of
several initiatives to provide additional funding to tackle the backlog of urgent land
and building maintenance, as well as providing much needed receipts for the Capital
Programme. Inevitably, there may be some objections to the disposal of some of the
assets identified. Failure to consult adequately may lead to abortive disposal work
should some of the disposals not proceed. This risk has been mitigated by
consulting adequately and by advertising prior to any marketing taking place.

Appendices

Appendix 1 Schedule of assets to be declared surplus.
Appendix 2 Equalities Impact Assessment

Appendix 3 EM2670 — Land adj. to no. 4 Berry Head Road
Appendix 4 EM2814a — North Boundary Road Play Park
Appendix 5 EM2653 — Land at Green Park Road
Appendix 6 EM2637 — Bay Tree House

Appendix 7 - Comments from Consultation

Additional Information

11.1. None

Page 157



Agenda Item 19

Appendix 3
Appendix 2 Supporting Information and Impact Assessment
Service / Policy: TDA
Executive Lead: Mayor
Director / Assistant Director: Steve Parrock
Version: 1 Date: 11.01.17 Author: Susanne Lang

Section 1: Background Information

1. What is the proposal / issue?

That four Council Real Estate Assets be declared no longer required for
service delivery. The four assets are:

¢ Land adj. no4. Berry Head Road
e North Boundary Road Play Park
e Land at Green Park Road
e Bay Tree House

2. What is the current situation?

Land adj. no.4 Berry Head Road

This piece of amenity land is currently subject to ongoing maintenance
liabilities for the Council. Natural Environment have highlighted this site as a
‘high Value public Space similar to Shoalstone, breakwater and the south West
Coast Path’. If sold it has the potential of generating income for the Council
which contributes to Council’'s Capital Programme.

North Boundary Road Play Park

The site (as a play area) is not well overlooked and has minimal play value and
is currently subject to ongoing maintenance liabilities for the Council. If sold,
this could provide a capital receipt for the Council.

Land at Green Park Road

This site was highlighted as a possible asset disposal site by the SLTG. lItis
currently subject to ongoing ground maintenance liabilities. If sold it has the
potential of providing a capital receipt for the Council.

Bay Tree House

Bay Tree House has previously been leased to the Care Trust who has
recently declared the property surplus to operational requirements and will be
returning the property to the Council in January 2017. In order to maintain the
integrity of the vacant building programme of planned maintenance would be
required to prevent deterioration. Otherwise the asset will quickly become a
maintenance liability. In addition to the repair and maintenance liabilities the

Page 158




Council will be liable for Business Rate until an alternative use is established or
the property is disposed of.

What options have been considered?

The assets could be retained and the repair and maintenance of the sites
carried out by the Council.

Land adj. no.4 Berry Head Road
Maintain as open space

North Boundary Road Play Park
Retain as a play park

Land at Green Park Road
Maintain as open space

Bay Tree House
Property has been advertised for lease on Right Move since September 2016
with minimal interest. If retained it would become a liability for the Council.

How does this proposal support the ambitions, principles and delivery of the
Corporate Plan 2015-19?

The effective us of assets is a key factor in delivering to the community of
Torbay the objectives and priorities they have set for the Council.

The Council’s Corporate Asset Management Plan (CAMP) 2015-2019 sets out
the strategies to achieve the most efficient use of assets.

The principle aim of CAMP is to ensure that the opportunity cost of financial
resources tied up in land and buildings is minimised, and that capital and
revenue expenditure on the portfolio is directed efficiently and effectively to
provide value for money.

Who will be affected by this proposal and who do you need to consult with?

The disposal of assets not required for service delivery will enable the capital
receipts to be reinvested into the Council’s existing capital programme, and
save ongoing repair and maintenance costs which will contribute to the
Council’s objectives and therefore benefitting the residents of Torbay.

Consultation with Council service areas, Ward ClIr's and the Local Access
Forum is underway and any comments that are received will be included in the
final report as an additional appendix item.

The disposal of assets not required for service delivery has been identified as
one of several initiatives to provide additional funding to tackle the urgent land
and building backlog maintenance liability and provide receipts for the Capital

Page 159




Programme. Inevitably, there may be some objections to the disposal of one
of more of the assets. Failure to consult adequately may lead to abortive
disposal work should some of the disposals not proceed. The risk has been
mitigated by consulting adequately and by advertising prior to any marketing
taking place.

How will you propose to consult?

The above groups and organisations have been contacted and will be asked to
comment on the proposal to dispose of the asset.

Section 2:

Implications and Impact Assessment

What are the financial and legal implications?

When an asset is considered to be available for sale, either with or without
planning consent, an external agent (as deemed appropriate) will be instructed
to sell the asset in accordance with the Council Standing Orders.

The net proceeds of sale are then transferred to the Corporate Centre for
distribution and prioritisation.

What are the risks?

Failure to consult adequately may lead to abortive disposal work should some
of the disposals not proceed.

Public Services Value (Social Value) Act 2012

Not applicable

10.

What evidence / data / research have you gathered in relation to this
proposal?

Evidence would suggest that disposal of the sites and subsequent sale of the
land/building would provide a capital receipt for the Council.

11.

What are key findings from the consultation you have carried out?

Consultation is currently being undertaken and any feedback will be provided
in an additional appendix in the final report.

Page 160




12.

Amendments to Proposal / Mitigating Actions

In reaching a decision on the proposals, the Mayor will consider any comments
or observations received and if appropriate amend the proposals.

Page 161




29T abed

Equality Impacts

13

Identify the potential positive and negative impacts on specific groups

Positive Impact

Negative Impact & Mitigating
Actions

Neutral Impact

Older or younger people

There is no differential impact
on Older or younger people
with regard to this proposal.

People with caring
Responsibilities

There is no differential impact
on People with caring
responsibilities with regard to
this proposal.

People with a disability

Although there is no differential
impact on people with a
disability, where appropriate,
the Secretary for the Torbay
Local Access Forum has been
sent individual plans, seeking
any comments or observations
on the proposals.

Women or men

There is no differential impact
on Women or men with regard
to this proposal

People who are black or
from a minority ethnic
background (BME) (Please
note Gypsies / Roma are
within this community)

There is no differential impact
on People who are black or
from a minority ethnic
background (BME) with regard
to this proposal.

Religion or belief (including

There is no differential impact




€97 abed

lack of belief)

on Religion or belief (including
lack of belief) with regard to this
proposal.

People who are lesbian,
gay or bisexual

There is no differential impact
on People who are lesbian, gay
or bisexual with regard to this
proposal

People who are
transgendered

There is no differential impact
on People who are
transgendered with regard to
this proposal.

People who are in a
marriage or civil partnership

There is no differential impact
on People who are in a
marriage or civil partnership
with regard to this proposal.

Women who are pregnant /
on maternity leave

There is no differential impact
on Women who are pregnant /
on maternity leave with regard
to this proposal.

Socio-economic impacts
(Including impact on child
poverty issues and
deprivation)

The three Council Real Estate
Assets that are being declared no
longer required for service delivery
will enable the capital receipts to
be reinvested into the Councils
existing programme, which will
contribute to the Councils
objectives and therefore
benefitting the residents of
Torbay.

Public Health impacts (How
will your proposal impact on
the general health of the
population of Torbay)

The asset is being returned to the
Council from the Care Trust due to
the fact it is no longer required for
service delivery. It is through this
action that the Council have
determined the disposal of Bay




Tree House will have no
differential impact on Public
Health.

14

Cumulative Impacts —
Council wide
(proposed changes
elsewhere which might
worsen the impacts
identified above)

15

Cumulative Impacts —
Other public services
(proposed changes
elsewhere which might
worsen the impacts
identified above)

9T obed




Page 165



A
© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey 100022695. ‘ \g e n

Mean High Water
and and Shingle

Car Park

.....

4
kS
Multistorey Car Park
[ H:‘:Z::
|
18l
181
12|
12}
L
metres
Scale: 1:1,250 A
EM Plan No: EM2670 Asset No: B0061
Date: 18th January 2016 LR Title No: DN510943 ORBAY
Title: Land adj No 4 Berry Head Road, Brixham. Scale: 1:1250
Area: 868.24m?
Page 166 I
TORBAY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY - ASSET MANAGEMENT - A




/9T abed

Proposed disposal of surplus assets

Results from consultation

Asset Asset Members Service Areas L.A.F Other

Ref name

EM2670 | Land adj. | We are writing to request that you do not Natural Environment Could you please advise if Brixham Town Council
tono. 4 place Jubilee Gardens, land adjacent to 4 the first piece of land is that | We have been made aware through
Berry Berry Head Road on the Disposal of Assets We can confirm that the site is commonly known as Jubilee | our ward councillors of two locations
Head Lists for the following reasons:- suitable for disposal and have Gardens? If so, as it is part of | in Brixham that have been proposed
Road not raised any objections to this. | the Coastal Path, surely for dispersal by Torbay Council at the

1) It is a Green Space much loved and used
by both the local community and visitors
alike.

2) It is used by Green Tourists walking the
South West Coastal Path for rest and
recreation.

3) It is a safe area being surrounded by
ancient rock walls in a sheltered position.
4) It is an amazing vantage point for both
residents and visitors, to appreciate the
views and vistas.

5) It has been identified as a Local Green
Space by the community to be included in
the Brixham Peninsula Neighbourhood
Plan. This Plan starts a six week public
consultation period on the 28th

January 2017

In support of our above submission, we
would like to draw your attention to the
following.

Corporate Plan
Delivering for the Future - Ensuring Torbay

They are surplus to our
requirements.

I think the Jubilee Garden site
would benefit from disposal, as it
has little public value on the
wider neighbourhood and very
little use. The capital investment
from the disposal through the
planning system would benefit
the surrounding more valuable
open spaces such as Shoalstone
Pool and associated picnic area.

We are aware of covenants on
the site but assume this can be
negated? A high value public
space similar to Shoalstone,
breakwater and the South West
Coast Path but the surrounding
site could benefit from
investment in accordance with

there is a public footpath
that needs to be protected.

I share the concern of
Margaret Forbes Hamilton
(above) re the public
footpath status of the
Jubilee Gardens, and note
that there has been a well
supported local campaign
against any sell of Jubilee
Gardens . If the coast path
status is correct then
presumably the South West
Coast Path Association , and
Natural England (who are
planning to adopt the SW
coast path as part of their
England Coast path route),
should be aware of any plans
for disposal . | attended a
detailed briefing meeting by

PDDG on the 6™ February 2017.

Brixham Town Council makes the
following objection and requests
that Brixham Town Council are
notified of ALL Brixham assets prior
to being added to the dispersal list.

That the Mayor does not place the
proposed assets located at North
Boundary Road play park and Land
adj. No.4 Berry Head Road (Jubilee
Gardens) on the Asset dispersal list
for the following reasons:

Jubilee Gardens (Land adj. No.4
Berry Head Road).

These gardens have been designated
in the emerging neighbourhood plan
as a green space. The Brixham
Peninsular Neighbourhood Forum
(BPNF) have worked tirelessly for the
past 7 years to protect our green
spaces, highlighting the important

G XIpuaddy

6T Wa)| epusaby


x-apple-data-detectors://9/
x-apple-data-detectors://9/
x-apple-data-detectors://9/

89T abed

remains an attractive and safe place to live,
visit and work.

Target Action 3 - Promoting Healthy
Lifestyles across Torbay

Paragraph 3. "We will improve accessibility
to Leisure, sports, and GREEN SPACES and
promote increased physical activity through
the use of Council Assets and the Natural
Environment."

Our comment - We believe the current
proposal is contrary to the above Target.

Target Action 4 Safe Attractive Place to
live and visit - Where we aim to be :
Torbay Council will ensure there is focus
on PROTECTING and RETAINING the
Quality of our Natural and built
Environment. Maintaining a safe and
secure place for Torbay's residents,
businesses and visitors, including the
provision and maintenance of
infrastructure (including Marine, Road,
Rail, Walking and GREEN SPACES)

Our Comment - We believe the current
proposal is contrary to the above Target.

Torbay Local Plan
The adopted plan for Torbay has stressed

the importance of the Natural Environment
for the Economy and for the Health and
Wellbeing of its residents.

1.1.7 Crucially the Plan recognises the
unique quality of the Bays environment

Policy R5.

A number of arboricultural
constraints arise, principally from
the large, recently pollarded
Holm Oak, however a number of
other visually prominent trees
are also present along the
boundary to the road. The
seaward side of the land is clear
of other of tree constraints other
than a small hedge. A
professionally prepared
BS5837:2012 methodology
would be required to indicate
tree quality and to support any
development of the space prior
to any commencement of sale or
transfer.

Natural England on the
proposed England Coast
Path and there was no
mention of any issue relating
to sale of land in the
Brixham area that might
affect the coast path route.
Alan Robinson, Footpath
officer, South Devon
Ramblers.

link between health and green
spaces.

If Torbay Council proceed to sell our
green spaces it will not only nullify
the work and importance of the
Neighbourhood plan but have a
detrimental effect on the residents
and visitors to Brixham.

Jubilee Gardens is protected under
the covenants listed below:

1) All mineral rights under the
foreshore are reserved to the Duchy
of Cornwall

2) The land to be preserved as an
open space.

3) No building to be erected on the
land.

4) During the vendors occupation of
her residence,("Wolborough"), the
Council will maintain the land in
good condition, and will not give
right of access to the public. (This
covenant released June 1984, vendor
ceased occupation of
"Wolborough".)

These sites are valued by the
community of Brixham and should
be retained for the benefits of the
community. Itis also disappointing
that Torbay Council did not see fit to
include Brixham Town Council as
part of the notification process.




69T abed

both Natural and Built.

1.1.8 Indicates concerns over the risks of
eroding the balance of the Environmental
Capacity.

We refer you to Policy SS8 Natural
Environment and SS9 Green
Infrastructure : this particularly comments
on the pressure on the Berry Head area
including the South Hams SAC and
therefore any GREEN SPACES in close
proximity will assist in removing some of
this pressure.

There are many more Policies and
Statements relating to the Natural
Environment contained within Torbay's
Local Plan which we are happy to discuss
with you if you wish.

3.1.5 Sustainable Communities and Places-
where people want to be, include OPEN
SPACES, PARKS, VIEWS etc.

Our Comment - We believe that the current
proposal is contrary to the adopted Local
Plan.

Brixham Urban Landscape Character Study
June 2011 (a document included in the
Local Plan) states:-

Page 84 Objectives

6) Local People and Visitors should be
made more aware of the Natural and
Cultural Heritage of the Area and
encouraged to take pride in the local
environment.

Brixham Town Council is an elected
corporate body which is here to
represent the residents of Brixham.
Torbay Council should be notifying
BTC of important aspects such as this
if only out of common decency and
recognition of its work and status.

As a member of Brixham Town
Council & Pride in Brixham | try to
work hard to make Brixham a better
& pleasant place for people to live. |
have done my best to support you in
your ideas i.e. the Brixham railway
link and to bring in & support events
in the bay as a whole.

May | ask you to please consider
carefully the disposal of the two
open spaces in Brixham?
Negotiations between Torbay
Council and Brixham Town Council
have been ongoing for some time
now in connection with the land at
North Boundary Rd. The Town
Council wanted to retain the land as
open space allowing it to still be an
access point to the old tracks and
turn it into a Community Orchard by
planting fruit trees etc.

The land along Berry Head Rd is used
all the time in the summer by
families having a picnic or just sat
reading / enjoying the view in what




0.T abed

7) Local Communities should be better
connected to the Countryside to develop a
stronger sense of place.

8) Sufficient Recreation and sporting
facilities should be provided for local
people and visitors to maintain a healthy
life style, whilst protecting other
environmental resources.

It is recognised the people of Brixham
prides itself on its community spirit with a
great sense of place and a huge pride and
love of the Natural Environment that
surrounds the Town. To support the aims
above a grant application will shortly be
made to the Heritage Lottery Fund in order
to introduce a year round Heritage Trail
which will have many aspects to it including
the very unique Brixham Culture and
guiding residents and visitors around our
beautiful Coastal Walks.

We would ask you not to undermine our
Communities wish to designate this
exceptional area of Natural Beauty and
Tranquillity as Local Green Space and
therefore to withdraw the Land Adjacent
to 4 Berry Head Road as a Disposal of Asset.

| am responding to this as both a Ward
Councillor of Brixham Town Council and
Torbay Council and also as the Chair of the
Brixham Peninsula Neighbourhood Forum.
| wish to advise you that the land next to 4
Berry Head Road appears to be the area
locally known as Jubilee Gardens which has

is the last small but open space in
the centre of Brixham. | brought this
up at a Pride in Brixham meeting on
Wednesday & as a member of the
group | can say that this small area
would be looked after & improved
with no cost of incumbents to Torbay
Council.

| hope you will see the long term
benefits over the short term financial
gain these areas would bring.



x-apple-data-detectors://10/

T/ 9bed

been designated as a Local Green Space in
the Neighbourhood Plan and we believe
fully meets the criteria. This would
severely restrict what would be allowed on
that piece of land. The Plan is out for
consultation this month and when our
referendum is held | cannot think of one
person who will not agree that this area is
unique and cannot be replaced.




Agenda Iltem 21

ORBAY

COUNCIL -

Meeting: Council Date: 23 February 2017
Wards Affected: All Wards in Torbay

Report Title: Review of Electoral Arrangements - Submission by Torbay Council on
Council Size

Is the decision a key decision? Yes
When does the decision need to be implemented? by end of February 2017

Executive Lead Contact Details: Councillor Derek Mills, Deputy Mayor and Executive
Lead for Health and Wellbeing and Corporate Services

Supporting Officer Contact Details: Anne-Marie Bond, Assistant Director Corporate
and Business Services, (01803) 207160, anne-marie.bond@torbay,gov.uk

1. Proposal and Introduction

1.1  Further to Council Minute 40/7/16, the Local Government Boundary Commission
for England (LGBCE) is undertaking a review of the number of Councillors in
Torbay to ensure electoral equality and that Councillors represent the same
number of electors across the whole of Torbay.

1.2  The first stage of the process is to decide how many Councillors in total should be
elected to Torbay Council in what is known as ‘Council Size’ submission. This is to
ensure that the Council has the right number of Councillors to take decisions
effectively.

1.3 The second stage of the process is to look at the ward boundaries to ensure an
equal spread of Councillors across each ward. This will be launched in May 2017
when the LGBCE commences its formal consultation on warding patterns. Further
information on this will be available on their website at www.Igbce.org.uk.

2. Reason for Proposal

2.1  The current level of 36 elected Members should be retained so that the Council can
ensure it continues to:

[1 provide an effective decision making process;

(1 provide effective arrangements for the management and delivery of its
business, responsibilities and regulatory functions;

[ support extensive and effective involvement in community representation and

forward thinking, people orientated, adaptable - always with integrity.

Page 172


http://www.lgbce.org.uk/

continue to develop Members’ roles as community leaders; and
[J respond to the challenges facing Torbay and its local communities, as the
population continues to grow.
3. Recommendation(s) / Proposed Decision
3.1 That the Review of Electoral Arrangements - Submission by Torbay Council on
Council Size set out at Appendix 1 to the submitted report be approved and that the
Local Government Boundary Commission for England be recommended to retain
36 Councillors for Torbay.

Appendices

Appendix 1: Review of Electoral Arrangements - Submission by Torbay Council on
Council Size

Background Documents

www.lgbce.org.uk — guidance on electoral reviews

Page 173


http://www.lgbce.org.uk/

Agenda ltem 21
Appendix 1

QRBAY
';,"‘

Review of Electoral Arrangements - Submission by Torbay Council on
Council Size

1. Introduction

This submission sets out the response from Torbay Council to the Local Government
Boundary Commission for England’s (LGBCE) invitation to put forward a
recommendation on future Council size.

The review has been triggered because of electoral imbalances of the number of
electors per Councillor across some of the Wards in Torbay. For example the Shiphay
with the Willows Ward has 30% more electors per Councillor than the average. The
Council recognises the importance of electoral equality to a fair democratic process by
ensuring that each vote carries the same value, whilst at the same time it must ensure
that the governance of the Council is maintained at a level which can best serve the
electorate.

The Council’s submission has been developed with the Mayor and Group Leaders’
Group, consisting of the elected Mayor, the Council’s three Group Leaders and the
Overview and Scrutiny Co-ordinator. The Group Leaders have also carried out
consultation on the proposals with their respective group members. The Council’s
recommendation on Council size was unanimously approved by full Council so enjoys
the cross party support of all Members (to be updated after the Council meeting).

2. Overview of Council Size Submission

The Council’s submission addresses the three broad areas contained within the
LGBCE’s technical guidance on governance arrangements, scrutiny functions and the
representational role of Councillors within their local communities.

The last review of electoral arrangements in Torbay was in 2001/2002, when the
number of Councillors was retained at 36, spread over 15 Wards.

Based on the 1 December 2016 electoral register, the current Local Government elector
to Councillor ratio is 2,767. The electorate forecasts developed as part of this exercise
suggest that by 2023 the ratio for the Council’'s recommended number of Councillors
will be an average of 2,872 electors per Councillor.

Summary of the Council’s submission
The approach adopted when considering Council size has been to follow the LGBCE’s
guiding principles and address them both in terms of current arrangements and likely

future trends and plans. This has taken into account the change in Governance
arrangements that will occur in 2019.

Page 174



The number of Councillors required to enable the anticipated governance
arrangements to function are broadly the same as the existing number, namely
nine Executive Members and twenty-seven Overview and Scrutiny Non-Executive
Members, totalling 36 members. Therefore the number of Councillors
recommended by this Council would enable continued and sufficient support of the
Council’'s important governance and decision making functions, whilst ensuring it
can provide proper scrutiny, meet its regulatory responsibilities and maintain a
proper level of representation on local bodies and partnerships.

After considering all of the relevant factors, the Council’s recommendation is that its
current level of 36 elected Members should be retained so that the Council can
ensure it continues to:

(1 provide an effective decision making process;

[1 provide effective arrangements for the management and delivery of its
business, responsibilities and regulatory functions;

(1 support extensive and effective involvement in community representation
and continue to develop Members’ roles as community leaders; and

[ respond to the challenges facing Torbay and its local communities, as the
population continues to grow.

Summary of Justification
A summary of the Council’s justification for the submission is set out below:

Torbay Council is a small unitary authority responsible for delivering over 1,000
local services including children’s and adult social care, road maintenance, leisure
facilities and refuse collection with a population of circa 131,000. The Council’s
ambition is to create a Council fit for the challenges of the future, focusing on
creating a prosperous and healthy Torbay, which is reflected in the Corporate Plan
and its delivery plans.

Whilst the economy of Torbay is amongst the weakest in England, it is showing
signs of recovery from the recession, with recent statistics pointing to a more rapid
rise in salary rates than elsewhere in the Heart of the South West Local Enterprise
Partnership area. This has been assisted by the actions taken by the Council and
its partners to encourage investment in growth from businesses. The South Devon
Highway opened in December 2015 and will assist in improving Torbay’s economy
and lead to higher value employment and wider benefits through providing
improved transport links to the region.

The Torbay Local Plan has been adopted and provides over the next 18 years for
Torbay to grow by 9,000 homes and 5,500 jobs.

The Council continues to face significant budget pressures and is exploring new
and innovative ways to deliver services and maximise value for money. It will build
on the service specific partnerships are already in place, such as: the Torbay and
Southern Devon Health and Care NHS Trust (ICO); economic development
through the Torbay Development Agency (TDA); the Torbay Coast and
Countryside Trust; TOR2 (a joint venture company between Torbay Council and
Kier Group for direct services); and the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub. The
Council is also working with the Heart of the South West partnership on a proposed

Page 175



Devolution deal with the government.

The Council currently operates an elected Mayor and Executive model of
governance, but following a governance referendum held on 5 May 2016 will be
moving to a Leader and Cabinet style system with a Leader and Executive from
May 20109.

Our governance arrangements provide a system whereby Non-Executive Members
hold Executive Members to account and ensure that regulatory functions are
delivered to meet the demands of Torbay's economy and demographic. This will
continue with the new Leader and Cabinet system.

Technological advancements since the last electoral review and changes to the
way we all communicate, means there are far more channels of communication
now available between Members and their constituents. This has created 24 hour
access and an expectation that responses will be instant. Members see that their
workloads have increased since the last review and believe this trend will continue
as its population grows and the Council works to meet its commitment to deliver
new housing and encourage economic growth. Such technological changes
however have also supported Members’ ability to manage the demands upon them.
The Council has moved to a self service model of customer support with most of
the information customers require being available via the Council’'s website so they
can access it at any time. It is for this reason and making best use of its resources
that the Council does not feel it appropriate to increase the number of Councillors
above 36. The Council will not have an Elected Mayor from May 2019 and this
work will become additional work for one of the 36 Councillors who will become the
Leader of the Council. The Council did operate successfully pre-2005 with 36
Councillors within a Leader and Cabinet model of governance and whilst there has
been an increase in population since that time, new ways of working will make this
number of Councillors effective in 2019 and onwards.

The Council has given serious consideration to reducing the number of Councillors
to between 30 to 33 but believe that this would weaken the role of overview and
scrutiny as it would reduce the number of non-executive Councillors available for
overview and scrutiny. It would also reduce the overall number of Councillors
available to serve on outside organisations and other Council committees, sub-
committees and working parties, which would add to the workload of the remaining
Councillors.

The Council wants to ensure that it can continue to deliver value for money
services and address the needs of its residents, whilst being able to fully engage
and support its partners, communities and voluntary bodies spread across the
geographic area. Torbay has some of the most deprived wards in England and has
an ageing population, with high levels of overweight and obese children and adults.
Because of its diverse demographic the Council believes that it would not be in the
interests of the wider community to reduce the level of Member representation.

Page 176



Review of the Electoral Arrangements for Torbay Council - Submission by Torbay Council on Council Size

1. Governance and decision making — how does the Council manage its business and take decisions across its full range of

responsibilities?

11T ABp 1
21 o9cqg

Leadership

1.1 What kind of
governance
arrangements are in
place for the authority?

Following a governance referendum on 5 May 2016, the Council will be moving to a Leader
and Cabinet style system with a Leader and Executive. It is anticipated that the Council will
operate a “strong Leader” model whereby the Executive is appointed by the elected Leader
(which is the same model operated in Torbay before we became a Mayoral authority in 2005)
with the Leader being appointed by the Council.

The Executive will consist of between 2 and 9 members namely the Leader of the Council,
Deputy Leader and up to 7 Executive Members. It is anticipated that all the Executive
Members will be Portfolio Holders and the Council’s main representatives and spokespersons
on their nominated areas of responsibility.

The Executive will carry out all of the local authority’s functions which are not the responsibility
of any other part of the authority and are within the budget and Policy Framework (i.e. the
strategic plans and strategies of the Council such as the Corporate Plan and Local
Development Plan) approved by the Council.

Based on previous arrangements, there will be approximately 11 formal meetings of the
Executive per year and 11 informal Executive briefings.




1.2 How many There are currently 8 portfolios; 1 held by each member of the Executive, as follows:
portfolios are there?
Elected Mayor — Executive Lead for Finance and Regeneration

Deputy Mayor and Executive Lead for Health and Wellbeing and Corporate Services
Executive Lead for Planning, Transport and Housing

Executive Lead for Tourism, Culture and Harbours

Executive Lead for Community Services

Executive Lead for Adults and Children

Executive Lead for Business

Executive Lead for Environment

OO0OO0oO0OoOooad

It is anticipated that this will be reviewed by the new Authority from 2019 to align with the
officer structure in place at the time. There is likely to still be between 7 and 9 Members of the

QJT NP 1

0 Executive.
i
D
j 1.3 Describe how a Portfolio Holders monitor performance, hold regular meetings with the respective area
) portfolio holder carries Directors/Assistant Directors and Heads of Service and work with them to deliver the
out his/her work on a corporate objectives. There are monthly planned progress meetings with supplementary daily

day to day basis. or weekly contact with individual officers, depending on the workload.




1.4 To what extent are
decisions delegated to
portfolio holders or are
most decisions taken
by the full Executive?

What is the volume of
decisions taken?

How many decisions
are taken by officers?

It will be up to the Council in 2019 to determine if they wish to have individual decision
making, collective decision making or an advisory Executive with the decisions being made by
the Leader. Torbay currently operates with an advisory Executive with all Executive decisions
taken by the Mayor or Deputy Mayor.

The Council has an extensive officer scheme of delegation whereby the majority of decisions
are delegated to officers in consultation with the relevant Executive Lead. For example
contracts up to £50,000. It is anticipated that the officer scheme of delegation would remain at
similar levels or may be increased to enable the efficient running of the Council.

Over the past 12 months there have been approximately 50 Executive decisions taken by the
Mayor or Deputy Mayor. In light of the extensive officer scheme of delegation, the number of
decisions by officers are not held centrally, with only key officer decisions published on our
website. Therefore, the number of officer decisions is not readily available.

AT ahp 1
U1 YN©YU

1.5 Do Executive (or
other) Councillors serve
on other decision
making partnerships,
sub-regional or national
bodies?

Members do serve on other bodies. This includes approximately 54 ‘Outside Bodies’ which
are appointed after each election at the Annual Council meeting for the next four years and
include decision making partnerships, internal working groups, sub-regional, regional and
national bodies. 32 of the current Members serve on these bodies (8 Executive Members and
24 non-executive Members.




1.6 Is the role of the
Executive Councillor
considered to be full
time?

It is estimated that the Mayor and Deputy Mayor currently spend between 50 and 60 hours per
week on Council business. The other six Executive Leads’ time commitments vary (often
depending on the service area for which they are responsible). However, the average
Executive Lead is estimated to spend between 30 to 45 hours per week on Council business.

It is anticipated that these levels will be similar for the Leader and Executive under the new
system of governance in 2019.

NoT 2R 1
o1 9o79°td

1.7 Inrelation to
licensing, planning and
other regulatory
responsibilities, to what
extent are decisions
delegated to officers?

In relation to licensing, all decisions are delegated to officers, with the exception of:

(1 Relevant policy review and development;

[ ‘Fit and proper’ assessments for specific Hackney Carriage License applications; and
[1 Those applications which have received objections.

In relation to planning, the overwhelming majority of applications are determined by officers,
unless they are major applications (e.g. 10 dwellings or more), or receive a lot of objections

and are referred by the Planning Officer to Committee. Such applications are referred to the
Development Management Committee for determination.

As a guide, officers estimate that currently 96% of planning and 98% of licensing applications
are determined through officer delegation.

The Council has a detailed officer scheme of delegation which is regularly reviewed by the
Council’s Monitoring Officer.




TOT 2BV 1
tot 9o79td

1.8 How many
Members are involved
in Committees?

The decision-making bodies of the Council consists of:

OJ

Council — 37 Members (this includes the current elected Mayor)

Executive — 8 Members (this is currently set up as two Policy Development and Decision
Groups, but would be expected to be one single Executive meeting from 2019)

Overview and Scrutiny Board — 9 Members

Scrutiny Review Panels — 5 Members (drawn from 29 Non-Executive Members)
Priorities and Resources Review Panel — 9 Members (comprising the 9 Board Members)
Task and finish groups — no limit to membership (any interested Non-Executive Member)
Audit Committee — 6 Members

Development Management Committee — 9 Members (this level was set to achieve political
balance across the Council, but could be reduced)

Licensing Committee — 15 Members (this is set at this level to enable a trained pool of
three Members to be drawn to serve on the weekly Licensing Sub-Committee and should
remain the same)

(1 Harbour Committee — 9 Members (this is a Council function under local choice and could
become an Executive function or could be reduced to 7 or 8 as this was set at this level to
achieve political balance)

Employment Committee — 5 Members

Appeals Committee (School Transport) — 7 Members

Civic Committee — 7 Members

Standards Committee — 7 Members

Investment Committee — 6 Members

OO0 ogo OJ

OJ

I I

1.9 Is Committee
Councillorship standing
or rotating?

Committee membership is standing, with appointments being made at the Annual meeting of
Council each May, although Group Leaders may change their membership during the year if
they wish.




20T ABp 1
col oPtg

1.10 Are meetings ad
hoc, frequent and/or
area based?

The Calendar of Meetings is set annually, but there is the ability to convene meetings ad-hoc
in certain circumstances (e.g. special meetings of Council / Executive to consider urgent
matters). In addition, there are a number of meetings which are called on an ad-hoc basis to
respond to business demand — as indicated in the list below.

From the Calendar there is provision for:

U
U

O

OJ | O o0O0go | OJ

O O

Council — 10 meetings per Municipal Year (including 2 adjourned meetings)

Executive — 11 per year (currently 22 for the two Policy Development and Decision
Groups, but would be expected to be 11 for the Executive meeting from 2019)
Overview and Scrutiny Board — 11 per year

Scrutiny Review Panels — 5 Members drawn from 29 Non-Executive Members (ad hoc
task and finish groups)

Priorities and Resources Review Panel — 15 (including private meetings to review the
budget)

Task and finish groups — (ad hoc usually 1 to 3 meetings per topic)

Audit Committee — 6 per year

Development Management Committee — every 4 weeks

Licensing Committee — 2 meetings of the Committee per year (with the Licensing Sub-
Committee scheduled every week in case there needs to be a hearing - 9 meetings held
between January 2016 and January 2017)

Harbour Committee — 3 per year

Employment Committee — ad hoc

Appeals Committee (School Transport) — 8 per year scheduled but cancelled if not
required

Civic Committee — ad hoc

Standards Committee — once per year, plus ad hoc

Investment Committee — scheduled fortnightly but cancelled if not required




We do not currently have any area based meetings. Meetings are either held in the Town
Hall, Torquay or the Riviera International Conference Centre in Torquay. Site visits for
Development Management Committee are held on the day of the Committee throughout
Torbay.

1.11 What level of
attendance is
achieved? Are
meetings always
quorate?

Generally a good level of attendance is achieved and meetings are normally quorate.

Between January 2016 and January 2017 we only had one meeting which was not quorate
due to a Member declaring an interest but another Member joined the meeting to ensure that
it was quorate and could continue.

coT ABPY 1|
colL o9Ptg

1.12 Does the council
believe that changes to
legislation, national or
local policy will have
influence on the
workload of committees
and their Members
which would have an
impact on council size?

It is not considered that there are any changes on the horizon which would result in less work
for Members. They may have an additional role to play if the Heart of the South West
Devolution deal goes ahead in terms of serving on joint committees for the region.




1.13 Has the Council
defined the role of
Councillors?

Has the Council
adopted arrangements
for training and
developing Councillors
and supporting them in
their role?

The Council has Member Job Descriptions to cover the role of Councillor and each of the key
posts such as Executive Member, Overview and Scrutiny Co-ordinator, Chairman etc. Each
newly elected Member receives a copy of the Job Description as part of their induction.

The Council has an extensive Member Development Programme which includes an intensive
induction and is regularly reviewed by the Mayor and Group Leaders’ Group. There is
mandatory training for areas such as the Code of Conduct and interests, licensing and
planning. Ongoing support and confidential personal development plans are provided to
each Member if they wish. The Mayor (for Executive Leads) and Group Leaders undertake
Councillor development one to one discussions on an annual basis to also inform the
Member Development Programme.

QT abed

1.14 Has the Council
assessed how much
time Councillors spend
on Council business?

The Council has carried out assessments in the past as part of the review of Members’
Allowances. Responses varied greatly from Member to Member depending on their role and
personal circumstances. For example a working Councillor would have less time available
for Council business and may only sit on one Committee.

1.15 Do Councillors
generally find that the
time they spend on
council business is
what they expected?

The majority of Members comment that they had underestimated the amount of time they
spend on Council business before they were elected.




1.16 What is the extent
of Councillors
representational role
on, and appointment to,
outside bodies?

How many are involved
in this activity and what
is their expected
workload?

A total of 32 Members (including the elected Mayor, with some Members representing the
Council on more than one outside body) are appointed to serve as representatives of the
Council on outside bodies. Members liaise with these organisations directly and the Council
has little input other than to administer the appointment process.

Workload varies greatly depending on the outside body. Members are expected to feedback
to the Overview and Scrutiny Board/Council with regards to work being undertaken by the
outside organisation, especially where it may impact on the work of Torbay or highlight areas
for collaborative working.

GQT abed

1.17 Does the Councll
have difficulty in
retaining Councillors or
attracting new
candidates?

The Council holds full elections every 4 years and all 36 seats have always been contested,
usually by the two main political parties in Torbay (namely Conservatives and Liberal
Democrats) with other political parties putting up candidates for some of the seats as well as
some independent representatives standing. However, the Council does struggle to attract
prospective candidates who reflect the demographic profile of the Borough (e.g. a proportion
on young residents).

Since 2006 there have only been 3 Borough by-elections. One was caused by a death of a
serving Councillor, one as a result of a resignation and one as a result of a candidate being
elected as Mayor.

1.18 Have there been
any instances where
the Council has been
unable to discharge its
duties due to a lack of
Councillors?

There have been no such instances.




1.19 Do Councillors
have an individual or
ward budget for
allocation in their area?

If so, how is the system
administered?

No

2. Scrutiny of the Council, outside bodies and others.

9QQT abed

2.1 What's the
structure? How does it
operate?

The Council’s has one Overview and Scrutiny Board. In addition various task and finish
groups and review panels are established as and when required which are Chaired by one of
the following four Scrutiny Lead Members:

[ Joint Commissioning — Children’s and Adults

[0 Joint Commissioning — Health, Wellbeing and Public Health
(1 Joint Operations — Commercial and Business Services

(1 Joint Operations — Community and Customer Services

The Council appoints an Overview and Scrutiny Board to discharge the functions conferred
by Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000. It is appointed in accordance with the
statutory requirements to achieve political balance.

The Overview and Scrutiny Co-ordinator (the Chairman of the Board) is appointed at the
Annual Council meeting and the Vice-Chairman is appointed at the first Board meeting each
Municipal Year (May to April). The ‘scrutiny’ function acts as a ‘watchdog’ and monitors the
decisions and performance of the Executive. The Overview and Scrutiny Co-ordinator and
Scrutiny Leads are expected to agree arrangements to ensure that each of the Executive




Portfolios is shadowed, in order to provide expertise in these areas to the Board when a call-
in, review, or performance monitoring is undertaken.

In addition to scrutiny, ‘overview’ work is carried out which provides Councillors with an
opportunity to review how the Council and other partners are delivering services, similar to
how a parliamentary select committee would operate.

Overview and Scrutiny looks at policies on behalf of the Council to ensure they are fit for
purpose’. It also examines wider issues of community interests/concern. The Councillor
input to review and develop policy can be significant.

Formal review panels are made up of the relevant Scrutiny Lead plus four other Members
(which can be any of the 29 Non-Executive Members). There are also informal task and
finish groups which comprise interested Non-Executive Members with no limit on
membership, lead by the relevant Scrutiny Lead. Due to limited officer resources task and
finish group meetings are held without a central support officer and the lead Councillor then
provides feedback to inform the conclusion of their review.

) QT abed

2.2 What is the general
workload of scrutiny
committees?

Has the Council ever
found that it has had
too many active
projects for the scrutiny
process to function
effectively?

There is a meaningful workload across a number of subjects.

There have been occasions when the Council has found that there have been too many
active projects for the scrutiny process to function effectively. However, the work is now
more focused on ‘things that matter’ taking into account the Principles of Overview and
Scrutiny as agreed by Council on 26 February 2015 set out below:

1. The Council as a whole, and therefore overview and scrutiny, need to focus on the issues
that really matter. There are no longer any easy decisions to make. The luxury of looking at
the more marginal issues has long passed. It is important that there is an “all Council”
approach to tackling the challenges now being faced.

2. “Holding to account” must continue as a vital role of overview and scrutiny. But “policy




development” is of equal importance. And national experience has shown that this is where
the contribution of the non-executive members can be most effective.

3. The Forward Plan should be seen as a key tool for managing the decision making
process throughout the Authority. There needs to be more informal discussions about what is
coming forward for decision in the coming months.

4. Overview and scrutiny should be seen as an important element in delivering good, sound
decisions. The relationship between overview and scrutiny and the executive should not be
adversarial, but rather of seeking to complement one another.

5. There should be the ability for all councillors to have the opportunity to help shape policy
decisions at an early stage.

QQT abed

2.3 How is the work
programme developed
and implemented?

How many subjects at
any one time?

What’s the time-span
for a particular study?

The workload is set by local issues, review of the Mayor’s Forward Plan and the Council’s
Corporate Plan and delivery plans. The Board also receives requests to undertake work
from the Executive.

The rationale for task and finish groups is that they can respond to issues quickly, meaning
that there may be a number operating at any one time but they may only meet once or twice
to conclude their work.

The length of formal reviews tends to depend on external consultation processes which can
be from six weeks to three months.

2.4 Are Councillors
involved in scrutinising
external issues?

Overview and Scrutiny at Torbay has a statutory requirement to carry out health scrutiny as
well as scrutiny of flood protection and the Community Safety Partnership. The Council’s
Constitution also enables the Board to scrutinise any issue affecting the local area.




2.5 When not in
scrutiny meetings what
activities are
Councillors expected to
undertake?

Councillors are required to attend Committees, read relevant committee papers and reports,
conduct research, attend working groups, training events and briefings with officers, attend
local groups and conduct site visits.

In addition to what they are expected to undertake, Councillors also carry out their
constituency work and regularly attend Town Council and Community Partnership meetings
within their wards.

2.6 How will the role of
the scrutiny Councillor
change?

Since the adoption of the Principles of Overview and Scrutiny the role has changed to ensure
that the process is more Member led and focused on the issues that will make a difference to
Torbay Council.

68T abed

2.7 What kind of
support do scrutiny
members receive?

The Council currently has one Scrutiny officer. In addition to supporting the Overview and
Scrutiny function this officer also provides support on a number of Corporate Issues such as
Devolution and budget development.




3. Representational Role: Representing electors to the Council

3.1 Has the
representational role of
Councillors changed
since the council last
considered how many
elected Councillors it
should have?

Council size was last considered during the 2001/2002 review when the number of
Councillors remained at 36.

Members have indicated that their constituents are now likely to contact them more often due
to the wider use of e-mail, blogs, websites and social media, which they feel has had a
significant impact on their constituency workloads. However, the recent introduction of a
centralised casework system has assisted members with dealing with their casework with
automated tracking via the Council’'s complaints software system.

06T abed




3.2 In general terms,
how do Councillors
carry out their
representational role
with electors?

Many Councillors are proactively involved within their Wards as opposed to simply
responding to case work and consider that they play an active part within their communities.
The approach they take varies, but a number of Councillors are involved in some or all of the
following:

[0 holding surgeries — dealing with queries, providing advice and engaging with their

16T abed

Do members mainly
respond to casework
from constituents or do
they have a more active
role in the community?

O Od

I O B B

constituents face-to-face;

attending consultation events;

working with, facilitating and/or offering support, to community groups and local
organisations;

attending Brixham Town Council meetings;

maintaining blogs and/or websites and social media;

dealing with written or e-mailed correspondence (using the Council’s e-casework
system);

taking telephone calls;

making ward visits;

representing the interests of their wards;

sitting on outside bodies and attending partnership meetings; and

representing the Council within the wider community.

3.3 How Councillors

All Councillors are issued with an iPad to assist them with their role and have a Torbay
Council e-mail address. In addition to this, a number of Councillors engage with their
constituents via social media and hold surgeries.

engage with
Constituents?

Do they hold surgeries, Most members appreciate that a high profile and active presence within their local community
public meetings, use IT is the key to building a successful relationship with their constituents. Some produce

etc? newsletters and hold open public meetings. They are all members of the local Community
Partnerships which meet regularly to engage with their communities.




3.4 How do Councillors
generally deal with
casework?

Do they pass on issues
directly to staff or do
they take a more in
depth approach to
resolving issues?

It mainly depends on whether the Member concerned has the necessary level of experience,
skill and expertise to deal directly with an issue themselves, or whether they need to refer
more technical or sensitive matters directly to an officer via the centralized casework system
(referred to in 3.2 above) or to political colleagues.

Z6T abed

3.5 What support do
Councillors receive in
discharging their duties
in relation to casework
and a representational
role in their ward?

The Council has introduced a centralised casework system where Members can log their
casework via the Council’s corporate complaints system which is then passed to the relevant
Council officer for a response and provides automated tracking.

3.6 Has the Council
put in place any
mechanisms for
Councillors to interact
with young people,
those not on the
electoral register, or
minority groups or their
representative bodies?

No, however, a number of Councillors engage with young people and minority groups as part
of their community leadership role and encourage and assist people to get them registered.




3.7 Are Councillors
expected to attend
meetings of community
bodies such as parish
councils or resident
associations?

What is the level of
their involvement and
what role do they play?

There is an expectation that Members will attend such meetings, but there is no statutory
requirement.

Torbay has one Town Council, namely Brixham Town Council. A number of Torbay
Councillors are also Brixham Town Councillors and therefore attend these meetings and
feedback relevant issues to Torbay Council. Other Torbay Councillors from the Berry Head
with Furzeham and St Marys with Summercombe Wards also sometimes attend the Town
Council meetings.

Each Councillor is a member of their local Community Partnership (CP) which comprises all
the residents and businesses within the CP area. These usually meet monthly, bi-monthly or
quarterly.

€6T abed




4. The Future

4.1 What impact do
you think the localism
agenda might have on
the scope and conduct
of council business and
how do you think this
might affect the role of
Councillors?

The Localism Act has provided further opportunities for Councillors to become involved in
neighbourhood planning. There are currently three neighbourhood plans being developed.

6T abed

4.2 Does the Council
have any plans to
devolve responsibilities
and/or assets to
community
organisations, or does
the Council expect to
take on more
responsibilities in the
medium to long term?

Some assets have been transferred to local communities in accordance with the Council’s
Community Asset Transfer Policy. At the same time the Council is taking on larger profit
generating assets as the Council pursues financial self-sufficiency as part of its
Transformation Programme. These initiatives will require Member involvement and scrutiny
through the Investment Committee.




GpT abed

4.3 Have changes to
the arrangements for
local delivery of
services led to
significant changes to
Councillors workloads?
(For example, control of
housing stock or
sharing services with
neighbouring
authorities)

Whilst the following services have been commissioned, the Council is still responsible for
service delivery and therefore Councillors are still involved in dealing with issues relating to
these services:

0

O o0oOgo

[

[

TOR2 (maintenance of highways, grounds, parks, car parks, buildings, Council’s fleet,
management of household waste & recycling centre and waste transfer stations, out of
hours call centre support, street and beach cleansing, waste & recycling collections);
Integrated Care Organisation (adult social care and health);

Countryside Management (Torbay Coast and Countryside Trust);

Devon Audit Partnership;

Torbay Development Agency (affordable housing & planning, asset management,
business services, economy, investment & enterprise, facilities management, project
management, property services, South West business centres);

English Riviera Tourism Company (destination management organisation, visitor
information points);

Careers South West Ltd (careers advice, information & guidance, support services for
young people); and

The PLUSS organisation Ltd (employment services, support for enterprises).

A number of schools have become academies and the Local Authority is now only
responsible for 2 voluntary controlled, 4 community and 2 special schools (e.g. 8 schools)
with the remaining 34 schools being responsible for their own governance and admission
arrangements.

As Torbay Council is part of the Integrated Care Organisation for the delivery of Adult Social
Care and Health, the Executive Lead for Adults and Children provides a key role in this area.

The Council is reviewing the delivery of its Children’s Services social care function with a
view to moving to an alternative delivery model. It is anticipated that the Executive Lead
responsible for Children will provide a key role to this work.




There is a Devon Building Control Partnership with Member representation from each
authority involved.

There is a Devon and Somerset Trading Standards Partnership with Member representation
from each authority involved.

Devolution — The Heart of the South West LEP area — Devon and Somerset is currently
holding negotiations with government — the outcomes are currently not yet finalised.

4.4 Are there any
developments in policy
ongoing that might
significantly affect the
role of elected
members in the future?

Members have stated that they could not foresee anything on the horizon which would lead
to a dramatic increase (or decrease) in their workloads.

9pT abed

4.5 What has been the
impact of recent

financial constraints on
the Council’s activities?

The allocation of available resources has become more challenging and is open to more
public involvement and comment, which includes the work of elected Councillors.
Councillors are now required to manage the public’s expectations on services and act as
facilitators in their communities to assist with delivering reduced services in different ways.




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	122 Petition for Debate - Save our King George V Playing Fields and Notice of Motion - King George V Playing Field
	123 Members' questions

	6 Members' questions
	7a Notice of Motion - Clinical Health Services (Mayoral Decision)
	8 Annual Strategic Agreement between Torbay Council, South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning Group and Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust
	Annual Strategic Agreement Appendix 1

	9 Review of Torbay Council Investment Fund Strategy
	Review of Torbay Council Investment Fund Strategy Appendix 1
	Review of Torbay Council Investment Fund Strategy Appendix 2

	10 Torbay Council Annual Pay Policy Statement and Review of Pensions Discretions
	Torbay Council Annual Pay Policy Statement and Review of Pensions Discretions App1
	Torbay Council Annual Pay Policy Statement and Review of Pensions Discretions App2
	Torbay Council Annual Pay Policy Statement and Review of Pensions Discretions App3

	11 Heart of the South West Devolution - Update and Appointment of Joint Committee
	Heart of the South West Devolution Update and Appointment of Joint Committee App1

	12 Decision to Opt in to the National Scheme for Auditor Appointments with Public Sector Audit Appointment (PSAA) as the 'Appointing Person'
	External Auditor Appointment Appendix 1

	13 Provisional Calendar of Meetings for 2017/2018
	Provisional Calendar of Meetings for 2017 2018 App 1

	19 Jubilee Gardens - Mayoral Recommendations
	Jubilee Gardens Mayoral Recommendations Appendix 1
	Jubilee Gardens Mayoral Recommendations Appendix 2
	Jubilee Gardens Mayoral Recommendations Appendix 3
	Jubilee Gardens Mayoral Recommendations Appendix 4
	Jubilee Gardens Mayoral Recommendations Appendix 5

	21 Review of Electoral Arrangements - Submission by Torbay Council on Council Size
	Review of Electoral Arrangements Submission on Council Size Appendix 1


